Attach.

M (Calgary Board
of Education
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2011

5:00 P.M. — 8:00 P.M.
Board Room, Education Centre
1221 — 8™ Street SW, Calgary, Alberta

Conflict of Interest reminder: Trustees must disclose any potential pecuniary interest in any matter

before the Board of Trustees, as set forth in the agenda as well as any pecuniary interest in any

contract before the Board requiring the Board’s approval and/or ratification.

TOPIC

Agenda

Verbal

1.0

2.0

3.0

3.1

4.0

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

55

Who
CALL TO ORDER, NATIONAL ANTHEM AND WELCOME Chair
CONSIDERATION/APPROVAL OF AGENDA Chair
SCHOOL/SYSTEM PRESENTATIONS
Emily Follensbee School — Ends 1 S. Smith

HONOURS AND RECOGNITIONS

PUBLIC CONVERSATION AND INFORMATION
Report from Chair and Trustees

Report from Chief Superintendent

Public Question Period

(An opportunity for the public and/or stakeholders to raise questions and seek Public
clarification on educational matters with the trustees. Fill out “Public Question

Period” form on the table in the foyer and submit to the Corporate Secretary in

writing or electronically to corpsec@cbe.ab.ca no later than 5 hours prior to the
scheduled start time of the meeting. This form is also available in Appendix C

of the Board Meeting Procedures. The person asking the question must be

present at the meeting.)

Stakeholder Reports

(An opportunity for stakeholder groups or the public to verbally address the Public
Board for 3 minutes on any educational issue, to a maximum of 5 reports per

meeting. Advise the Corporate Secretary at least 10 minutes prior to the
commencement of the meeting if you wish to do a stakeholder presentation.)

Trustee Inquiries

Time

5 min.

2 min.

15 min.

30 min.



Public Board Meeting — December 6, 2011

Attach. TOPIC
6.0
P.6-1 6.1
P.6-90 6.2
7.0
8.0
9.0
9.1
9.1.1
P.9-34
P.9-42
P.9-45 9.1.2
P.9-1 9.1.3
P.9-47 914
9.2
P.9-5 9.21
P.9-16 9.2.2

Who
ACTION ITEMS

Chair, Audit
Presentation and Consideration of Audited Financial Statements Committee

(THAT the Board approves the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended August 31, 2011, including the Auditors' Report thereon, dated
December 6, 2011, the Unaudited Schedules to the Financial Statements as
submitted, and the Financial Statements and Statistical Information for the
year ended August 31, 2011, for submission to the Minister of Education.)

Combined Annual Education Results Report 2010-2011 and Three-Year C. Faber
Education Plan 2011-2014

(THAT the Board approves the combined Annual Education Results Report

2010-2011 and Three-Year Education Plan 2011-2014.)

MONITORING AND RESULTS

POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW
CONSENT AGENDA

Board Consent Agenda

Approval of Minutes

e Regular Meeting held November 15, 2011

e Special Meeting held November 14, 2011

(THAT the Board approves the Minutes of the Regular Meeting held
November 15, 2011, and the Special Meeting held November 14, 2011, as
submitted.)

Correspondence
(THAT the Board receives the correspondence for information and for
the record.)

Trustee Liaison Report re: CAPSC
(THAT the Board receives the liaison report for information.)

Report from the Board Evaluation Committee
(THAT the Board adopts the revised GP-11E: Board of Trustees’ Committees
— Terms of Reference, Board Evaluation Committee, as submitted.

Chief Superintendent Consent Agenda

Chief Superintendent Update
(THAT the Board receives the Chief's update for information.)

Financial Status of the Operating Budget as at August 31, 2011 and
Unaudited Financial Results for the Year Ending August 31, 2011

(THAT information regarding all budget revisions made during this period, and
the 2010/11 Budget Variance Report as at August 31, 2011, be received for
monitoring information and for the record.)

Time

30 min.

30 min.

5 min.
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Attach. TOPIC

P.9-22 9.2.3

P.9-28 9.24
10.0

11.0

November 30, 2011 Budget Report Update to the 2011/2012 Operating
Budget

(THAT the Board approves the Update, reflecting total planned spending of
$1.150 billion, and authorizes for submission to Alberta Education; and
approves the amended planned operating reserve draws, as submitted.)

Locally Developed Courses

(THAT the Board approves the renewal of, and the withdrawal of CBE senior
and junior high locally developed courses and resources, as submitted in the
report.)

TRUSTEE NOTICES OF MOTION

ADJOURNMENT



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGEMDA

December 6, 2011

To: Board of Trustees

From: Board of Trustees” Audit Commities

Fe: Fresentation of Audited Financial Sistements and Audiiors’ Report

Purpose: Approval

Governance Policy Reference: EP-11: Board of Trustees’ Committeas
GP-11E: Audit Committee, Terms of Reference

RECOMMEMNDATIOM:

THAT the Board of Trustees approves:

1} the Audited Financial Statements of the Calgary Board of Education for the
yvear ended August 31, 2011, including the Auditors' Report thereon, dated
December 6, 2011, and the Unaudited Schedules to the Financial Statements
as submitted, for submission to the Minister of Education; and

2) the Calgary Board of Education Financial Statements and Statistical
Information for the year ended August 31, 2011, including the Auditors’ Report
thereon, dated December &, 2011, as submitted, for submission to the Minister
of Education.

BACKGROUND:

In accordance with section 146 of the School Acf, the Board of Trustees must appoint an auditor,
The Board of Trustees appointed KPMG LLP, who has now completed their examination of the
201011 financial statements, The auditors’ professional opinion on these financial statements is
included in the Auditors’ Report, dated December G, 2011, and will be signed following Board
approval

Pursuant fo section 151(1) of the Schoo! Acl, the auditor must send io the Minister, on or before
Movember 30 in each year, copies of:

{a) the financial statements,

{b) the awditer's report on the financial statemeants, and

{c} any written communication between the auditor and the board respecting the
systems of internal control and accounting procedures of the board

However, Alberta Education has allowed an extension for the receipt of zigned copies for the
currant yvear, o December 7, 2091, In the interim, draft copies were forsarded o the Ministry on
Movember 20, 2011

In order to assel the Board of Trustees with itz work, the Board established an Audit Commiites
with tha following responsibilities that specifically apply to the audited financial statements:

b i



[a) to monitor the auditors’ performance and report to the Board of Trustess

annually,

(o) b review the annual audit plan and recommend its approval to the Board of
Trustees,

(el bo review the audited figures in the annual financial statements and the audit

findings report and report 1o the Board of Trustees.

The Audit Commitiee has rewviewed copies of afl of the abowve information, and has discussad 2l
of these documeants with the auditors and with senior Administration. The Commities
recommends that the Board of Trustees approves the Financial Statements and the Audiars’
Report thereon, as submitted. Such approval is a requirement of the Schoo! Act.

Fespectfully submitied,

Trustes Sheila Taylor
Chair, Audit Committes
A hirmie

a)  Alberta Edecation Audited Financial Statements and Unavwdited Schedules for the year ended Awgust
3, 21, including the Auwditors’ Report thereon, dated Decambar &, 3011,

b}  Financial Statements and Statistical Information for the year ended August 21, 2071, including the
Audilers’ Repoer thereon, dated December &6, 2011,



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Alberta Education Audited Financial Statements
and
Linaudited Schedules

August 31, 2011
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Eonod Juisddion Cade 00

AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2011
[Echood Act, Secticns 1472} a), 148, 1549(1) and 27]

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Liganl B i Sizhoal Jursdichon

1221 Bth Street 3W, CALGARY, ALBERTA TZR 0L4

Aailirg Addmes

Tel: (403) 817 - 4000 FAX: {403) 254 - 8254

Telephare arsd Fax Numiars

SCHOOL JURSDICTION MANAGEMENT'S REEPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPDRTING

Th financial stalements of CALGARY BOAAD OF EGLCATION

prasenied o Albens Edecaton have bean prepared by school urisdclion management which has respansibiily Tor
Ihedr preqaration, imtegeity and oipechivity. Tha financial statemeanis, incisding notes, have besn prepared in socordance
will gangraly aceephed accountng pnncipkes and Slow fommal presenbed Dy Alsaita BEducalicn

In huifiling % reporling respongibiities, managemant kas mainkined miemal comnl systems and proceduras designed
1o peoyide reasanabis aLaurpnce Mmat fe sehocl junsdiclion’s assels are safesguarded, fhal ransachions A execubad
in epgrdanca with approprata acthanzation amd that accouniing records may be ndied wpan 1o propedy refied the
sonoH prsdichon’s Iransachans, The efleciversass of 1he coning ayetems is supporied by the selaclion and Irarureg
of quabfied prrsonnel, an omganizatonal struchee thal provides an appopriate detsion of resgonaibiily and & Elrang
sysierm of budgetsy cantral

Board of Trirsives Fesponsibitihe
Tha ullimate regperaiblliy ior tha tinancial Salemanls kes with the Sosid af Troslsss. Tha Board reveyved e aodned
linancial stalements wilth management in dalail and approved the fnancsal alataments o release.

Extarnal Auddlors
Thie Board appains exlemal auGlors 1o sudil ihe Srancol sbstements and mesls with tha auctons o revies e findings:
Thig exlemal Budilors 'were given Sl BCCRsE 10 Achodd jursadiclion resands.

Declarabion of Marspeaient and Baard Charmian

To the best of our knowledge and befief, ®hese inancal slalements redlect, inoall material reapects, e lnarcial pesilian
and resulls of operations and cash Mows [or the year in accordance wish grr-:a-.ml‘r,' accepied eccounting princples aed
[k U2 Tinancial mepaing recuiramenie prescribed by Alberla Educston

BOARD CHAIR

FATRICIA COCHRAKE “ORIGINAL SIGNED"

Hame Sprialiin

SUPERINTENDENT

HADMI E, JOHNSON “ORIGINAL SIGNED™

KA il

SECRETARY TREASURER OR TREASURER

DEBORAH L. MEYERS CUORIGINAL SIGHNED™

=T Siqnaiue

Board-apgeowed Foloase Date

6. ALBERTA EOUCATEM, Francial Rapotig & Becountasadily Branch
Bh Flgar Commests Flars, 10165903 Simel, Edmonban AR TR L5
EMEIL: Cindy. Wangfigov.ab.ca
PHEME: (7800 B84-867T { Tall free $10-0800)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT

To Board of Trustees

We have auwdited the accompanying financial siatements of lhe Calgary Board of Educabon {the
‘Corporalon®™, which compnse the balance sheet as al August 31, 2011, the stalemenis of revenue and
expense changes n net assets, and cash fiows for the year then ended, which are presented in the
format prescribed by Alberta Education, and notes comprising a summary of significant accounding
podickes and cther explanatory information.

Maragemenlt's Responsiaity for the Financal Slafements

Management iz responsible for the preparation and far presentation of these fnancial statemenis in
accordance with Canadian generally accepied accounting prnciples, and for such mternal contral as
managemant determines is neceszary o enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free
fram matenal misstatement, whether due 1o feaud or error,

Aprdifors " Responstbihy

Dur resporsibility 5 0 express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audil. We
conductsd our audit in accordance with Coanadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audil o oblan
reasonahle assurance about whether the inanoal statements are free from material missiatemant

An audit involves perdorming procedures to oblain audd evidence about the amounis and disclosures i
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, imcluding the assessment of
e risks ol matenal msstatemsnt of the financal satements, whether due fo fraud or eror. In making
ihose nsk assessments, we congider imternal control relevant to the enbin's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial siatements in arder to design audd procedures hal are appropnate in the
circumstances, but nol for the purpose of expressing an opinion o the efectivensss of he enbly's
imtenal conirgl, An audi also mcludes evaluating the appropriaiensss of accounting poboes used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well a5 evaluating the overall
presentaton of the fimancial stalements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained i suffiient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for
LT L Opirvicn,

Lipimiair

in Gur apinion, the fnancial statements present Fairly, i all matenal respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as al August 31, 2011, and its results of operations and its cash Bows for the year then

ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepled accounting principles and the presentation
requirements of Alberta Education.

Charlered Accountants

December &, 2011
Calgary, Canada

o



School Jurisdiction Code: 040
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at August M, 2011
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School Jurisdiction Codie: 20320
STATEMEMNT OF REVENUES AMD EXPENSES
Tar the Year Ended Avgust 31, 2011
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School Jurisdiction Code:

STATEMEMNT OF CASH FLOWS
for thi Year Endod August 31, 2041
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STATEMIONT OF CHAMGES IN HET ASSETS

I=hoal Teda: ploii]
for the Year Ended August 31, 2011
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Sehocl Jurmdsbics Coda: 303D
STATEMENT OF CAPITAL ALLOCATIINS
(EXTERMALLY RESTRICTED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS OHLY}
tar the Year Ended Augest 34, 2011
i dolara)
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
WOTES TO ALEBERTA EDUCATION FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

1. ORGAMNIZATION

The Calgary Board of Education {the "Corpaoration™) is an independent legal entity with an elecied Board of
Trustees as slipulaled in the School Act (Alberta). The Corporation is registered as a charitabla
organization under the Imcome Tax Acf (Canada) and, therefore, is exempt from income tax and may issua
official recaipts to domors for income t&x purposes

The Corporation provides & full range of educational services for all insfructional programs ranging from
Kindergaren through Grade 12

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&}

(b

{c)

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
Generally Acceplted Accounting Principles (GAAP). A precise determinabon of many assets and
lizhilifizs 15 dependani upon future events and invoblyes the use of estimates and approximations,
which have been made using professicnal judgment.  Actual resulls could differ from these esbmates
or approximatons. In admimnstration's opimicn, these financial statements have been prepared within
reasonable limids of materiality and within the framework of the accounting policies summarized balow,

The financial cperations of Educationbatiers {farmerdy The Calgary Board of Education Foundation) is
a nat-for-prafil foundation which promotes and supports public education in Calgary (se= Note 16 (b))
and is a controlled enfity whose financial resulis are not consolidated in these financial stalements, as
permitted under Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA} Handbook Accounting Part
445014

Budgel information is unaudited and iz presented on the Statermant of Revenue and Expense and on
the relaied schedules for informafion purposes only and represenis the oniginal budget submilted Lo
Albarta Education in Juna, 2010, as amended during the fiscal year to reflect identified changes in
circumsiances relafing to operating and program changes. The Board of Trustees approves the
original budgel and monitors all subsequent changes through gquarerly reporis of revisions and
amendments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are compnised of cash and short-lerm investments with oniginal maturities
of 90 days ar |less.

Inveniones

Inveniories consst of maintenance and school supplies and are valued af the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Inventory B expensed when items ane shipped b schools o deparimants,



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

fe)

if)

Investments

Hedd-for-trading assets are measured at fair value gach reporing period, Unrealized gains and lossas
on held-for-trading financial instruments ane recognized in earmings.

Short-term investments arg mvastments held with a maximum of 2 one-yaar viaw to ansura the hmely

selilement of the Corporation’s financial chligations. Investments wsually congist of freasury bills and
money market investments and are recorded at fair value

Long-lerm investments are investments held for & period of at least one to five wvears, unless
significant unforeseen factors occur. Long-term investments may include corporate and government
bends and equities and are recorded st fair value,

Capital Assets and Capital Revenue

Capital assels are recorded at cosl Amorization & calculated on a straight-line basis al rates which
armariize the cost of the capital assets ower their estimated useful fives. The amortization rates applied
are as faollows:

Land inprovemanis 20 yoars
Buildings 10 - 40 vears
Furniture and equipment 4 = 10 yoars

Mo amortization is providad on construction in progress, es these assets are not ready and are naot

availabla for use. Once completed and placed inlo use, these assels are amartized m accordancs
with the Corporaticn's above amortization policy

Cartan capital assets, including new school construciion and major rencvations (except administralive
puildings and replacement of equipment and vehicles), are funded by Alberta Education when
approved, and are based on the Corporation’s three-year capital plan. When receved, capital granis
far these asaeis are deferred and reflected in revenue and matched to the amorization expense aver
the lives of the related assels, Provincially funded Infrastruciure Maintenanse Renewal (IMR} projects
that improve or sustain the operating functionality of building components or land improvements and
do not axtend the useful Ife of the underlying assel are expensed

Capital assats which are paid by directly by the Province of Alberta are recorded by the Corporation al
faw market valus when title has transfarred. A cormesponding deferred capital grant is recorded and
raflected in revenue over the life of the assel Maintenancs expense paid by directly by the Province of
Alberta on behalf of the Corporation ralating to these ssssts s expensed and comresponding grand
revenueE = racognized

Leases
Leases are clagsified as capdal or operating leases, Leases which fransfer substantially the eniire
benefis and risks incidental to the ownership of properly are accounted for as capital leases. All ciher

leases are aocounted for as operaiing leases and the related lease payments are charged o
EXPENGES a5 incurmed

10
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
MOTES TO ALBEERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

(g}

(h)

{i}

Asset Retirement Obligation

The Corporation recognizes the fair value of an Assel Retirement Obligation {"ARD"} in the pariod in
which it incurs a legal chligation associaled with the retirement of capilal assets. Ceain builkding
assats contain some asbestos. Although the asbestos is appropriately contained in accordance with
environmenial regulations, it is the Corporation’s practice 1o, If necessary, remediate any asbeslos
upon disposal of a capital assat. The Corporation recognizes an AR only when those assets have
been approved by the Board of Trustees for disposition and when the fair value of the liabdity can be
reasonably determimed.

The eslimated fair value of ARD are capitabized a3 part of the related long-ved azset and depreciated
on the same basis as the underlying assel ARD iz adjusted for the passage of time, which is
recocgnized as accretion expanse, and for revisions to the fiming or the amount of the estimated
liablity. Actual costs incwrred are charged againsl the assel retiremant obligation o the extent of the
iability recorded. Differences between the actual costs incurmad and the liability are recognized n
eamings when remediation is completed

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when they are eamed Grants received, restricled donations and fees
collected in advance of the provision o use of relaled services, are deferred unfil utilized. Unrestricted
cash donations are recognized as revenue when they are received, Donations of malerals and
sevices are recognized as revenue when a far value can be reasonasbly esfimated and when the
materials and sarvices are usad in the normal course of the organization's operations and woulkd
oiversise have besn purchased.

Funds donated by individuals or organizations for the purpose of esfablishing schalarships and
bursaries are accounied for as deferred revenues  Interast is calculated on each scholarship fund
balance and is accrued for the benefit of the recipsnis of the fund. Individual scholarship payments
are made o the recipients of the scholarships and bursaries in accordance with the various
scholarship agreements, and a corresponding amount is recognized ag revenue at thal birme

Tha amorization of capital assets funded by Alberia Educabon and Alberla Infrastructurs is
recognized annually and is offsat by a corresponding amount of revenue arising from the recognition
in that yvear of related capital granis

Each year, voluntesrs contribute a considerabie number of hours which support the defvery of cartain
pragrams within schools.  Due to the difficulty of determining or otherwise estimating these hours, and
the fact thet theee servicas are not otherwise purchased, the value of these contributed seraces is nod
quantfied nor recognized in these linancial stalements.

Proceeds on Disposal of Capital Assets

The proceeds on disposal of capital assels are applied to fund fudure capital assel expenditures.
Pursuant to Provincial regulations, the allocation of proceeds for each asset disposal is based upon
the relative condribufion from the Province of Alberta and the Corporation to fund the criginal purchass
of the disposed assal. Proceeds refating to provincially funded assets are recorded as deferred
capital aflocations unlil a provincially approved capital expenditure is made, Proceads relating to
Corposation funded @ssets are reflected as income and a corresponding amount is transferred to
capital reserves undil a capisl expenditure to be financed from capital reserves iz approved by the
Board of Trustess.

Y L



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(k}

School Generated Funds

These financial statements include amounts arising from certain schood and student activiies which
are controlled and administered locally by each school but for which the Corporation is accountable.
Schoaol generaled fumds revenues are primarily generated fhrough fundraising actvibes, non-
inslructional fees and donatons and grants bo schools in support of exdra-cumcular activities, field trips
and egquipieant.

Financial Instruments

The Corporation's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, cash held by schools,
shor-term investments, accounts receivable, long-lerm investrments, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, and long-term liabildes which include long-term debl and capital leases. Unless otherwise
stated in Motes 3, 11 and 12, which are determined by market comparisons, the fair values of these
fmancial instruments approximata their camying values.

There are no financial assels on the balance sheslt designaled as avadable-for-zale or held-to-
maturity. Cash and cash equivalents, cash held by schools and short-term imvestments are classifiad
as held-for- frading.  All other financial assets are classhed as lcans or receivables and are accounted
far on an amodized cost basis, Al finencial Eabilities are classified as ather financial liabies and ane
accounted for on an amorhized cosl basis.

Transaction costs and relaled cash flow impacts are ncluded m the fair value assessment of each
financial assel  Transaction costs that are divectly attributable to the acguisition of other financial
fhiakalities are not considared significant and are expensed when incurmad

The Corporation has a comprehensive rigk management framework o monior, evaluate and manage
the principal risks assumed with financial instruments. The risks that arse from transacting financial
instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk. Price rsk arses from changes in interest
rates, foreign currency exchange rates and market prices. The Corporalion does nol use denvalve
financial instruments 0 aler the effects of these risks, It is administration’s ocpinion that the
Corporation is not exposed to significant inferest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial
instruments.

The Corporation has elected o apply the scope prowvisions of paragraph 3855 074 such that the
Corporation wil nod apply the reguirements of Seclion 3355 io contracts for the purchase or sale af
nan-financial items and any embedded dervatives within thess types of contracts or those embedded
dervatives that may exist within lease or insurance confracts. In eddition, the Corporation has elected
to not adopd “Financial [nstrements = Disclesures” and “Financial Instruments = Presenfation.” The
Corporation does not invest in or use derivalive financial instruments, Derivatives may be embedded
o other financial instrurmends (e “host msbrument”) or olher contracts {the "host contract™), The
Caorporation has not identified embedded derivatives in the host confracts

12

=
.
=M



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
MOTES TO ALEERTA EDUCATION FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(1

Pensions and Employee Future Benefits Plans

The Corparation participates in a number of defined bensfit plans to provide pension, retirement and
healhcare benafits 1o s emplovess.

The Comporation's cerificated emplovees are required io coniribule 1o the Alberta Teachers'
Refirement Fund, & muBi-employver pension plan.  This defined benefit pension plan s the
responsibility of the Province of Alberta and these employves members. Accordgingly, no dsclosune
has been made in these financial statements relating to the effects of participaiion in the paension plan
by the Corparation’s cerilicatad employass

The Corporation and fs non-cerificated employees participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan
CLAPPT), & muli-emplover pension plan,  Pension costs of LAPP included in these financial
staternants comprise the cost of employer contributions for current service of panicipating employees
during the year {refer fo Mote 9)

The Corporalion estabkshed a Supplemental Integrated Pension Plan [(*SiIPFP°} far certam members of
senigd administration comprised of both a registered and non-registered porbion. The plan provides a
supplement to the LAPP or Alberta Teachers' Retirement Fund (as appropriate) to provide an annual
refirement benefit of 2% of total earnings. The cost of this SiPP is sponsored by the Corporation and
i5 actuarially determined using the projected benefit method prorated on service and managermant's
best estimate of expected salary and benefil escalation, retirement ages of employees and plan
invastment performance. Actuarial valuglions of this plan coour annually as af August 31

The Corporation provides a Supplementary Retirement Plan {"SRP") for certain samor employees of
the Corporation, based on approved ferms and conditions of the plan. The plan provides for annual
contributions of 10% of the employee's salary which is above the LAPP or Aberia Teachers'
Retirament Fund pensicnable earmings cap

The Corporation has a number of cther defined benefit plans providing post-empleyment and post-
retirement benefits for supplementary health care, dental care, life insurance and retiring allowances
(collectively "Post-Retirement and Fost-Employment Benefils Plans™). These plans are not fundad by
separalely designated plan assets. For these plans, the Corporation accrues its obligations, and
expenses the related costs, in accordance with the terms of the varous collective agresments and
other contracts of employment. The cost of employee future benefits earned by employees is
actuarially defermined using the projecied benefit method pro-rated on service and managemant’s
best estimate of salary escalation, retirement ages of emplovess, and expected provincial amd
supplementary health care costs and denial care cosis, The actuanally delermined benefit cbligation
from the initial application of this policy i being amordized over the average remaining service penod
of emplovess aclive alt September 1, 2000, the beginning of the fiscal year in which this policy was
implemented. The balance of any unrecognized net plan experience, including changes in actuarial
basis, in excess of 10% of the grealer of the actuarial benefil obligation and the markat value of plan
assels is amortized over the avesage remaming senvice lifetime of the active members as of the
applicable date. When changes to employes fulure benefit plans are negoliated, the related financial
impacts are recognized when an agreement has been reached by the Corporation and the applicable
group of employees. Effective January 1, 2011, all employvess pay 100% of the post-retirermant
benafit premium costs The most recent actuarial valuation of post-retirement and post-employment
benefil plans was a5 of August 21, 2008, The next required vakluation will be as of Awsgust 31, 2012

13



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
{m) Future Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2012, all Gavernment controlled not-for-profit crganizations ("GNFPOs") will be
required to follow aither the CICA Public Sector Accounting Handbook ("P5A Handbook™), including
Sachons PS 4200 to P3 4270 or, alternalively, the CICA PSA Handbook withou Seclions PS 4200 to
FS 4270, The Alberta Treasury Board requires that the Corporation adopt the current public sector
accounding standards without reference o the not-for-profit standards Sections PS 4200 o PS 4270
effective for the yvear ending August 31, 2013 with retrospeciive application and restatemeant for the
comparative year ending August 31, 2012,

The Corporation s curmently assessing the impacs of the converson, inchluding ideniifying the key

differences, developing PSA accounting pobces and new financial sistement disclosures. The
Caorporation wall continue 1o monilor the devedopment of standards.

" 3 17



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUGUST 31, 2011

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND BANK INDEBTEDMESS
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUGUST 31, 2011

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND BEANK INDEETEDNESS (continued)

General Operating and Other Bank Indebiedness

The Carporation maintains a ling of credit with 3% borrowing rate that has been negotizted with s banker
for general operating purposes, The line of credit is secured against the Corporation’s accounts recejvable
st bank prime rate. At August 31, 2011, no amount has been drawn against the Corporation’s general

operating line of credit.

Yields on current shod-lerm and leng-tem investments reflect the cash value of all dividends, interest or
ather paymenis recenved or receivable on active invesiment instruments. These yields do nol include any
realized or unrealized capital gaing aof the underlying market values of the instrument, At August 31, 2011

the yields on these investments were as follows:

2o ) 2010
Effective or Fair WValue E fezizbive: cr Fair Walue
Fair Walue Fair valus
Y izl 't ield o
Short-Term Imeslments
Morey BMarket Inesimeants 0. 95% 48 521,684 0.7E% 79,966,284
Man-Registersd Mutual Funds 2. 215 549 144 2.51% E15. 401
[EIFF)
Long-Term wvesiments
Money Market Inveatments 0.93% AR5 744 0LG1% 63 441
Bond Ly
God of Canada 1.42%: 17,752, 06T 1.61% 21,538,085
Prosdncial 2.30% SE3, 022 Z.85% 588,114
Municipal 1.67%: 2,140 425 2.16% 2,132,050
Conporate 2.69% 1,785,802 1. 74% 32 454 980
Canadian equilies 2.81% B, 783 440 3015 ¥.857 960
U5 equity poaled funds 1. 500% § Bt W54 1.85% 5401 502
Infemaiinnal eguity pooled fands 3. 30 7.A04 678 3. 34% B.921.053

Supplemantary Cash Flow Informaticn

During the year ended August 21, 2011, cash interest paid on school building debenture dabl and other datd
amounted to $2,148,054 (2010 - 2 B56,268) and cash inlerest eamed {operaling and capifal) and dividends
received on invesiments totalled 34 047 030 (2010 - 31,835, 884].
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGLUST 31, 2011

4. CASH HELD BY SCHOOLS

Changes in cash held by schoois are as follows;

2011 2D
Sources of school generated funds-
Fundralsing activties 3 11, 448081 § 510,856,220
Mon-instructional fees and charges 17,805 344 17,000,131
Donations and grants to schooks 6,118 320 6. 780,110
Other income ____28a4u8 27,556
Total additions o school generated funds % 35,358 232 a4, 70 02T
Application of school generaied funds:
Fundraising activties (14,234 T15) (17,358 310
Fessicharges {son-instructional) — related expenses (12,058 403 (12,240, 537
Donations and grants 1o schools = related expensas 1BT0,07E) {1,042 082)
Other — related expanses: bank charges {EG,154) [81,931)
Extra-curmcular activiliss 14,03 506 4276121
Fiald trips 11,165, 778) 11,2808,112)
Equiprnant {1,132 630) {1,352 B75)
Taotal application of scheol generated funds % (3580272 % (37 650,8973)
Med increasef{decreasa) of school gonerated funds for the year % 1,807 960 % {2,045 051)
Cash balance, beginning of year 11,887 BET 14,6534 533
Cash balance, and of year % 13,495 547 % 11,687,567
5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AMD PREPAID EXPENSES
2011 2010
Alpera Education operating grants 3 4 36,495 F 300, 563
Gowernment of Alberda capital grarmls 10, 14 B2 05 335
Debentura interest grants 1,028 551 1,300,105
Sehool junsdictions and other govermments 2,997 280 1,963,671
Clher accounts receivable 8,320 453 8,072 5857
Prepaid edpansas 7,165 3848 4 613723

3 EE.MEE 3 17,202 974
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUGUST 31, 2011

6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Eguipmsant -
Consirstion Com el r
In Progross Hardwaro & THhaer Terkad fumg. 31, | Tetal Aug. 31,
Land Bulldings Eselidings Software Equipment W 2011 .
Fitimnated Leedil Be P AR [+ 0 Yirars G Y ears 5= 13 Yasrs
Hizeorical ook = ¥
| Seplomber 1, 2000 $ABOAEIT| 243 T17046|  S4s0578|  S7RTiEO46|  E025486cE|  STIGTTIR) $1.055.005020] EAaR330aTI
Ediions ol _S04a3 857 areaoos|  w345200]  apeds|  7eovatial  azesonara)
Translers in fou) o reEae R 4, By FuF 74,432 a ¥ L] ol
Luss disposals inchading
W -1 %8 0906} ] 15,168 458} ol pTendnzy)  dvTe|  (Faeeeen| 43278552
Sougued 31, 2077 B ITnT T | T inenaaal sigATIAR|  Frenzars] §9 23T AT am
peumulated
Jll'ﬂ ortizagion
Laplemtar 1, 2010 1 £ T.A3LE62] 5 AT TDESA| 5 6d 044 366 E JG00.TR1| 5462587 151 5431, 700,154
Aotz atinn s« pame £, 273 837 2 BBH S5 FAIET '-Ei L W] 41 35018 A, 206 457
Tranafors in cul} o 1] 1) a il o
Ellsct ol dinpanals [ :lli.-ﬂ':.'g-] 1) i1 T A0 | 150208 { . B20.018; TR At
A gt 31,2011 Gace f7e cad | BE ETE BF TR E“““""'"-"‘-"l Fesi et 181
[Mat Book Yalus 25 Augus=i i L et o
[an grrnran) B LTTRaS| EReiEdrogi) El4ced Bid)

As of August 31, 2011, the Caorporation had recorded an asset retirement obligation of 31,644,140 (2010 -
£1,644, 1400 for the estimaled costs of removing and disposing of ashestos in thaose schools and other
buildings approved by the Board for disposition,

Az of August 31, 2001, costs of 331,465,587 (2010 - 3162 253 .297) incurred by Alberds Education on
behalf of 1he Corporation was recognized as capital assets as the projects were complete and the titles of

the assets were fransferred 1o the Corporation

As aof August 31, 2011, Alberta Education has confirmed that costs of 363,964,893 related to the ASAP (I
F3 project have baen incurred,  Consistent with prior years, this amount will nod be recorded as a capital
assal acquisition until the project is substantially complete and title has transterred to the Corporation

As af August 31, 2011, Land and Buildings with a net book value of 33,124,725 (2010 - §3,540,324) was
approved by the Board for dispasition, which is deemed as held-for-sale.
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CALGARY BEOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2041 2010
Salanes and benefits 3 35156520 5 30,040, 709
Depenture infersst 1,086, 767 1,300,221
Federal govemment £71,000 TA0,407
Conlractor payabiles 14,215,452 3,561,952
Dederred capital allacations i@, 141,231 23,056, 154
Other accounts payable 9,615,250 15,249, 114
Other accrusd liabilites 8577119 T, 745 837

= ToE06569 3 84 Bad 434

8. DEFERRED REVENUE

AL OEDLGT: 1,00 {DEDHLEET)
SOURCE AND GRANT OR FLND TYPE DHEFERRED 200011 20129 pabp Ltk iR L ] DEFERRED
REY EMUE Ln:.:riunu FundalPeaticted Funds| Agjusiments FEYV EMLE
ue Fece lved! Exp=nded ar Returmed EL T
Aug. 31, 2010  Receivable fPaid ¢ Payable| Funds A E, 2011
Alieria Bducation Resiricied Operational Funding: |
- A berta irietive for School ':E.'.";"'"” 13 E '!-E;:.:a.é"; = 13785885 | E (15080301} 3 - 3 2380540
ChRigran and Yool woilh Conmokes Mosds [ 5 Lr 5 - ] 5
Frarcophons Shoidsn] Heath Swll:ﬂu.;- -:-_ g N g X 3 = g
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
MOTES TO ALEERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGLUST 31, 2011

9. PENSIONS/EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

(a}

(b)

(c)

(d)

Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP)

The Corporalion’s nel pension expense of LAPP for the wear amounts to 515297145 (2040 -
$13,916,955).

Supplemental Integrated Pension Plan (SiPP)

The Corporation's net penson expense for the registered portion of SiPP for the year was 356,116
(2010 <537 16T). The net pension expense for the non-registered porbion was 3215669 (20140 -
$149,850). The total liability for the SiPP at August 31, 2011 is $393,994 (2010 - $175.326),
Supplementary Retirement Plan (SRP)

The total liabilty for the SREP at August 31, 2017 is 3131955 (2040 - $156,843)

Post-Retirement and Post-Employment Benefits Plans

Changes in Projected Benefits Obligation

The following lable prowides the plans' change in Accrued Benefil Obligabon (8BO") for the vear
anded August 31

2011 2010
Bersalil cidigation, beginning of year % 30 263, 000 ¥ 32,418,000
Senice cost fdE 000 g45,000
Interesi cost 1,355 000 1,574,000
Benefiis payrents (4,152, 000) (4, 7565, 000)
Actuarial sses 2073000 182, 0
Benefit obligation, end of year 5 ISEl.E-ﬂ?.D.’.‘lEI - SD.EESLDI}D

To date, 518,570,000 {2010 = 315,751,000) has bean accrued i the Corporate’s financial stalemenls
as an acorued benefil obligation

Plan Funded Status

Tha fallewing takble provides the plans’ funded status as of August 31, 2011 and 2070:

2011 2010
Benefil obligation, end of year % A0, 387,000 5 A0 263,000

The Corporation does nol fund s post-relvement plans {see accounting policy Mote  2{0).
Accordingly, the plans held no assefs af August 31, 2011 and 2010,

.-';'-"
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

9. PENSIONS/EMPLOYEE FUTURE BEMNEFITS (continued)
(d) Post-Retirement and Post-Employment Benefits Plans [continued)

Components of Net Periodic Post - Retirement Benefit Cost

The net perod benefits cost for pension plans includes the following components for the year

ended August 31;

2011 2010
Camrent penod serdss cost g 45,000 3 B4l 5, 000
Interest cost 1,365,000 1,574 D00
Aciuarial loszes 2073000 T8 OO0
Amortizalion of transitionsl chligation BE7, 000 GBT, 000
Difference batwaan acteal and recognized past sendae {672, 000) (B2 D00
Dafference batwaen actieal and recognized gains n year {1,288, 000} TET 000
el Pariod Benafils Cost 5 3,013,600 ¥ 3227 (D

The indeal trangitional chligation of 335,664,263 al September 1, 2000 & being amortized over the
expected averags remaining senice panod of tha employes growp, which was estimated to be 12
years, of which 1 year remaing, The unamorized fransitional obligation of $1,371,000 on
Saptember 1, 2010 has been reducad furthar by 5687 000 during 2011 to 3684 000 fo reflact the
change in the accrued benefit abligation to employes groups, and the annual amortization of the
remainireg initizl transiticnal cbligation.

Agsumptions
The significant acluarial assumplions adopted in measuring the Corporaton’'s employes future

benefd obligation (based on a weighted average assumption of the varous plans as of August 31
2011} and comparative pricr vear are as follows

2011 2010
Amoriization mathod Straight-ling Stralght-ling
DHscount rata 4, AR 4. 70%
Supplementany health care B.0% fTor 1 year in 2011/2012 8.0% for 2 years in 201002011
cost escalation grading by 0.60% per year and 2071152012 grading by

thereafter to an wltimata 0.50% pear year thereafter

rate of 5,04 an ultirmate rate of 5.0%

Crenvial care cost escalalion 4.0% per year A0 per year
Prosincial healih care oosl escakation Nol applcable Med applicaibe
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 21, 2011

10. UNAMORTIZED CAPITAL ALLOCATIONS

Changes in deferred capital grants are as foflows:

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 553,158,805 $ 382,541,539
Debenture principal repaid by Alberta Finance 4,450,174 5,249 490
Capital assets funded by Albera Infrastruciure
and Alk=rta Education 53,734,140 183,907, 7&62
Capital allocations amodized {0 newenues (23,751,314} {18,539, 95858)
Balance, end of year 5§ 5B7,621675 § 553,158,805

11. CAPITAL LEASES

Capital leases are approved by the Minister of Education for imternally financed projects. All capital leases

are secured by identified assets of the Corporation (restricted cashl As of August 31, 2011, capital kzase
abligations pertaining o the Corporation are as summarnzed below:

2011 2010
Finance confracts, secured by certain equipment at
interest rates ranging from 2 £4% - 4 48%,
repayable in annual installments of 3324,556
including interest, maluring Seplember 2014, 3 1408221 3 1.305% 361
Financa conlracts, secured by cerain building
components atinteresi rales ranging o 3.7 5%
4 24%, repavaile in annual installments of
546,518 including interesl, matering Seplamber
2014 through August 2013 3137315 3,542 415
Finance confracts, secured by carain bulkding
com ponents al interest rales ranging from 2. 70% -
3.1%%, repavable in annual installments of
54 804 B45 including inlerest, maturning August
2016 37583217 21,142,169
41,825,753 26,070,945
Less: Curment porion 8220,023) 2581 452)

3 31,906,730 3 21,306 493

22 8
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

11. CAPITAL LEASES (continued)
Minimum kease payments for the future vears are as follows:

Mirimum lease

payments
22 ¥ 10,745, 568
2013 4,952, 217
2014 4,962,218
2015 4,820, 085
2016 47235776
Therealer 16, 542,977
Total paymanis 4i5, 338, 152
Amount pertaming o ntsres (5,012 408
Balance al abligatan ] 41,825,753

12. LONG-TERM DEET

Long-term debt includes debenturas for the acquisdion of school buildings funded direcily by Alberta
Education {pre-1995). Those debentures were issued for pericds of 15, 20 or 25 years in those years prior
to 1985 when the Corporation had lecal taxing authonty, at interest rates ranging from 7.38% -11.75%, and
maturity at various dates o 2020, Fair value of this debf iz 521,930,320 (2010 - 325,314, 988) which i
calculaied using a discount rate of 235%, which reflects the average yield on high quality long-temm
corporate bonds al August 31, 2011, All debenture principle and interest payments are fully guarantaed by
the Province of Alberta.

2011 2010

Debentures autstanding ] 17322047 % 21.802.2%)
Less: Currant portion (3, BA7 344} (4,480, 173}
$ 13464703 $ 17,322,047

Sinimurn principal repayments of debentures based on the terms above ars as follows:

Principal

P ay ment

2012 3 3.857,344
a3 3,245,796
2014 2. 793,147
2015 2,514 515
201G 1,974, 500
Themaiter 2,935 855
Total 17,322,047

23

e
g



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

13. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The estimated asset retirement obligation of 51,644, 410 as at August 31, 2011 remained the same from
August 31, 2010, as there wese no changes in the estimated building assets approved for disposition by the
Corparation between 2010 and 2011, An interest rate of 5.35% is applicable to discount expected cash
flows for calculation of the initial chligation and a rate of 4.35% would be applicable for accretion of the
ablgation.

The foflowing table summarizes the changes in the asset retirement abligations:

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year 2 1644740 5 1,725,700
Ohligations discharged {81,5a60)
Balance, end of year % 1,644,140 5 1 B4 140

The Corporation has not recorded an assel refirement obligation for the estimated cosis of restoring cerain
schools that may have ashastos as the Corporation is unable to determine the value of this lability as all
lpcations and amounts of asbesios are unknown

14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

{a) From vyear to year, legal actions are brought against the Corporabion in the normal course of
oparations. Managemeni believes that the ultimate resolution of claims presenily oulstanding are ol
expected to be significant to the overall financial position of the Corporation.

{b) The Corporation has confractual commiiments to complate major capital projects refating to school
buildings and Administrative sies. As at August 31, 2011, these outstanding confractual obligations
amount to $11,190,000 (2000 - F26,762.000), wih 3510527000 o be furded by Alberta
Infrastructure/Education and 563,000 by the Corporation.

(e} Ta the extent the Corporation terminates certain contractual commitments for convenience under
certain service and develcpment management agreement. the Cosporation woukd incur costs,
depending on the date of termination, of bebween 3,500,000 and 38,800,000,

{d) The Corporation has entered into various operating lease agreements for office spaces that expire
beyond March 31, 2031 Fulure minimum annual lease payments and operating paymenis {including
parking) under these keases, including provisions for renswals, are as follows:

Mipimwn Oparating

Leasspayment  Costs ____Total

2012 % 0B75.079 & 2,420,247 § 12085, 326
2013 B 822 940 2,451,710 12.274 B&Q
2014 5,786, a02 2,483,582 12,280,484
2015 10,062, 544 2,515,863 12,568 413
2016 5,848 663 2,548 575 12,357.2358
Tharraafter 171,434,875 40,859,415 212,334,387
fotal & 220831103 & £3,319,399 5 273,950,502

Leage expensa during he year amounded o 54,980,000 (2010 - §342 600},



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
MOTES TQO ALEERTA EDUCATION FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

14. CONTIMGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

(e} The Corporation has entered into & service agreement related o certain payroll and human resources

agministration processes expinng October 16, 2015, Future minemum annual payments under this
commiament are:

himnimum
EEY mMEents
2012 3 8,853, 021
2013 5,060,634
2014 9,233,938
2015 9,410, 353
<016 o 1,179,057
5 a7, 747, 003

(f} Effeciive Zeptember 1, 2006, the Corporation enfered info a Master Transportation Agreement wilh

Southland Transporiation Ltd. and First Sledent Canada for the provision of student school bus
transportation services. The indial term of the agreement is ten years (expinng August 31, 2018 and
the Corporation may renew the agreement for two additional periods of five years each. Each year
during the term, the Corporalion enters into a Yeary Service Agreement with each carrier, outlining
the services to be provided, the applicable daily base rate and all other anticipated feas and chargas
under the agreameant.

{g) Effeclive January 1, 2010, ihe Corporation entered info 3 one yvear fixed pnce natural gas supply

agreament of a certain price for a majporly of ks otal annual naiural gas consuemption, z2nd this
agreement was 1o expire on December 31, 2010, but was previcusly renewed for one additional year
and will expire on December 31, 2011, During 2011, the Corporation further extended the agreement
for one additional vear which will now expire December 31, 2012,

(h) Effective July 31, 2007, the Corporation entered indo a fixed electricity supply agreement of & ceriain

i}

U

price for el of s eleciricdy consumptlion from January 1, 2002 o December 31, 2012 This
agreement has been extended by two additional years and will expire Dacember 31, 2014,

Effective July 1, 2007, the Corporation entered into a Committed Retainer Legal Services Agreement
of & cerain price, with a cne year evaluation stage and the provision for up to a four year extension
pericd, upon mutual agreement of both parties, to June 30, 2012

Effective June, 2011, the Corporation entered info a 5 year contract with Telus Corporation for all
phone sanices.

" § 28



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

15. NET ASSETS

The components of the Corporation's net assals of $148,894,712 as at August 31, 20171 are described

balow:

{a) Accumulated Operating Surplus

i

Az al Apgust 31, 2001, the Corporation has an accumulated coerating surplus of 325,281,534 (2010 -
234,009 206) comprised of the follnwing:

Unrestricted Net Assels

Linrestricted cperaling surplus represents the aggregation of successwe years' anhual operating
surplsas,

For the vear ended August 31, 2001, the Corporation’s operating defict was §1,316,412 (2010 -
surphus of 3532 601), and the Corporaftion has unrestricted net assets of 32184011 {2010 -
%3,500,423).

Designated Operating Funds and Operating Reserves

Where certain instructional initiatives are planned or in progress, and consistent with prior years, the
Corporation has designaled or resincied operating funds for specific purposes. Dperaling resernves
have been established for specific program requirements, to stabilize annual fee rates or 1o offset
ihe cost of programs and sarvices in future years. These fund dasignabons and resensas have
bean established consistent with Provincial legislation and by Board of Trustees’ resolution and will
be applied to finance future axpenses in accordance with the specific requirements of each of these
resalutions.

Diperating funds have been designated by the Board of Trusteas for the following purposes

2011 2010

Schood decentralized budgeis 3 5482 065 5 4,054,074
Inatructional and sensce Uil iibisdnees 2672 001 2 499 BE09
3 8 154 067 $ 7. 5E3 B0

Operating reserves have been established by the Board of Trustees for the following purposes

2011 2010
Continuing Education Fee Stabilization (1) 5 1,502 %42 5 1,312,869
Umrealized Invesimant GainsfLasses (2) 3032178 1,749,555
Liility Expense Stabihzation 3,370,000 4 BT0, 000
Snow Remowsl Budget Stabilization 200,000 200,000
Administirative Systems Renewal 2248 336 032 335
Czaneral Inatruction 1,000,000 3, GO0, D00
Flacal Stability 2,000,000 5 000, GO
Syatemn Transformalicn 1, 500, 000 1,500 000

5 14,8943 456 5 22,954 900

(1)Restricied operating resene for Adull Education purposes only, and in accordance with Albera Education
reporting guidelires, cannot e used = support of K-12 educetional programs

(2 |Resticted operaling ressres bor unrealeed gaingllosses anly, which resel from changaes @ the far market
wihee of hedd-for-iredng financial nstrumsants
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

15, NET ASSETS {continued)

(b)

{c)

Accumulated Operating Surplus (continued)

As at August 31, 2011, the Board of Trustees approved the use of 53,352,000 of the Utility Expensa
Stabilization Fee Reserva, 5200000 of the Snow Removal Reserve, $1.000,000 of the General
Instruction Resersa, 32,000,000 of the Fiscal Slability Reserve, 32,248,000 of the Adminsiratve
Systems Renewal Reserve, and 31,500,000 of the System Transformation Reserve to support the
201112 Operating Budget The Board has alsc spproved the use of 52 500000 of School
decantralized budgets, 32,500,000 of Service Unit Designated Funds, and 51,000,000 of Unresiricled
Met Asssts in support of the 2011712 Operaling Budget, Subseguent to the Board of Trustees'
approval of the budget, the Provinee of Alberta commifted additicnal funds 1o the CBE. It iz expectad
that these varicus resarves may not b= drawn down in 201112 to the same amounis depending on
final budget adjusiment decisions

Capital Reserves and Designated Capital Funds

The Corporation's capial reserves and designated capital funds are established by Board of Trusiess'
resalution and in accordance with Provincial regulation, and are funded from proceeds on disposals of
capital assets, provision from operaling funds, or from lease revenues. To date, the following capital
reserves and designated capital funds have been established:

2011 a0
Land, Buildings and Equipmeant 3 B.7o0EE0D 5 B, 701, 307
Seheol Program Modemizaticn 2,270,772 2,270,772
Lemsed School Buildings 2,000,000 2,000,000
Chimook Learning Senices Relocatan 1,200 GO0 7,400, Q00
Funds desigraled for approwesd caplal projects 11,544 9953 5,314,483

3 25,866,445 & 19,688 652

These resernses and designaied funds are o be spplied o finance fwlure capdal expendiures in
accordance with the specific reguirements of each Board resclution.  Funds may be committed from
these resenses or designated amounis by the Board of Trustess from time fo time o permit the
compdletion of approved capital projects. As at August 31, 2011, the Beard of Trustees has approved
the use of $11,544,053 of these funds for cerlain capital projecis leaving $14,422 000 uncommitied
far future capial projects,

Investment In Capital Azsets

Investment in capital assets represents the Corporation’s net investmenl of operating funds thal have
been used from fime to tme to purchase building improvements, capital equipmeni and fechnology
infrastructure t suppen the general operating activities of the Corporation.  As of August 31, 2011,
the Corporation has $28,645,553 invested in capilal asseds (2010 - 5101 658 555)

L
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
WOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUGUST 31, 2011

16. RELATED PARTIES

{a)

Province of Alberta and economic dependence

The Corporation is economically dependent upon the Government of the Province of Albarta, since
the viability of s on-going operations depends on grands and conlributions from Alberta Education
and oihar provincial minisiries.

Effective 2005/06, scheal jurisdictions have been deemed to be controlled by the Government of
Alberta according to criteria set out in the Canadian Instituie of Charered Accountants Public Sector
Accounting Standards Section 1300, Government Reportng Entity. Al entiies consolidated or
agcounted for on @ modified equily basis in the accounts of the Government of Alberta are now
considered related parties of school junsdictions for financial reporting purposes.  These ncludge
governmeni depariments, health auihorities, posi-secondary institutions and all school jurisdictions in
Albarta

Azsels, habilities and ransactions of the Corporation that relate o the Governmend of Alberta are as
fallewws

201012011 fegals (A
ool oF net
el bl
waiLE) Lkl it RagrLpes Exfanses
Government af Al ria:
Educatinn 3 16,220, 852 45 331 687 032,487 370 2,224,740
Finance - : 1,824,600
Human Resourcess Erglayrment X13,256
Crihgr Gow of AB Deparmenls aE4.410
Ortherr:
Healkh Aulnosies - 47,0335 -
Ciher Albara schodl jurisdiciians - - 7551, 403 141 651
Qihar related panies - TEL AN - 15257 145
TOTAL 2044011 £ 0,816, 262 A7 102 145 gl AE1,629 17,682, 548
TOTAL 200410 L] 3,054,544 EEE‘EE- R BB, 005, 313 1B, 265,576
28
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

16. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

(B

(e}

(d}

EducationiMatters

EducaticnMatiers (ihe "Foundation’} was established in 2003 by the Corporation under a trust
indenture.  The Corporation’s Board of Trustees appoinis the Gowvernors of the Foundation. The
Corporalion’s Truslees canned hold a majonty of the Governor positions, The Foundation promates
activities thal support public education for the benefit of Calgary's students,

The Foundaticn = not consobdaled inte these financial statermenis. The resources heid by the
Foundation ara not necessarily limited for use by the Corporation.  Sedected financial information for
tha Foundation for the vear ended August 31, 2011 5 as foliows:

2011 2010

(unacsdibed) [Lenausdites)

Total assets § 2,830,000 § 2,481,000
Total liabilities {13,000} {18, 000)
MNet assels § 2917000 §  2.463,000

Fund balances hald by the Foundation:

Flowy through funds F 598, 000 242, 000
Endowment funds 1,808, 000 1,495, 000
Cperating funds 510,000 B2, DO
F__2MMT000 5 2463 000

Renanues (1) 2,02, 000 1,616, 000
Expensas {2) (1,578,000 i1, 882, 000}
Excess of revenuas cEr expanses ] 434,000 5 155 000

(1} Rewenues include fimancial suppart from the Corporalion of 750,000 (2010 - 750,000
(2} Expenses paid to the Corporation amount 1o 519,313 (2010 - 518,547}, approved Grant
disbursaments i CBE Schoals and Programs amount o 3573, 748 (2010 - $610, 448

The Urban Schoals Insurance Consortium

The Corporation is a member of The Urban Schools Insurance Consortiumn {USIC), which facilitates
the placement of property and lisbilty insurance coverage for thirleen schood jurisdichions througkout
the Province of Alberta. Amounts are paid by each of the members to the consortium to pay for
MEUrANCe premiums on policy renewals and fo self-ingure a porion of each member's rsk exposura
The Corporation's share of the accumulated and unencumberad consortium funds a5 at August 31,
2011 was 32,441 836 (2010 - 52,272 552}, This amouni has not been recognized in the Corporation's
financial staterments, a3 accumulated consorium funds are payable only upon membership
termiration or dissclution of the consartium,

Other fundraising groups and associations

Varous parent groups, including societes and ather associations, solicit donations and undertake
fundraising actvibies o provide operabing and capital donations io furiher the objectives of the
Corporaton.  The financial information of these groups is not consclidated in these financial
statements as the Corporation has no controd, signficant influence or economic inferests in any of
those entilies

e g
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO ALBERTA EDUCATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

17. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

Effective September 1, 2008, the Corporatian implementad new capital disclosurs requiremeants per Section
1535 of the CICA Handbook.

In tha shoel term, the Corporation’s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the Corporation's
financial abifity to continue to deliver aducation; and in the long-erm, the Corporation aims to plan and build
financial and sufficient physical capacity to mest future needs for the Corporation’s educalion programs and
BEMICES.

Tha Corparation defines its capital as the amounts included in net assets. The Corporation’s objective
when managing its capital is to safeguard the ability to conlinue as a going concern so that it can continwe
to provide an array of educational services to its complex and diverse student population.

In order to facilitate the management of its capidal requirements, the Corporation prepares annual capital
and operating budgets that are updated as necessary, depending on various factors, including the markes
valuation of the investments and general industry conditions. The annual budgets are approvad by the
Board of Trustees

The majarity of the Corporation's operating funds are received from Alberta Education which are genarally
paid avery month, As & result, significantly less working capital is required. The Corporatson mombors ils
working capital and cash flows against its forecasts.

A portion of the capital funding is restricted in that the Corporation is required 1o receive approval from the
Minister of Education for draws against any amount in which the Provincial Depatmeant of Educahaon has an
inerest.  In addition, the Corporation has reslicted a portion of it short-lerm cash for specific capital
projects and specific lease payment obkgations. The Corporation has inlermnal control processas primaniy
thraugh its Administrative Regulabons, to ensure that the restrictions are met prior Lo the wilization of hese
resources. The Corporalion has been in complance with these restrictions throughout the year

The Corporation has leveraged is excess short-term cash balances in suppon of energy retrafit projects in
schools and in support of the Dr. Car Safran Modernizafion project throwgh capilal leasing arrangements in
arder 1o minimize incremental borrowing costs. In addibon, in 200810 the Corporation, in colaboration with
iz external investmanl advisor, invested 230 million of shor-term cash in high guality bonds of varying
duration to enhanca ds investmeant income stream. Howevar, duning 2010011, the Corporation disposed af
£14,5 milbon of those securifies in support of cash flow requirements for the year

The Corporation sats the amount of internally restricted funds in proportion e risk. manages the net assat

structure and makes adjustments 1o 4 in ight of changes in economic condifions and the nsk characterstics
of the underlying assals.

18. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain 2010 amounts have been reclassified where necessary to conform 1o the corrent wear's
presentation

S0
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18, REMUNERATION AND MOMETARY INCENTIVES

Hegotiated | Performance
Board Wem bers: FTE Femuneration | Banalita i Allowances| Bonuses | ERPs ( Chher| EXpeisas »
Char E:II] E19 E0§ B0} £ e Hr £y
v T e
Fat Cochrang 1.0 856,674 56.860 saeoof S v R U dive S|
CHher meThers i i e e 5
Ly F!‘:{'EI,I.'IDI'I 1.0 51,856 EE.BiH 3 E00 52 507
Caral Bazinel 1% seain] B 53600 53420
Gardon Oirks . 5,031 1,314 SEEZ| 1 453,300 a0
Pamala King 0 Ms618] R8I 33 600 $361
Gapage Lane & 1 sepinl  sansal  sasoo sl 53,445
aren Knxcaka 02 37,531 EETY ] 30
Shella Taylor o8 s:0e7| 48092 06| = 5450
Jay Bawen-Eye 0.8 sEnol  gmoon 51045 i 52,945
[+ D ED o 30
o £ 51 0 2.1
Subdotal 7o a1t | gesove|  sesarr $24.3 §76,988
Chiel Superntandent * | |
[tsom dorrmon 0] swasss)  swmest]  $15me 50 0] 52,380
Chief Fnancial C¥loer |l |
| Desborat Meyers 10 sasocco|  gsesi2 §7.000 81 $0]  s8.567
Gorporale Secretay i S
Bl Pkt 1.0 5305, 225 £52,724] 57 000 50 30 $6.727
!
e . ! L =
CerHlicaed teachars * 50040 | §530 815673 S5 06 081)  $a8000 5 50|
Bn-cerif caled - plhar .88 ‘f_ BT, M3 807 | 337, 1EZ.682 g TE-B L1 !1_#35_-*‘:"?[
TGTALS el srovoeoaed | seesveas] 10244 0]  s180870]

blate 1 Thes bearald coed For e above named cortificalag Chis! Superinfandan does nol eflect e Akers Taschers” Refinamant Fund (ATRF)
contrbulion mmade by A Bana Bducation on behat of the CHEn o around of 314,244 Far 2000007 {1$712.320 for 20010

Mole 2 Trhe beneld costs for the cemifaied Ssching slal do not reliect e Albeda Teachers' Relremen! Fund coninbuion made by Alberia
Edimation on behad of the CBE

Bole 3. Evpenses nckde (e rervbordament of Yavel subelonss, and oliver spproees e poneses, on bedther beral noperlomng the
respansibibes ol te naied goaikan
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LE

ALLOCATION OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES TO PROGRAMS - 201072011

Operations and
Malrenance of Board &
REVEMLUES ECs Grades 1-12 Schools & Sysiem Extorrnl
Ireedrisetian Instructicn Maintenance Shops| Transporiation | Sdminstration Sardces TOTAL
{1)_Albarta Education B34,500 37 A5 BE1 HTE £505, 142 FA8 i i TG T AR AR 13,500 10k 86 437,356
12 Orther - Govarmamiant - of Alberta £ ] B Bt 5 L] 0] 50 295,154
13y Federal Governmaent and First Mations §35.170 LA e ] 5] W 8234 51,200 B33 1,558,000
41 Dther Alberta school suthorities . 50 LT 5198045 Ba7 20 B35 RG 50 | ESEE
(5 Out of province authorities w 0 W W .15 i b=
(%] Alnn_r!_q_!'n'lunmpalnmmpmlnl tax lavias o &0 50 4 = 50 #
(71 Instruction resaurce faes BL1E T A7 330 804 5T 4 BT
(B}_Transportation fees-ECS B 15 14 B 153
|:Ell- Transportation fees-Grades 1 112 15 ] N2 £ G 12
(10} Dther sales and services 41, B4 ¥131.880,30 prf #1491 ITOANE LT LR B2 03T il
[11) Investment incoma 3 = B10, 18 50 iz, ma oah 11083755 55,370 24
(12} Gifts and donations w 51 30067 ] 50 T 526,720 $1,508 348
[131 Rental of l'ﬂnlllltluils jo] 5] HEAER 16 50 5108 A1 §1TAZTER 5T, 710553
[14:1 Grogs achonl Ennnmt-ud fq.nﬂi 50 X3 500,372 5 1l ] 50 £am g 21
115} Gaing on dispesal of capital assels m 1550 545,030 B 1] u e 53
|_1E:| Amartization of capital allocations b L 523,721,214 e = B34 TG A4
(17) Other revenue 0l % m = % [ =
[18) TOTAL REVEMUES 4 AR B0 STEE G0 L1402 76 e B35, D6 50 540,191 28 17 G516 1,040, F0 221
EXPEM2ES
RED Certificated salaries l FH AT IS BE08 294,142 51,312 1as 52,793,846 B3 BTT w38
{20} Cerilicated banafits - 1 ara 523 40584 sz 187 §351.926 25,300 917
21y Hon-cartificated :ml:rm.-r and wWiagas 9 243, TES 17 S8 40 T 530 2 34367 101 18, 258 BRE AT :-ruu;;
7%} Non.certificated benefits 2076516 822,126,015 $10.407 %48 s3 77 $2.290.707 e 236,656 514
23 BUE - TOTAL = po LR BEEC 3, 755 133, 5aT, 330 1 0 B 53,106 268 210 S B AR, Fi
124} Services. contracts and supplies §1 TREAED ) TR AR S OHLENT 535 351 138 EAE B IR 54 TPO,88T H0E, [ S
125} Gross school generated funds ] R 5T §33 500 372
{ﬁjfﬂmlﬂﬂ ol capital assHs & 517 A0 AR R 89 G5 S1LENN TAE LN M ]
127} Interest and charges [h 08 B H2 414858 52 1551 A1F Az 32,357 57 |
128} Lossaes on disposal uf-:aprul aggets B E) i} = B 50 ET)
{20 Other expensa 5 m ] ¥ 50 0 ¥
130} TE:.I F.ﬁl. EﬁEHEEE 31,051,708 STHE A7 ATE 18 508 Tt 6, ol B B4R T A58 oAz 51,258 B 244
131} DEFIGIENGT)
OVER EXFENSES L RN LT (53 AL RO} 5312008 (8, 455 21 380 #2562 P
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Schoal Jurisdiction Code: I0a0
SCHEDULE B
SCHOOL GENERATED FUMNDS (3GF) - 20102011
Unexpended SGF - Opening Balance August 39, 2090 mes 1 | 11 BT 50T
Sources of School Generated Funds: Groia SGF Aalnied Experane Wl SGF
Famd acdralien E11 448 081 14,254 713 153, 7B BEE
Tiudkani fees [nos-nsirucicnay [no 11 E17 05 A4k 17, 0UE Al %C 705 821
Conaions and granis # scroak 6,118,328 ZETO0TE %5 42E 250
{Hrer (d n|: F20 A58 ETENED TS0 k|
‘Wat Additiens to SGF 335 206 732 527006347 50,300,841 |
et SGE Avadlable e [ SR AT
Usas of Mot School Gonaratad Funds:
Exlri dia® A w TS b4 2015 508
Fael vigs - 1165778
Eﬁ-ﬂdnm*b_nﬁ g p et FLrchaan - 1,197 514 |
Total Usas of Nef SGF (e 3 - 26 501 03
|Unexpended SGF - Closing Balance August 31, 2091 moi= 2 [ siaassz47

LTS

1 I fran il e S

BCAFARES B CONe] a5 WS I N IESni AT e s, ngl TIGF

School Geneited Furds (S5EF) ame fundy cieid i i comiman iy for sudest acirties thal come undsr the coningd and responsitdky of school managsment
Thisi hnids e usualy colecied and rElained at the sovol for sxpendiunes paid al ine sohaol bl SEF doas nof s te Sty affer funds colecied & e sl
uf rernitieg by cemiral cifics and accannbnd 1o By cantial affca |ty rerlat, chpal ddaels purchoess, oic |

] B2 ol e Schoal Act [ rebited ko rednchoml iostee or mpangls - ossemasly
jaalbncis, restuscn reakatals i b of MrDo0RS, hasha, Sofman, i T

3 Fimia

a Liieaparada i SEF i5 reponied @ S0F et and SGF lebdbes e Sisiemsnt of Fiogncal Posdon

for CEIR

1 Tre sum o! ol relsied sopenean” wed Vol usse of et S0 in rapored me g echond gensimied fends” in e Stalement of Reenoes @ Eapenses
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Bohool Jurissdiction Code: ELEL)
ECHEDULE ©
OPERATIONS AND MAINTEMANCE OF SCHOOLS & MAINTENANCE SHOPS PROGRAM EXFENSE DETAILS - 2010i2011
ERpensed Tnaupperied
Uil I¥F & Fazikty Placning & BUN-TOTAL Bupzaned TOTAL
LPEMSES ‘Gugradial Kartanance and Madular Unil Dipsranans. B Critar Oyenasang & Capkal & Daost Dparadiane and
Tl el Mueloeatiang dstration Rapeaxen Mairbananca Aersices Wain
$:nﬂ|'rj|'|ﬂ|ﬂ galarkie and wagas %37 354 175 0 SR 05 1513 054 53,104 Hi e sy 547,559 364 $a37. 0. M54
ncarbficated berafts 85 384 BT §2 700 63 §111 T4 8 Ep 81,344 £51 £10.507 557 B0 597 B5Y
| Bashsslilad e 334 478 965 11,551,118 $h44 705 B, 163,502 B 24100 154167 321 RSB 16T 201
PeETY 31 A0 586 §2 1,507 =i ae §12. 775 470 51,551,258 $30.7T14T1 810771 a7
[ 10 E1I].'.'£E £10.910, 793 10610 T2
Haluiral asiaanng fusl 57 533365 §7E21.865 $7.62820
Bisaar ared wiakar B 73,775 B 7FITE £1.7I0578
Telecommusiaations B0, 10 F1M. 184 134184
urisn 1,620,772 $1,200, 745 1,830 737
apperiigatian o caphal axaois
= DT 2% B 121 A3 a3 131
[ A e [ 2,725 82 731,737 SETIOTIT
| ol Amestizeien $a BLTZE 73 52770797 522,802,121 e, S, BER
|intarest gn capiled dell
Guppaai a1 BT Bl 1,674 B
Tinsuzariad a0 TR 2 =) 354a] Chb Bard D, 035
ey intnrasd Shargee 2 ¥ LIt
[Lednas on lﬂﬂulﬂﬁlehﬂ a% 5 ?‘:" 52 1]
ITOTAL FXFENSES $15 228 583 £19 904 558 &h jﬂh E-‘“g'-"i? 511,771 %10 b T 114 IH.E‘EZ &&MT.T.H FABEN RCh]
SOUARE NETRES
il Bukln T aE a1
[ i bsnge il.ﬁ"ﬁ_
Lt H
Canizdal: Al ruldad fa s i B 0 wrepa camn ard e
i Al Al amparags a3 Eaoate W N e eREd. it and minor . ranids deed B Thia mclazun repuler o =8 prevenliine
TR BEA 1 A TR mach o e Jlrl-hrp:llir-ﬂﬂlﬂll'l:i"' Ma - pEchrie Op cails rekiad i
p mAE LT an thay arw a
i Ethen & Telecomrunicatiorm: AB papava s Ikebed 10 sbedticily, radursl g ard o sty bt daeety ol ssby B0 +
W= R Ui a i 3 w1 | 1R IV s DR unié
Faciity Planasing b Operaticrm & frmis e m AR papRraEN Ialed 1 iRE el 'mq."'i'mﬁl u|mlnmllulm charesl knclicra,
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
2010/11 FINANCIAL OPERATING RESULTS SUMMARY
(Unaudited)

The following i a brief summary of the Calgary Board of Educalion’s financial results for the 201011 fiscal year.
More detailed financial information can be oblained from the Calgary Board of Education's Financial Stalemeants
and Statistical Information for the Year Ended August 31, 2011, avadable on the CBE's website af

www,che ab ca trusteesbudget asp

Summarized Staterment of Revenue, Expense and Accumulated Operating Surplus for the Year Ended
August 31

2011 2010
(DD} [000rs)
Rewvenue (Exhibit 1) 3 1.,045538 3 1,030,075
Expense (Exhibds 1| and 101} 1,054,608 1,021,438
(Deficiencyexoess of revenue over expense for the year (5.460) BG3T
Transfers fromiito) operating resanves 8,011 (2.025)
Transfers o designated funds (600) 211}
Capital items paid by operating funds (3,218) (B,263)
Transfer {io)from capital resene (48] 3,100
Lnresiricied operating (defici)fsurplus for the year i1,316) 534
Linfesinclied operating surplus beginning of the year 3,500 2,862
Accumulated unrestricted operating surplus ] EI1B¢ 5 3,500

EXHIBIT | - Revenue by Source for the Year Ended August 31, 2011

Base provincial insiruction

Fanls
S546 043,000
Schaol penerasted furds B1.A%
$30, 560,000
A%
A
Other prowincial education
qrams
536512 000
15%
Pravincial priorty tangebad
grans
20, THE 00
2%
pranls
Tl Tos R
F1.045.538,000



www.cbe.ab.ca/trustees/budget.asp

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
2010/11 FINANCIAL OPERATING RESULTS SUMMARY

{(Unaudited)

EXHIBITS (Continued)

EXHIBIT Il - Expense by Type for the Year Ended August 31, 2011

EXHIBIT Il - Expense by Program for the Year Ended August 31, 2011

Exiemal sanscas

04,42 000
13%

B & syslem
admirésiration

£41.506.000

NSl
rorades K - 123
021, 3T 000

T

A%

Slugem ransparistion
0 000
5%

Tital Expanse
51,052,950 000

* Togalnd inlafees inclege Alberds e e Sofon Impovamenl | STudan! Heaih baliale, High Speed
Networkieg (Sapemef], Instfulons’ Pogeams and e Soulmm Albsita Regions’ Asmesmen| program
IREACH). Exievnal seveces mekafas Uk adul! lneihng poasa ol Civmok Leaming Sandce,
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATION'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL OPERATIONS
AUGLIST 31, 2011

The Calgary Board of Education (the “Corporation”) is the largest public school system in Alberta and
Western Canada and the fourth largest public school sysiem in Canada, The Corporation is committed to
being a caring and responsive school system with an overarching mission of 'Educating Tomamow's Ciltizens
Today. With 223 school settings, the Corporation provides a broad range of differenfisted educational
services and programs for students enrolled from Kindergaren through Grade 12, In addition, the
Corporation supports life-long learning by connecting adult leamers to an armay of continuing educaticn
programs offered by Chinook Leaming Sarvicas.

Learning as unique as every student

The parsonalization of kearning i the primary strategy adopied by the Calgary Board of Education to advancea
studani academic success and o develop stedents wiho exhibit strong standards of Citizenship, Personal
Development and Character. Through the personalization of learning and a focus on the instructional core,
the Calgary Board of Education contnues o address the needs of all leamers. As a snapshot of studant
achievemnent, results on the Provincial Achievernant Tests and Diploma Exams provide valuable data to
inform ouwr strategees and actions of working towards the continuous improvement of teaching and keaming at
all levels, as articulated by our Draft Three Year Education Plan 2011-2014. The maost recent (2010-2011)
Provincial Achevement Test and Diploma Exam results continue fo show strong overall achievemeant by
Calgary Board of Education students. Although these tests are only one measure of student achievement,
thesa results help lo confirm the direction taken by Calgary Board of Education staff as we work towards
achieving the Ends Statarmants as envisonad by the Board of Trustees (the "Board™),

Budget to 2010411 Actual to Actual
Financial Overview (in § millions) Aciual Varance Varlance
Ag % of
Budget (1) Actual Actual Favorable /| Expanse Increase f
2040114 204014 2008M0 _  (Unfavorable) Budgst  (Decrease) %
Revenus
Prowincial revenue 60,3 959.8 D306 0.7} 20.0
Crbhier rive s 50.2 563 52 8 81 3.5
Schood Ganerated Funds 35.4 ﬂ_i arT (K] (4.1}
1,045.9 1,049.5 1,030.1 A6 0.3% 154 1.9%
Expense
Sataries and benefits ana.4 B01.2 TELT B2 18.5
Supplies and services 1684 1760 164 B {8.6) 02
Cither (nlerestiArmorizalion) 481 482 w2 24 a&n
School Genaratad Funds 35.4 38 ary 1.8 4 1}
1.062.3 1,055.0 1,021.4 i.3 0.7% 236 3. 3%

i Deficiencyiiegcess of

VR OVET BXDENSE {16.4} (5.5) B.7 1049 1.0% {142}
Mad applicalions of apesating funds 1148 4.2 (8.2 (v 124
Capital reserves (net] 20 - - (2.0 -
et operating {deficitl/surplus {25 (1.3 0.5 12 0% (1.8
Drane frormdadd to) unrestnicted net assats 25 1.3 0.5 i1.21 1.8
Mt annual operating swplus - - - -

(1] Represents the ongiral, ureadited Budgel apensved by thi Bosed of Trusiees as amanded during the sl year for changes 1o programs and operations

=X
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATION'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINAMCIAL OPERATIONS

AUGUST 31, 2011

The Corporation's administration s responsible for preparing the management discussion and analysis
section of the financial statements respeciing operations of the Calgary Board of Education, This should be
read in comjunction with the financial statements and accompanying noles and statistical information
schedulas

Analysis of Financial Operating Results

Tha  Corporation's folal  revenuas

2010 and 2011 increased by $19.5 million, or 1.8%. to
Revenues and Expenses §1,049.5 million in 2010/11 from $1,030.1
midlion in the previous year due fo granf

rale increases, enrolment growth and

capital grants  recognized, Tha
1,560,000 . Corporation’s total expense increase year-
over-year was 3336 milon or 3.3%,
1,240,500 . | resulting in fotal expenses of 31,0550
| milion, up from $1.021.4 million in 2010
1,230,000 | which is fied to compensation rate
increases, parially  offset by staff
1,200,000 reductions, an increase in Infrastructure
P SRS Maintenance Renewal spending and the
R implementation of the Education Centre

................. ﬂmra.hng EEE

The net result of the Corporalion's financial operations 5 a small annual operating deficit of 51.3 million (0.1%
of total revenue), after Board-approved transfers info or withdrawals from reserves and the application of
operating funds for the acquisdion of Board-funded capilal assels. This deficit was covered by an approved
draw on unresiricted net assets,

The Corporalion received 91.4% of iis revenug in funding from the Provincial Government and is reguired to
expand iis rescurces in accordance with provincial policies and regulations. The 201011 school year reflects
confinued implementation of the three pillars of Alberta Education's Renewed Funding Framework -
Flexibily, Accountability, and Funding with a primary focus on improved accountability for results achieved in
2008/08. Under the Framework there are prescribed resinclions on expenditures within specifiad funding
blocks for instruction, support (Infrastruciure Mainienance Renewal, cerain technology initiafives, targeied
indiative funding, and a restriction on Board governance and system administration expenses) and capital
For the vear ended August 31, 2011, the Corporation was in full compliance with all these requirements.
In addition, all fransfers of funds impacting the Corporation’s operating and capital reserves weare made in
accordance with provincial regulations and the Board of Trusiees' direction and approval,

Enrolment
Based on the September 30, 2010 enrolment count, the Corporalion expenenced an overall increase of 211
students or 0.2% from the previous vear (excluding CBe-earn and Chinook Learning Services studanis) with
increases of

P'ﬂﬂfiﬂﬂ"l Increase | (Decrease) in Al Sq'.-—'FJ'tEH?I'J':"l' 30, 2010, otal
Enrolment from Sept 30, 2009 students served, including
Kindergarten 282 CBe-learn and Chinook
Grades 1-6 373 Learning Services, was
Junior High (418) (1.9)% 102,917 students, which

Senior High {54) {0-2)% includes learners who were

#;tliue'ﬂmach ;ﬁ .ag: 20 years of age and older

{1} Far mere information regarding oulcomes uider ihe accouniabilty pillar, phease read the “Anmual Educalion Resuls
Report” found on owr websie al bpihswey dbe ab cadaboutus!
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

ADMINISTRATION'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

AUGUST 31, 2011

Revenue

While Provincial and Other Rewenue both
increasad marginally from 2010, School
Generated Funds decreased by 10.8% from the
prior year due 1o lower school activities. School
Generated Funds are monies coliacted at the
local school level 1o enhance the education of
sirdents and include such ifems as fiald trips,
extracurnicukar  activites and equipment to
enhance program dalivany.

Wigh fhe excaplion of targeted grant funding
and expenditure conditions (such as the 4%
aexpanditura cap on Board Governance and

Systern  Adminisfration  expenddures), e
Corporation  has  the  flexbily under the
provincial  funding  framework  to intarmally |

Revenue Comparizon: 2011 to 2010 .
P thsipaads) [

1L B
|
O B3 |
A
0 DR
E: pan saaEm SELEEN Gt B e I
A iy
|
Grami s an Db vpvpram rhnd Gy e Pk |
|
EAD WL

allocate and use s resources to address ﬂudem educational needs. The gwernment and education
sigkehalders are committed (o working collaboratively to implement all targetad initiatves 1o the greatest

benefit of all shudents

2011 Other Revenue [$56.3 millian}

ik i g orpararEa e
WY ST LS ] Pl

Expense

The Corporalion receives the greatest proporion of #s
revenue from the Province, with 91.4% of the revenue
budget coming from Alberta Education grants. Other
revenue incledes amounts from varipus sources (see
accompanying char).

The Corporafion has continued to manage its financial
resources and specifically its cash balances in this low-
inferest rale environment to maximize investment retums
within conservative nsk paramaters and o maka avalable
surplus school space for lease or rental to the varous public
organizations.

All major expense categories have mcreased from 2010 with the exception of School Generated Funds which
declined with the corresponding revenue decrease.

Salaries and benefits account for the majority

(T6%) of the Corporation’s total expenses,

Emenutmpuhun 2011 to 2010
fmn Ehoanandy)

The 2 5% increase from 2010 primarily reflects

negotiated salary increases within the varous
employee groups, prescribed benefit contribution
changes and step grade mcrements, nel of

reductions in the number of staff positions.

Other expenses increasad by tha highes! mangn
of expense categories, or 21.2%. This is due to
increases in both amoreation of capital assats

and mterest expensea.

1, e
1o ran SER1IET
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L
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATION'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL OPERATIONS
AUGUST 31, 2011

With the cuwrreni provincial Funding Framework and funding fo support facility operations and building
renewal, the Corporation belisves that there i5 an urgent need for the Province to immediataly undertake a
review of the school directed funding formula fo ensure predictable, stable and susiainable funding, This is
required 1o ensure that the Corporalion has a good financial foundalion to support the educational nesds of
all its leamers. The Corporation continues to be vigilant, through being aware of changes in the external
emnvironment impacling the Corporation, by embarking on initiatives and stralegic opportunities in order o
position the Corporation for responding to building and program renewals, providing safe schools and work
environmenis, and maintaining basic educational suppos o schools

Analysis of Financial Operating Results to Operating Budget

The Corporation’s balanced 201011 Budget was approved in June 2010 by the Board of Trustees with an
operating deficit of $19.1 million which was o be fotally funded by approved reserve draws.  Additional
funding from the Province was announced early in the year, and the 201011 First Quarter {Q1) Modified
Budget was adjusted to accommodate these additional resources. The revised anticipated operating deficit
was 5163 million with a corresponding 2.7 million reduction in the planned use of reserve transfers,

Revenues and Expenseas
The Corporation's actual operating deficit (before operating or capital item transfers) is $10.9 million less than
anlicipated, due to a combination of both higher than expected revenues and lower than expecied expenses:

Composition of $10.9 million operating deficit variance
(% in thousands)

Id-.I:III — —

13,000

Nt Met favorable variance of
$10.9 million

pLETE R

BOOO |

6,000 |

4,000

2,000

Faworabde Warians Unfavorable Varlance




CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATION'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL OPERATIONS
AUGUST 31, 2011

Reserves and Capital Items

As a result of favorabde revenue and expense varances, the Corporation’s reliance on funding from reserves
was not as much as intially anficipated. This is a positive outcome, as the Corporation begins anather year
with further funding relance required from reseres,

Board funded capital assels to be acguired were planned at a cost of $25.9 milkon for 2000M11. However,
due fo project scope changesidelays, the actual capilal assets acquired during the year was $14.9 million,
£11.0 million less than planned. As & resulf, the Corporation has set aside 511.5 million in Capital Reserves
(designated funds) o complate these mulli-year Board funded projects during the 201112 year versus the
ptanned 2010/11 year, Owverall, funds spent on Board funded capital projects will not vary significantly over
the two yaar period.

Financial Position

i As at August 31, 2011, the
Net Assets Comparison: 2011 to 2010 Comporation has a net asset
{in thousands) balance of $149.9 million reflecting

total assets of 5845 8 million and
[ total liabilities of F796.9 million

L0 e g s e s " ’ Tha financial position declned by

100,000 55,5 millien from 20910 primarily dus

to the use of a net 587 million of

o s operating reserves and unrestricted

OO0 | net assets o fund the operating

0000 . 3 _ = deficit, parially offset by a net

increase o Capital reserves and

e -- - - S Investment in Capital Assets of

= o ] P e e 533 milion o support capital
Iestmentin | Caphal Opessting | Oesgaated | Ureesiricted projects,

Capilal Assels | Reserv | Resanes | Opeling | Opealing

T T e | ;E iﬁ:L (heer the past several years when
frterie i 5' : : provincial funding was sufficient to
(W] A | e 1au i el meet the Corporation's cperational

—== needs, the Corporation pursuad a
strategy o astablish specific operating and capital reserves 1o minimize any adverse impacts of future
uncontrallable and significant increases in carain costs and to miigate any adverse impacts to parents and
students through service reductions and fes increases, Duee to provinceal funding reductions in 2010111, tha
Corporation was required to draw on previously astablished resenses 1o fund current year opaerations. Further
dramvs on reserdses are planmed for the 201 1/12 fizcal year to fund the anticipated deficit of $19.3 million whila
working on a sirategy to meet student and instructional needs while operating within the lmitations of
provincsal grant funding
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sis of Capital Expenditures

LEED-accradibed Emest Marning High School, Seplember 2071

Total Board funded capital assets acquired for 2010011 were $12.3 million, primarily reflecting investiments in the
new CBE Dr. Carl Safran Cenire, technology investments, vehicles, and equipment. As at August 31, 2011, 511.5
miilon of funds budgeted for specified Board funded capital projects started in 2010011 will be carried forward for
completion in 201112,

One of the Corporation's challenges is its abilty to provide for new schools for Calgany's growing population in
areas where they are required, and o provide rescurces for maintenance and renewal work necessary for
established school facilties, As defailed in the Corporation’s School Capital Plan 2012-2015, the Corporation
confinues fo plan for and request provincial funding required to meat the significant shortfall of public schools in
the new and developing communities of the City of Calgary

In receni years, the Province has been supporive of these interests and has funded and construcied many
schools in Calgary. Under the Alberta Schools Alternative Procurement (ASAP) project for construction of
schools, current consiruction is ongoing on four middle schoods which are planned for completion in 2011112 and
will welcome students in September 2012, The new MNorhwest High School in Arbour Lake is also under
construction and the planned ocpening is for 2013,

In July 2011, the Corporation ocpened the new Ernest Manning High School located in the communiy of
Springbank Hill which was constructed under a three-way agreement befween the Corporation, the Province of
Albarta and the City of Calgary. The City acquired the old Emest Manning site from the Corporation for use in the
West LRT expansion project.

The Corporation confinues o develop appropriale sirategies to better manage the underutilization of some of its
school buildings, and the associated costs of operaling and maintaining any excess space, In the past yvears,
strategees for leasing unused space, program consolidation, expanded programs of cholce and as a kst resort,
school closure, have been employed to mitigate undanutilization of schoo! building sssats,
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Outlook

& substantial amount of all funding received by the Corporation = 20101 1 was provided by provincial grants, with
the majority coming fram Alberta Education tied to the demographics and characteristics of the CBE student
population, This relative percentage is expecled to continue for the foreseeabla future.

Subsequent to the preparation and approval of the 201112 Operating Budget, the Province announced a one-time
rastoration of education funding in the amount of $107 million for the Province as a whale. The Calgary Board of
Educafion's portion of this ane-time fending Is $19.2 million which has been distributed directly to schooks through
the rescurce allocation method (RAM),  However, the Corporation is continuing (o rely on avallable ora-time
operating reservas to backslop the structure deficit identified in the 201112 approved operating buedget (519.3
rrvilligsr},

Despite the receipt of this one-tima funding, the Corporation continuas to axperance uncerainty maving fonward
ragarding fulure grant funding increases which are to be received from the Province in 201213, In the absance of
predictable and sustainable funding for all grant categories 1o fully offset increased costs, virtually all areas of the
organization will experience additional cost pressures going forward. Howewver, the Corporation is committed to
reallocating resources and enhancing ofher revenue streams where possible o ensure the delivery of
personalized learning to students and will address any financial challenges in the 2012/13 operating and capital
budgets as required. The Cosporation is committed to monitering funding and the expenditures of the organization
and will continue to b= a unified woica in advocating far strong financial supports far students.

The Corporation, like many Calgary amployars, will continue to be proactve, mnovalive and stralegis in order (o
altract, retain and develop the human capital necessary to achieve the Board of Trustees Ends Statements.
Under the guidance of the Superintendant of Human Resources, the Corporation continues to focus on strategic
leadership traiming and development as well as succession planning for senior positions.  Human resource
sirategies will focus on enhanced employes relations, and continue to buikd on new employee orentation
programs for all employees to assist tham in their rofas of supporiing student achsavement.

On Septembear 30, 2011, the Corporation's anralment count was 1005832 kindergarien 1o grade 12 students {(an
increasa of 1,141 students from September 30, 2010} and 3,550 students at CBe-learn and Chincok Leaming
Services (increasa of 124 students) for a total enrcdment of 104 182 students. The lotal enrclmeant atso includes
learners 20 years of age and older. The Corporation believes thesa increases in enrolment are an endorsement of
our commitmeant (o achieving improved leaming outcomes through the personalization of learning and specifically
the Board of Trusiees Ends statemenis.

The Corporation continues fo ba strategic in its relentless pursuit of teaching excellence with its prmary focus of
supporting the personalization of student leaming, Further supports and enhancamanis are being implemeanted for
all our learmers, With the Province mnitiating Inspinng Education and Action on Inclusion and a review of the School
Act, these reviews may affect the associated funding to suppor thase leamers who constitute approximataly 17%
of the overall studant population.  Finally, the Corporation will continue its implementation of the Draft Thres-Year
Education Ptan 2011-2014 which identifies key owutcomes, sirategies and actions to improve educational
oppariunities offarad to our students o mest their own individual needs.

The Corporation recognizes the importance of the Alberta Initiative for School Improvement (AlST) targeted
funding currently being received from the Province ($11.1 miliion) and continues to encourage the Province to
sustain this initiatove going foreard,



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF ADMINISTRATION RESPONSIBILITY
AUGUST 31, 2011

STATEMENT OF ADMINISTRATION RESPONSIBILITY

Tha Board of Trusteas i responsible for ensuning that Adminisiration fulfills its responsibility for financial reporing
and controd through s own ongoing monitoring and evaluation of its govermnance policies. The Board of Trustees
carries out its responsibildy for review of the financial staterments principally through is Audit Committes. The Audit
Commiites, which consisis of bwo Trustees and nof less than three public members, meets with Adminisiration and
the Extermnal Auddor to discuss the resulls of the audit examination and financial reporting matters. Tha Audit
Commiltes also reviews the financial slatements, the Auditors’ Report and other information, and recommends thair
approval 1o the Board of Trustees, The External Auditors have full access to the Audit Commiltes, with and without
the presance of Administration.

In the context of the responsibiltes of the Board, the Calgary Board of Education’s Administration = responsible for
the preparalion, presentafion and integrity of the financial stalements and has prepared them in accordance with
Canadian Generally Accepled Accounting Principles (GAAP). The financial statements present fairly the financeal
posiion of the Calgary Board of Education as at August 31, 2011 and the resulls of is operations and cash flows
for the year then ended,

In fulfilling its responsibilifies and recognizing the limiis inherent in all sysiems, Adminisiration has developed
Administrative Regulations and maintaing a system of inlernal controls, procedures and guidelines, supplemented
by ongoing monioring and evaleation of results, io provide reasonable assurance thal assels are safeguarded and
that transactions are propery executed in accordance with the governance policies established by the Board of
Trusteas.

KPMG LLP, the Exemal Auditors appointed by the Board of Trustees, has performed an audit of the financial
statements in this report.  Their indspendent professional opinion on thesea financial statements is included in tha
Auditors’ Report

MACMI E. JOHNSON DEBORAH L. MEYERS
CHIEF SUPERINTEMDEMT OF SCHOOLS SUPERIMNTEMDEMT, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,
AND CORPORATE TREASLURER

Decermber &, 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To Board of Trusteas

Wa have audited the sccompanying financial statements of the Calgary Board of Education (the
“Corporation”), which comprise the balance sheet as at August 31, 2011, the statements of revenue and
expense, changes in net assats, and cash flows for the year then ended. and notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatony information,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such intermal conirol as
managemant determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial stalements that are free
from material misstatemeant, whethar due to raud or anmor.

Auditors' Responsibilty

Cwr responsibility s 1o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audil, We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditng slandards. Those
standards reqguire that we comply with athical reguirerments and plan and perform the awdit to ofbtain
reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of matenal misstatement of the financal slatements, whether due 1o fraud or ermor. In making
those risk assassmenis, we consider internal control relevant to the enfity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order 1o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
imternal controd, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatenass of accounting poficies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the owverall
praseniation of the financal statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion

Opinian
Im our apinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all matenal respacts, the financial position of tha

Corporation as at August 31, 2011, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartarad Accountants

December 6, 2011
Calgary. Canada



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

BALANCE SHEET
AS OF AUGUST 31
2011 20
ASEETS (im thousands) (in thousands)
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents [Maobe 3) 1,904 177
Cash held by schools (Nobe 4) 13,496 11,668
short-lerm invesbments (Mabe 3) 49171 B0 5B
Accounts receivable and prepaid sxpenses (Mobe 5) 36,305 17,203
Inwentanes 838 B3
100,715 1213
Long-team mwesiments {MNote 3) 107,633 104338
Capital azsets (Mot &) 735,291 T2, Foa
Aszats held for sake (Mote &) 3126
Total assets 946,764 918 658
LIABILITIES
Current labilties
Accounis peyeble and sccrued labibties (Mole 7] 75,605 44 845
Defarred revanwe (Mobe B) 40,258 44172
Cash held by schools {Note 4) 13,488 11,888
Current portion of capital kease cbigations (Mabe 11} 8,520 2582
Currant porlion of long-tern debl (Nate 12} 3,B6T 4 480
143,138 147 BE7
Emploves fubure banefits (Nole 9 (), (c) and (d)) 19,006 20,123
Deferred capial granta (Mote 10) 587,622 553,158
Lang-terrn capital lease obbgations (Mobe 11) 31,506 23,354
Long-tarrm debi {Mote 12) 13,465 17,322
Azgat retiremant cbligations (Mota 13} 1,644 1,544
Total labilities TEE.BED TEIS13
Condingencies and commitments (Mobe 14)
MET ASSETS (Note 15)
Unresiricied nel assels 2,184 3,500
Designated operating lunds 8,154 7554
Operaling rezamnes 14,844 22 855
Accumulated operating surplus (A0S5) 5,282 24,008
Captel resarves Bnd designated capital funds 25,5966 15,686
Invesimeant in capital assats 98,647 101 G&D
Taotal net assets 149,898 155,355
Total liabilities and net assets 5 945 TE4 918658

The motes are an nlegral pan of thess financial slafermants
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31

REVEMUE (Schedule 1)

Albarta Education grants:
Basge provincal irstruction
Differential cosl funding
Provincial pricnty targated granis
Oher provincial egucation grants
Capital support
Tatal Albarta Education granis

Oiher prosincial revenue
Federal grants and educalion agreamems
Schood ganerated funds
Ciher revenue
Tatal revenus

EXPEMSE (Schedula 1)

Saleries and b=nedits

Hervices purchasad

Supglies and materials

School Turded aclivibas

Irrierest

Amartizabon of capital assels
Tolal expense

(DeficiencyVencess of revenue over expenge fof
the year, before the undemaotad

Transfer fromifto) operating neserves/designated funds
Trangfer fromiio) operaling resanmes
Transter fromiio} dasignated funds

Addi{deduct) capital iterms paid by operating lunds
Capial assels acquinad
Capial as2ef amarlization

Capial debt repaymants
Trarsher from school purchased assals

Trarsher from capial camy forwands
Transfar to captal camy forwards

Transfer fromi{to) capital reserves

Buiding and eguipment rasanmas
Met operating (deficit)isurplus

Add of(draw] from unrestricted nel assels
Met operating (deficit)isurplus

The notes e an integra! parf of fuese Granciel stafemens

Budget
{unanndibed) Actual
2011 2011 2010
{mn thousands) {m thausands) (in thousands)
] 840287 § G4B043 § 568830
228529 226,457 274 554
20,141 20, TBE BE.E15
34,258 5,812 aravo
25,534 35626 20,808
] 957 B32 ] 9ET.T26 3 938,391
2431 1,852 116
2873 3,702 2 8038
45,574 33,580 57851
47381 52 658 45879
i 1,045,872 3 1,048,538 ¥ 1,330,075
809,252 a0 227 TE1,724
118,153 19410 1158482
40 R4 45,624 48 B33
35,375 1,550 aresi
£,083 3,258 2042
47 OB5 41 B85 34,796
] 1.062 255  § 1054998 & 1,021,438
(16,383) {5,480) BE3T
10,373 8,011 {2.025)
1,600 {EDO) 11}
11,875 7411 .53}
{24, 770 {13,308) (25,383)
19,325 17938 16,208
(2.682) {2,882} 1585
1,583 1,132 BT
3,314 5314 T.0r4
. {11,545} (5314}
(1.220) (3,.238) (8. 263)
3226 {4} 3,100
(2,500) (1337} 54
2,500 1,337 [538)
] - 5 = 3§ -

11



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31

v esiment Desbgnated Total
in Capital Capital Operating Dperating  Unrestricied Mat Aasels
Assots Reserves Reserves Funds MNet assets {Mole 155
(i thousands)
Balanca, August 31, 2006 3 91637 & 24546 & 20530 § G543 § 2582 & 146 M8
Excasaideficensy) af
MESENUE OWET BXpEnSe (15, 208) 23 B45 EE3T
Trarsfers during the year (15) {4, BED) 2,025 i 1,630
Capzal asseis acquired
with oparating funds 24,561 - {24 BET)
Caphal debl repaymenls
from operaling funds isils] - [GES)
Ml ncrease/decrease) for year 10,025 {4, BED) 2,025 11 538 BE3T
Balance, August 31, 2000 3 101,660 & 19,686 5 22 BSE § 7554 3 3,500 & 155,355
{Deficlencypexcess of
Tevanie oyer Bxpenss (18,1348) - - 12878 {5,4580)
Trarafen during ihe yaar 196 6,280 (8.011) 1] grx
Capial assets acguined
with aperating funds 12 2686 - [12,263)
Capial debl repaymanis
froem pperaling funds 2581 (2,681}

Hel (decieass)increass for year 3,013 &, 80 (8.011) B} {1,316} 15 460)
Balance, August 31, 201 5 0E64T § 25,066 § 14,044 § 8,154 § 2,184 § 149,895
The nates are &0 ndegral per af thase financlal sfafemants
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31

Operating activities

Excess!(deficiency) of revenue over expense for the yaar

Add {less) items nod reguiring cash
Capital suppor revenua
Amaortizaton of capital assels
Employes future benafits
{Zain on disposal of assels
Unrealized gain on long-tarm investments
Changes in non-cash working capital.
Short-term imvesiments
Accounts receivable and prepaid aipenses
Inventories
Apcounts payable and accreed liabdites
Deferred revenus
Cash from operating activities

Fimancing activities

Capital grants resehaed

Repayment of lang-term debt

Fepayment of capital lease obligations

Chamges in non-cash working capital
Accounis receivable and prepaid axpenses
Accounis payable and accruad liakilibes
Cash (used in)from financing activities

Investing activiies
Purchase of investments, net of disposals
Capital assets acquired
Froceeds from disposal of capial assels
Changes In non-cash working capital:
Aecounts receivable and prepaid expenses
Aecounts payable and accrued Eabilities
Cash used In investing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (Note 3)

Supplemeantary cash flow efarmation (Mote 3)

2011 2010
(in thousands) i thousands)
{5,460) Ba3v
(23,751) (18,540)
41,884 34 286
(1,027) {1,118)
(49) (173)
(467} {4,495)
31,411 T2.390
(8,811) 1858
a2 {245)
7.875 {11,140)
{3,814} 1,043
37,688 B0 840
26,749 20,854
{4,480) {5,250)
(2,682} {883}
(8,182) 4,241
{17.186) {B,630)
(6,801) 16,542
{2,827) {40.488)
{28,019) {45 675)
53 136
- (S00)
83 (1,725)
(30,710) [E?.Ef@_
177 130
1, 7TET 1,597
A, 8ilkd 1,727

The motes are an inftegred part of these financial sfatemenis
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

(Al amounits expressed in thousands of dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION

The Calgary Board of Educalion (the “Corporation”) is an independent legal entity with an elected Board of
Trustees as stipulated in the School Act (Alberta), The Corporation is registered as a chariiable organization
under the lncome Tax Acl (Canada) and, therefore, (5 exempl from income tax and may issue officsal
receipts o donors for income tax purposes.,

The Corporation provides & full range of educational services for all instructional programs ranging from
Kindergarten through Grade 12

2. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of presentation

(b)

(c)

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). A precise delermination of many assefs and
liabilifies is dependent upon fulure events and involves the use of estimates and approximations, which
have been made using professional judgment  Actual results could differ from these estimates or
approximalions. In adminisiration’s opinion, these financial stalements have been prepared within
reasonable limits of materiality and within the framework of the accounting policies summarized below,

The financial operations of EducationMatters {formerly The Calgary Board of Education Foundation) is
a not-for-profit foundation which promotes and supports public education in Calgary (see Note 16 (b))
and iz a conirolled entity whose financial results are not consclidated in these financial statemants, as
permitted under Canadian Instilute of Chartered Accountants [(CICA) Handbook Accounting Parl W
4450.14

Budget information is unaudited and is presented on the Statement of Revenua and Expense and on

the related schedules for information purposes only and represents the original budgel submitied to
Alberta Education in Juna, 2010, as amended during the fiscal year to reflect identified changes in

circumstances relating o operating and program changes. The Board of Trustees approves the original
budget and monitors all subsequent changes through quartery reports of revisions and amendmenls,

Capital aszels which are paid by direcily by the Province of Alberia on behalf of the Corporation are
recorded by the Corporation at fair market value when tlle has transferred. A corresponding deferrad
capital grant is recorded and refiected in revenue over the life of the assets. Maintenance expenses
paid for directly by the Province of Alberta on behalf of the Corporation relating to these assels ane
expensed and corresponding grant revenue is recognized.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguwvalents are comprised of cash and shor-term investments with original maturities
of 90 days or less.

Inventories

Inventories consist of maintenance and school supplies and are valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Inventory is expensed when items are shipped to schools or depariments.

14



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

{All amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Investments

Held-for-frading assels are measured al fair value each reporting period, Unrealized gains and losses
on hedd-for-frading financial instruments are recognized in earnings.

Short-ferm invesiments are invastments held with a maximum of a one-year view o ensure the limely
sattlement of the Corporation's financial cbligations, Investments usually consist of treasury bills and
money market investments and are recorded at fair value.

Long-term investments are investments held for a period of at least one o five years, unless significant
unforeseen factors ooccur.  Long-term investments may include corporate and government bonds and
equities and are recorded at fair value,

Capital Assets and Capital Revenue

Capital assets are recorded al cost  Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis at rates which
amoriize the cost of the capital assels over their estimated useful Ives. The amortization rates applied
are as follows:

Land improvemsants 20 years
Buildings 10 - 40 vears
Furnifure and eguipmeni 4 - 10 years

Mo amorization is provided on conslruction in progress, as lhese assels are not ready and are not
available for use. Once completed and placed info use, these assels are amoriized in accordance with
the Corporalion's above amortzation policy.

Certain capifal assels, mcluding new school construction and major rencvations (except administrative
buildings and replacement of eguipment and wehicles), are funded by Aberta Education when
approved, and are based on the Corporation's three-yvear capital plan, When received, capital grants
for these asseis are deferred and reflectad in revenue and matched to the amortization expense ower
the lives of the related assels. Provincially funded Infrasiructure Maintenance Renewal (IMR) projects
that improve or sustain the operating funclionality of bullding components or land improvements and do
not extend the useful Be of the underlying assel are expensed,

Capilal assets which are paid for directly by the Province of Alberta on behalf of the Corporation are
recorded by the Corporation at fair markel value when titke has transferred. A comesponding deferred
capital grant is recorded and reflected in revenue over the life of the asset. Maintenance expenses
paid for directly by the Province of Alberta on behalf of the Corporation relating to these assels are
expensed and corresponding grant revanue is recognized.

Leases

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially the enfire
benefils and risks incidental to the ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases. All other
leases are accounted for as cperaling leases and the related lease payments are charged fo expenses
as incurred,
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

{All amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(gl

(h)

(i)

Asset Retirement Obligation

Tha Corporalion recagnizes lhea fair value of an Assst Retirement Obligation ("ARO") in the pamod in
which it incurs a legal cbligation associated with the retirement of capital assets. Certain building
assets contain some asbestos. Although the asbestos is appropriately confeined in accordance with
emnvircnmenial regulations, i is the Corporation's practice to, f necessary, remediate any asbestos
upon disposal of a capital assel The Corporation recognizes an ARD only whan those assets have
been approved by the Board of Trustees for disposition and when the fair value of the liability can be
reasonably determined,

The estimated fair value of ARD are capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset and depreciated
on the same basis as the underlying assel. ARD is adjusted for the passage of time, which s
recognized as accretion expense, and for revisions o the fiming or the amount of the estimated Eability
Actual costs incurred are charged against the asset retirement obligation to the extent of the lability
recorded, Differences between the aciual cosis incurred and the liability are recognized in earnings
when remediation is completed,

Revenue Recognition

Ravenues are recognized when they are eamed. Granis recened, resircted donations and foas
collected in advance of the provision or usa of related services, are defermad until utilized, Unrestncted
cash donations are recognized as revenue when they are received. Donations of materials and services
are recognized as revenus when a fair valua can be reasonably estimated and wihen the materials and
services are used in the normal course of the organization’s operations and would otherwise have been
purchasad,

Funds donated by individuals or organizations for the purpose of establishing scholarships and
bursaries are accounted for as deferrad revenues, Interest is calculatad on each scholarship fund
balance and |5 accrued for the benefit of the recipients of the fund. Individual scholarship payments arae
mada fo the recipients of the scholarships and bursanes in accordanca with the various scholarship
agreements, and a comesponding amount is recognized as revenue at that time,

The amorizalion of capial assets funded by Alberia Education and Alberia Infrastruciure B recognized
annually and iz offset by a cormesponding amount of revenue arsing from the recognition in that year of
ralated capital grants,

Each year, volunteers contribute a considerable number of hours which support the dalvery of certain
programs within schools. Due to the difficulty of defermining or othenwise estimating these hours, and
the fact that thesea services are nol otherwise purchased, the value of these contributed services s not
quantified nor recognized in these financial statements.,

Proceeds on Disposal of Capital Azzets

The procesds on disposal of capital assefs are applied to fund future capils! asset expanditures.
Pursuant 1o Provincial regulations, the allocation of proceeds for each asset disposal is based upon the
relative confribution from the Province of Albera and the Corporation to fund the original purchasa of
the disposed asset. Proceeds relafing to provincially funded assets are recorded as deferred capital
allocations until a previncially approved capital expendiure is made. Proceeds relaling to Corporation
funded assets are reflecied as income and a cormesponding amount is fransferred to capital reserves
until a capital expenditure to be financed from capital reserves is approvied by the Board of Trustees.
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

(Al amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

)]

(k)

School Generated Funds

Thase financial statements include amounts arising from certain school and student activities which are
controfled and administered locally by each school but for which the Corporalion is accountable
School generated funds revenues are primarily generated through fundraising activities, non-
insfructional fees and donations and grants o schools in support of extra-curricular activities, field frips
and equipment,

Financial Instruments

The Corporation's financial instruments consist of cash and cash eguivalents, cash held by schoals,
gshort-term investiments, accounts recewvable, long-lerm invastments, accounts payable and accrued
liabibes, and kong-derm labilities which include long-term debi and capital keases. Unless otherwise
stated in Motes 3, 11 and 12, which are determined by market compansons, the fair values of these
financial instruments approximate their carrying values,

There are no financial assets on the balance shaet designated as available-for-sale or held-lo-malurity.
Cash and cash equivalenis, cash held by schools and shor-term invesiments are classified as held-for-
trading. All other financial assets are classified as loans or receivables and are accounted for on an
amortized cost basis. All financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities and are accounted
far on &n amortizad cost basis.

Transaction costs and related cash flow impacts are included in the fair value assessment of each
financial asset  Transaction cosis that are directly atiributable fo the acgquisifion of ofher fmancial
liabilities are nol considered significant and are expensed when incurred,

The Corporabion has a comprehensive risk management framework fo monitor, evaluate and manage
the principal risks assumed with financial instruments. The nsks that anse from ransacting fmancial
instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk, Price risk arses from changes in inferest
rates, foreign currency exchange rates and market prices. The Corporation does nol use derivative
financial mstruments to alter the effects of these risks, His administralion’s opinion that the Corporation
is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments.

The Corporation has elected to apply the scope provisions of paragraph 3855.07A such that ihe
Corporation will nat apply the reguirements of Section 3855 lo contracts for the purchase or sale of
non-financial ilems and any embedded derivatives within these types of confracts or those embedded
derivatives that may exist within lease or insurance confracts. In addition, the Corporation has elected
to nod adopt “Financial Instruments — Disclosures” and “Financial Insfrumenis — Preseniation.” The
Corporation does not invest in or use dervative financial instruments, Derivatives may be embedded in
other financial instruments {the “host instrument”) or olher contracts (the “host contract”). The
Corporation has not identified embedded derivatives in the host contracts,
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MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

(All amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIMG POLICIES [continued)

{

Pensions and Employee Future Benefits Plans

The Corporation participates in 8 number of defined benefit plans to provide pension, retirement and
healthcare benefits to its employeess.

The Corporation’s cerificated emplovess are required to contribute o the Alberda Teachers' Retirement
Fund, & multi-employer defined confribution pension plan. This defined benefit pension plan is the
responsibility of the Province of Alberta and thesa employes members. Accordingly, no disclosure has
been made in these financial statements relating to the effects of participation in the pension plan by the
Corporation's cerificated amployees.

The Corporation and its non-cerificaled employees parlicipate in the Local Authorties Pension Plan
(“LAPP"), a mulli-employer pension plan. Pension costs of LAPP included in these financial staiements
comprisge the cost of emplover coniributions for current service of paricipating employees during the
vear (refer to Mate 9,

The Corporation established a Supplemental Integraled Pension Plan ("SIPP") for certain members of
senior administration comprised of both a registered and non-registered portion. The plan provides a
supplement to the LAPP or Alberta Teachers’ Retirement Fund (a3 appropriate)} io provide an annual
retirerment benefl of 2% of tolal earnings. The cost of this SIPP is sponsored by the Corporation and is
actuarially determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated on service and management's best
estimate of expected salary and benefit escalation, relirement ages of employees and plan invesiment
performance, Achuarial valuations of this plan occur annually as at August 31

The Corporation provides a Supplementary Retirement Plan ("SRP") for cerfain senior emplovees of
the Corporation, based on approved terms and conditions of the plan. The plan provides for annual
confributions of 10% of the emplovee's salary which iz above the LAPP or Alberta Teachers'

Retirmmant Fund pensionable earmings cap.

The Corporation has a number of other defined benefit plans providing post-employment and post-
refirement benefits for supplementary health care, dental care, life insurance and retiring allowances
(coBectively “Post-Retirement and Post-Employment Benefits Plans™). These plans are not funded by
separately designated plan assets. For these plans, the Corporation accrues itz obbgations, and
axpenses the related costs, in accordance with the terms of the varous collective agresments and
other contracts of employment. The cost of employes future benefits earned by employess is
actuarially determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated on service and management's best
astimate of salary escalation, retirement ages of employees, and easpacted provincial and
supplementary health care costs and denfal care costs. The actuarially determined benefit obligation
from the initial application of this policy 5 being amorized over the average remaining service pericd of
employees active at September 1, 2000, the beginning of the fiscal year in which this policy was
mplamented. The balance of any unrecognzed net plan experience, including changes in actuarial
basiz, in excess of 10% of the grealer of the actuarial benefi obligation and the market value of plan
assels 5 amortized over the average remaining service ifetime of the active members as af tha
applicable date. When changes o employee future benefi plans are negotiaied, the related financial
impacts are recognized when an agreement has been reached by the Corporation and the applicable
group of employees. Effective January 1, 2011, all employess pay 100% of the post-retirement benedit
premium costs, The most recent actuarial valuation of post-retirement and post-employment banafit
plans was as of August 31, 2008, The nesd required valuation will be as of August 31, 2012
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

(Al amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{m) Future Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2012, all Government confrolled not-for-profit organizations ("GMNFPOsS™) will be
required to follow either the CICA Fublic Sector Accounting Handbook (*PSA Handbook”), including
Sections PS 4200 to PS 4270 or, allematively, the CICA P3A Handbook without Sections PS 4200 to
PS 4270. The Alberta Treasury Board requires that the Corporation adopt the current public sector
accounting standards without reference to the not-for-profit standards Seclions P3 4200 o P3S 4270
effective for the vear ending August 31, 2013 with retrospective application and restalement for the

comparative vear ending August 21, 2012,
The Corporation is currently assessing the mpacts of the conversion, including identifying the key

differences, developing P3A accounting policies and new financial stalement disclosures. The
Corporation will confinue to monitor the development of standards
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUGLIST 31, 2011

cAll amounts expreszed in thousands of doliars)

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND BANK INDEETEDNESS

LCeabs s Fimisdd InGome irsiments
Bank balances
Duilslanding chequas
Moy markal Freealmenis
Supplemental Inbegrated Persion Plan Assets
Fizad Incomea
Gaervernmen of Canada
Provmicial
Municipal
Corponte

Resirciad lang-temm inesiment {1}

Equity Invesiments
Cansedian aqulies

L5, ety funds
Inlermatianal equiy funcs
Todal &t Fair Valug
Todal ad Gost

Fi briviess i miin

Bk bslanoes
Chubslanding chaquas
Manoy markel iwesiments
Suppimental Inlegrated Pension Plan Assets
Firend Fcoiee

Gioparmmsan] of Canada

Pravincal

Falurncical

Carporaie

Restricted long-term invesimeed (1)

Eipaty imsiments
Canadian equlion

LS equiy Tunds
Irdernabional ety funds
Total al Fair Value

Total a1 Cosl

3
3

2011
Irreagiments & Fair Valug
Cash and cash
-ﬂuhﬁllnﬁ Shori-lerm Lunu-hn'n Tatal Cioest
&, 367 - - 5 &367 % [T
(4,483) = . (#4853} {4.463]
- 48 572 358 48 87 48 ETE
- 49 - Gl =L
- - 17. 7452 17.752 17, 0as
- - L 500 T8
- 2140 2140 Z 0ar
- - 1. 7688 71 788 15T
= 42 Taa 42 585 4z 590
- - &783 a7a3 E.E10
- - =TT 5544 B BT
- ¥ 408 T 2408 204
1,804 -ﬂg_l_‘l?‘l 40T, EE:. ] 158 708
1LIH ﬂE'IT il E Tb?l'll:l':-
2010
I simante & Fair Valua
Casgh and cash
oquisalenis Shornilemm Long-iem Total Cosl
3874 - - 2ETD % 2,879
1852y e - (REZ) [552)
5 568 LE3 B0.528 L)
BiE = G148 BE1
- - #1538 #1538 B3
- - SR SER Ll |
- 2152 2152 2,047
32 ALE T2 AL5 a1, 68
- - ik Fikor) 26.8R7
- T.ahE .25 a8186
- - 5402 E402 a810
. = B E. 91 8087
17 Al 583 104 330§ 185 E4E
1,727 A0,B57 03 Sy - 188 328

{1} Resfricted long-term investment relates to cash collateral requirements a5 a resull of capital leases endered inbo
petween the years ended August 31, 2004 and August 31, 2011 (see Mobe 11).



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

(All amounts exprassed in thousands of dollars)

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND BANK INDEBTEDNESS (continued)

General Dparating and Olher Bank Indebledness

The Corporation maintains a line of credit with 3% bomowing rate that has been negotiated with its banker for
general operating purposes. The line of credit is secured against the Corporation’s accounts receivable at
bank prime rate. At August 31, 2011, no amount has been drawn against the Corporation’s genaral operating

line of credit,

Yields on current shor-term and long-term investments reflect the cash value of all dividends, inferest or
other payments received or receivable on active investment instruments. These yields do not include any
reglized or unreakred capilal gains of the underlying market values of the instrument. Al August 31, 2011

the wields on these investments were as follows!

2040
Effective ar Fair Value Effactve or Fair Watue
Fair Yalue Fair Valuse
Yield gl
Shor-Term Investments
Money Markel Investments 0.5985% 4F 522 0.72% L 79, 556
Mon-Regisiered Mulual Funds (SIPP) 2.21% G459 2.51% G615
Lomg-Term mvestments
hMoney Markel Imvesiments (1.893% 356 0E1% 563
Bomd type
Gowt of Canada 1.42% 17,752 1.61% 21,5348
Prowvincial 2.30% 584 2.65% RRa
Municipal 1.67% 2,140 216% 2,132
Corporate 2.69% 21,766 2.67% 32,455
Canadian aquilies 2.81% 8,783 3.01% 7858
LS, equily pooled funds 1.80% 5,844 1.86% 5402
International equity pooled funds 3.30% 7405 3,345 6,921
Su low Information

During the year ended August 31, 2011, cash interest paid on schoal building debenture debt and other debt
amountad o 52,146 (2010 - 52 686) and cash interest eamed (operating and capital) and dividends recenead

on investments fotaled 34,047 (2010 - $1,9358).

2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

(Al amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

4.

8.

CASH HELD BY SCHOOLS
Changes in cash hald by schools are as follows:

Sowrces of school generaled funds
Fundraising activifies
Mon-instructonal fees and chargas
Donations and grants to schools
Cither mcomea

Total addiions fo school generated funds

Application of schood generated funds:;
Fumdralsang aclmities
Feas/charges (non-nstructional) - related expenzes
Donations and grants (o schools - related expenses
Crbhaer = related expenses: bank charges
Exfra-curricular aclivities
Fiald trips
Equiprment

Total application of school generated funds

Met increasef{decreaze) of school generated funds for the year
Cash balance, beginneg of year
Cash balance, end of year

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAID EXPENSES

Alberta Education operating granis
Government of Alberta capital granis
Debaniure interest grants

School jurisdictions and othar govermments
Other accounts receivable

Prepak expenses

2011 2010
5 11448 5 10,895
17,806 17,000

6,118 6,780

28 28

5 35508 § 34,704
(11.235] (1?,355)

{12,098) (12.247)

(B70) (1.042)

(B4) (B2)

{4,204) (4.278)

{1,166) {1.298)

{1,133) (1,353)

$ (33.500) § (37,651)
§ 1806 % [Z.947)
11,688 14,635

$ 13,496 $ 11,688
2011 2010

4635 % 301

10,144 952

1,029 1,300

2,997 1,963

9,330 8,073

7,169 4614

35,308 § 17,203
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(Al amounts exprassed in thousands of dollars)

6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Falg ]
Accumulated Het
Cost Amartization Eipok Value

Land 5 4671 % 5 4,571
Land improveménts 18,162 9,040 §122
Buidings 943 328 348,770 504 548
Bulddings under capilal lease 36,848 1,787 35,062
Furniture and aquipmant 181,248 130,583 50,665
Furnilure and equipmént under capital lease 4053 1,758 ?Iﬁ

5 1,183,211 & 491998 % 01,213
Consinection i progress 34,078 - 34 OTE

§ ____la2v28q § 431,998 5 735,281

2010
Accumulated Med
Cosl Amaortization Book Walus

Land ¥ 4808 % - 8 4, 805
Land improvemsnts 18,194 B.525 2688
Bluildings @i, 489 338,183 563,206
Buikhings under capiial lease 24 BEE B27 24 022
Fumiture and equipmant 169, 705 114,151 GE GE4
Furniture and equipment under capial lease 2815 1,501 1,314

¥ 1121658 ¥ ag28a87 3 B5E 581
Congiruction 1 progress 43,717 - 43717

L3 1165385 § 462 987 % TO2 Sl

As of August 31, 2011, the Corporation had recorded an assel retiremant obligation of 51,644 (2010 -
$1,644) for the estimaled costs of remaving and disposing of asbesics in those schools and other buildings

approved by the Board for disposition.

As of August 31, 2011, costs of 531,465 (2010 - $162,293) incurred by Alberta Education on behalf of the
Corporalion was recognized as capital assets as the projects were complete and the titles of the assats

were transferred to the Caorporation.

As of August 31, 2011, Alberta Education has confirmed that costs of 368,965 related to the ASAP || P3
project have been incurred. Consistent with prior years, this amount will not be recorded as a capital assel

acquesiton until the project i substantially complete and fitle has fransferred fo the Corporation,

As of August 31, 2011, Land and Buildings with & nef book value of $3,125 (2010 - 53,540} was approved
by the Board of Trustees for disposibon, which is deamed as held-for-sale.
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(All amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Salares and benefits 5
Debenture interest

Federal government

Contractor pavables

Deferred capital allocalions

Other accounts payable

Other accrued liabilities

DEFERRED REVENUE

Alberia Education cperating granis &
Albarta Inisative for School Improvement grants

Infrastructure Maintenance Renawal grants

Student fees

Scholarship funds

Oithesr

2011 2010
35,1566 30,091
1,029 1,300
Br ™
14,218 5,562
G141 23,065
9815 15,349
8 577 T 746
75,605 84, B45
2011 2010
5,001 4 BEg
2,352 3 544
20,569 24 454
7976 6.670
245 254
4112 4,241
40,258 44 172

67



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUGUST 31, 2011
(All amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

9. PENSIONS/EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

(<)

(d)

Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP)
The Corporation’s nel pension expense of LAPP for the vear amounts to 515,297 (2010 - 513,817},

Supplemental Integrated Pension Plan (SiPP)
The Corporation's nel pension expense for the registered portion of SiPP for the year was 556 (2010 —
§37). The net pansion expense for the non-registered portion was $219 (2010 - $150). The total liability
far tha SiPP al August 31, 2001 is $394 (2010 - $175).
Supplementary Retirement Plan (SRP)
Tha total lsbslity for the SRP a1 August 31, 2011 is $132 (2010 - 3157)

Post-Retirement and Post-Employment Benefits Plans

Changes in Projected Benefits Obligation

The following table provides the plans' change in Accrued Benefit Obligation (*ABC") for the year
anded August 31

2011 2010
Benefit obligation, beginning of year 3 30,263 5 32418
Service cost 848 B45
Interest cost 1,365 1,574
Benefits payments {4,152) {4,756)
Actuarial losses 2,073 182
Benefit abligation, end of year 7 30,387 5 30,263

To date, 318,570 (2010 = $18.751) has been accrued in the Corporation's financial statements as an
accruad benefl cbligation

Plan Funded Status
The following table provides the plans’ funded stalus as of August 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010

Benefit obligation, end of year 5 30,397 § 30,263

The Corporation does not fund s post-retiremend plans (see accounting policy Mote 2{1}. Accordingly,
the plans held no assets at August 31, 2091 and 2040,



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

MOTES TO FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
ALGUST 31, 2011

(All amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

9. PENSIONS/EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued)

(d)

Post-Retirement and Post-Employment Benefits Plans (continued)

Components of Net Periodic Post-Retirement Benefit Cost

The net pericd benefits cost for pension plans includes the following components for the yvear ended
August 31;

2011 2010
Currant perniod senice cost 3 B4a . 845
Interest cost 1385 1,574
Adluanal losses 2073 182
Amaortization of transitional obbgation HE7 GEYT
Difference batwasen aciual and recognized pas! serice {&672) {824}
Difference between aciual and recognized gaing in year (1.2E8) TaT
Met Period Benelits Cost 3 3013 3 3221

The initial transitional chligation of 335,664 at Seplember 1, 2000 is being amortized over the expecled
BAvarage ramaining sanice panod of the employes group, which was estimafied to be 12 years, of
which 1 year remaing. The unamorized fransitional cbligation of 31,371 on September 1, 2010 has
been reduced further by 3687 during 2011 1o 3684 to reflect the change in the accrued benefit
chbligation fo employes groups, and the annual amorizaiion of the remaining initial fransitional
abligation.

Azsumptions

The significant actuarial assumplbions adopled in measuring the Corporation’s employes future banelil
obligation (based on a weighied average assumption of the varicus plans a5 of August 31, 2071) and
comparative prior year are as follows:

2011 2010

Amartization meathod Stramgil-fna Siraight-line
Discount rata 4 35% 4 T0%
Supplementary health care 8.0% for 1 year m 201172012 £.0% for 2 vears in 20102011
cost eacalation grading by 0.50% per year and 201172012 gradeng by
thereafler to an ultimate 0.50% per year thereafter

rate of 5.0% an ultimate rate of 5.0%
Dental care cost escakaton 4.0% par year 4.0% per year
Prowvincial haalth care cost escalation Mal applicable Mot appScable

26
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(All amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

10. DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS

Changes in deferred capital grants are as follows:

Balance, beginning of year

Debenture principal repaid by Albarta Finance
Capital assets funded by Albarta Infrastructura
and Alberta Education

Capital allocations amontized o revenue
Balance, end of vear

11. CAPITAL LEASES

2011 2010
563158 $ 382,542
4 480 5,240
53,734 183,908
(23,751) (18 540)
587622 % 553,159

Capital leases are approved by the Minister of Education for internally financed projects. All capital leases
are secured by identified assets of the Corporation {restricted cash). As of August 31, 2011, capilal lease

abligabions pertaining 1o the Corporation are as summarized below;

Fimance contracts, secured by cerain eguipment at
inberest rales ranging from 2 44% - 4, 49%, repayable
in annual installments of 5325 including interasl,
maxlurimg Seplember 2014,

components al inlerest rales ranging from 3, 758% .

4 2d4%, repayable in annual mstallments of $547
including interest, malunng Seplember 2014 through
August 2015

Finance contracts, secured by cerain building
components at inlenest rates ranging from 2, 705 -
3 18%, repayable in annual mstallments of &4, 605
including inbenest, malureng Augus] 2016,

Lass; Currend portson

2011 2010
1,105 ] 1,365
3,138 3542

A7 hE3 21,142

41 826 26,080

{8,5920) (2 682)

31,808 L] 23,3098
b 70
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AUGUST 31, 2011
{All amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

11. CAPITAL LEASES (continued)

Minsmum lease payments for future years are as follows:

Mmimum leasse

paymanis
2012 E ] 10,747
2013 48952
2014 4 552
2015 4. 50
2016 4,744
Thereaftar 16,543
Total payments 46 836
Amaunt pertaining o interest {5,012}
Balance of obligalion £ 41,826

12. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt includes debentures for the acquisition of school buildings funded directly by Alberta
Education {pre-1995). Those debentures were issued for periods of 15, 20 or 25 years in those years pror
to 19895 when the Corporation had local taxing autharity, at interest rates ranging from 7.38% -11.75%, and
maturity at various dates to 2020, Fair value of this debt is $21,930 (2010 - $25,315) which is calculated
using a discount rate of 4.35%, which reflects the average yield on high quality long-term corporate bonds at
August 31, 2011, All debenture principal and interest payments are fully guaranteed by the Province of
Albarta.

2011 2040

Dabantures cutstanding 3 17322 % 21,802
Less: Current partion (3, B57) (4,480)
3 —_— 13465 3§ 17,322

Minimum principal repayments of debentures based on the terms above are as follows:

Principal

Fayment

2012 ¥ 3,857

2013 3,248

2014 2,793

2015 2515

2016 1875
Thereafter 2,836
Total 17,322
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(Al amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

13. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The estimated asset retirement obligation of 51,644 as at August 31, 2011 remained the same fraom August
31, 2010 as there were no changes in the estimated building assets approved for disposition by the
Corporation between 2010 and 2011, An inferest rate of 5.35% is applicable to discount expected cash
flows. for calculatson of the inftial obSgation and a rate of 4.35% would be applicable for accration of the
obligation,

The following table summarizes the changes in the assel retrement obligations;

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year § 1644 $ 1726
Obligations discharged - {B2)
Balance, and of year 5 1,644 § 1644

The Corporation has not recorded an asset retiremant obligation for the estimated costs of restoring certain
schools that may have asbestos as the Corporation is unsble fo determine the value of this liabiity as all
locations and amounts of asbastos are unknown.

14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

{a) From year to year, legal actions are brought against the Corporation in the normal couwrse of operations.
Management beleves that the ultimate resolution of claims presently outstanding are not expected o ba
significant to the overall financial position of the Corparation.

{b) The Corporation has contractual commitments to complete magor capital projects refating to school
buildings and Adminisirative sites, As at August 31, 2001, these outsianding contractual chligations amount
b 511,190 (2010 - 28,762}, with 310,527 to be funded by Alberta Infrastruciure and Alberta Education and

G563 by the Corporation

(g} To tha exient the Corporation terminales certain comtracieal commitmeants for convenence under certain
service and development management agreament, the Corporation would incur costs, depending on the
date of lermination, of bebween 53,500 and 55,900,

{d) The Corporation has entered into vanous operating lease agreements for office spaces that expire up to
February, 2031, Future annual lease payments and operating payments (including parking) under these
leases are as follows!

Eatimated

Minimum COiperating
Lease payment Cosls Tatal
2012 § 0675 % 2420 % 12,085
2013 8,823 2452 12,275
2014 8,787 2,484 12,281
2015 10,053 2,518 12,569
2018 9,849 25449 12,308
Thereafter 171,435 40,888 212,534
Total § 220,632 5 53,320 % 273,852

Lease expense during the year amountad fo $4,580 (2010 - 5343),
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14,

(=]

()

(@)

(h)

i)

i)

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

The Corporation has enlered info a service agreement related to cerain payroll and human resources
adminisiration processes expiing Oclober 186, 2015, Fulure minimum annual payments under this

commitment are:;

Minimum

payments

2012 % 8,863
2013 8,081
2014 9234
2015 G410
2016 1,179
5 37-"?4?

Effective Seplember 1, 2005, the Corporation entered intc a Master Transporialion Agreement with
Southland Transpordalion Lid. and First Studenl Canada for the provision of student school bus
transportation services. The initial term of the agreameant is ten years (expiring August 31, 2018) and the
Corporalion may renew the agreement for two additional pericds of five yvears each. Each year duning the
tarm, the Corporation anfers into a yearly sarvica agreameant with aach camier, outlining the services to be
provided, the applicable daily base rate and all other anficipated fees and charges under the agreement.

Effective January 1, 2010, the Corporation entered into a one vear fixed price natural gas supply agreement
af a certain price for a majority of ifs total annual natural gas consumplion, and this agreement was o expire
an December 31, 2010, but was previously renewed for one additional vear and will expire on December 31,
2011, During 2011, the Corporation further extended the agreement for one addisonal year which will now
expire December 31, 2012.

Effective July 31, 2007, the Corporation entered into a fixed electricity supply agreement of a certain price
for all of s electricity consumption from January 1, 2005 1o Decamber 31, 2012, This agreement has bean
extended by two addifional vears and will expire December 31, 2014

Effective July 1, 2007, the Corporation entered inte & Committed Retaner Legal Services Agreement of a
cartain price, with a one yvear evalualion stage and the provision for up to a four year extension pericd, upon
mutual agreement of both parfies, o June 30, 2012

Effective June, 2011, the Corporation entered into 8 S vear contract with Telus Corporation for all phomne
SEVICES.
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(Al amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

15. NET ASSETS

The compaonenis of the Corporalion’s net assels of 3149 885 as al August 31, 2011 are described below,

Accumulated Operating Surplus

As at August 31, 2011, the Corporation has an accumulated operating surplus of $25 282 {2010 -
$34.009) comprised of the following.

(i  Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted operating surplus represents the aggregation of successive years' annual
oparaling surplusas,

For the year ended August 31, 2011, the Corporation's oparating deficit was $1,316 (2010 -
surplus of $538), and the Corporation has an unrestricted accumulated operating surplus of
%2184 (2010 - $3,500).

(il  Designated Operating Funds and Operating Reserves

Where cerain instruclional initiatives are planned or in progress, and consistent with pricr
yvears, the Corporalion has designated or restricted operating funds for specific purposes
Operating reserves have been established for specific program requirements, to stabilize
annual fes rates or o offsel the cost of programs and services in future years. These fund
designations and reserves have bean established consistent with Provincial legiskation and by
Board of Trustess' resolution and will be applied fo finance future expenses in accordance with
the specific requirements of each of these resclutions.

Operating funds have been designated by the Board of Trustees for the following purposes:

2011 2010

School decentralized budgets 5 5482 % 5,054
Instructional and service unit initiatives 2672 2 500
3 4154 % 7 554

Operaling reserves have been established by the Board of Trustees for the following purposes:

2011 2010

Continuing Edwcation Fes Stabilization (1) 5 1693 § 1,313
Unrealized Invesiment Gains/Losses (2) 3032 1,750
Utility Expanse Siabdizalion 3,370 4 870
Snow Removal Budget Siabdization 200 200
Administrative Systems Renewal #2489 5322
General Insiruction 1,000 3,000
Fiscal Stability 2,000 5,000
System Transformation 1,500 1,500
¥ 14|53-1--l 3 22 855

{1} Restricied oparating reserse for Adult Education purposes only, and in accordance with Alberta
Educatson reporting guidedines, cannot be wsed in support of K-12 educational programs

{#} Restricted operating reserve for unreelized gainafiosses only, which result from changes in the fair
rmarket value of held-for-trading financial instrumeniz

kd |
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

(Al amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

16. MET ASSETS (continued)

(a)

(k)

)

Accumulated Operating Surplus continued)

Az al August 31, 2011, the Beoard of Trustees approved the use of 33,352 of the Wility Expense
Stabilization Fee Resarve, 3200 of the Snow Removal Reserve, 51,000 of the General Instruction
Reserve, 32,000 of the Fiscal Stability Reserve, 32248 of the Administrafive Systems Renewal
Reserve, and $1,500 of the System Transformation Reserve to suppor the 2011712 Operating Budget,
The Board has also approved the use of 32,500 of School deceniralized budgats, 52,500 of Sarvice
Uinit Designated Funds, and $1,000 of Unrestricted Met Assets in support of the 201112 Operating
Budget. Subseguent to the Board of Trustees' approval of the budget, the Province of Albera
committed additional funds fo the CBE. |t is expactad that these varous resenves may not be drawn
down in 201112 1o the same amounts depending on final budget adjusiment decisions,

Capital Reserves and Designated Capital Funds

The Corporation's cap#al reserves and designated capital funds are established by Board of Trusiees'
resciution and in accordance with Provincial regulation, and are funded from proceeds on dispasals of
capital assels, provision from operating funds, or from lease revenues. To date, the following capital
reserves and designated capital funds have been established:

2011 2010

Land, Buikdings and Equipment 3 B751 & B, 701
School Program Modernization 2271 2.2
Leased School Buildings 2,000 2,000
Chingok Leaming Services Relocation 1,400 1,400
Funds designated for approved capital projects 11,544 2,314
5 25,966 § 18,686

These reserves and designated funds are io be apphed to finance fulure capital expenditures in
accordance with the specific requirements of each Board resolution. Funds may be committed from
these reserves or designated amocunts by the Board of Trustees from Ume o lime o permil tha
completion of approved capital projects. As af August 31, 2011, the Board of Trusiees has approved
the use of 311,544 of these funds for cerlain capital projects keaving 314,422 uncommitted for future
capital projects.

Investment in Capital Assets

Imvesiment in capital assets represents the Corporation’s net investment of operating funds that have
bean used from time to ime o purchase building mprovements, capital equipment and technobogy
infrastructure fo support the general operating activities of the Corporation. Az of August 31, 2011, the
Corporation has 398 647 invested in capital assets (2010 - 3101 8500



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

{All amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

16. RELATED PARTIES

(@)

Province of Alberta and economic dependence

The Corporation i econcmically dependent upan the Government of the Provinca of Albarta, since the
viability of ds on-going operations depends on granis and contributions from Alberta Education and
other provincial minisiries

Effective 200808, school junsdictions have been deemed o be controlled by the Government of
Alberta according bo criteria st out in the Canadian Institute of Charered Accountants Public Secior
Accounting Standards Section 1300, Government Reporling Entity. Al entities consolidated or
accounied for on a modified equity basis in the accounts of the Government of Alberta are now
considered related pariies of school jursdictions for financial reporting purposes. These include
government departmenis, health authorities, post-secondary instifutions and all school junsdictions in
Alberia.

Assels, liabiles and transactions of the Corporation that relste to the Govemment of Albera are as
follows:

Asgats (al
1 cast or med
realizabia
valua) Liabilities Ravenuas Expenses
Government of Albarta:
Education ] 16,231 46 332 932 407 2504
Flimancs - - 16875
Human Resources! Employmeant - - k] -
Cher Gav'l of AB Depariments 384 - - -
Oithear:
Hesdth Authorities - 47 -
Cilher Alberie echool purisdictions - 7,851 142
Ciiber relaled panies - 723 - 15,287
TOTAL 2041 16,615 47102 42 561 17,663
TOTAL 2010 3054 56,826 928,095 16, 2B5
33
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

(Al amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

16. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

(b}

(=]

(d)

EducationMatters

EducationMatters (the “Foundalion') was established in 2003 by the Corporation under a lrust
indenture. The Corporation’s Board of Trustees appoints the Govemors of the Foundation. The
Corporabon's Trustees cannol hold a majority of the Governor posiions. The Foundation promales
activities that support public education for the benefit of Calgary's students,

The Foundation i nol consclidated into these financial siatements. The resources held by the
Foundation are nof necessarnly limited for usa by the Corporation. Salected financial information for
the Fourdation for the year ended August 31, 2011 is a3 follows;

2011 2010

{umaudited)  (unauditad)

Total assets 5 2930 § 2481
Total liabilities {13) (15
Mel assets 5 2917 % 1:..45.
Fund balances hald by the Foundabon:
Flow through funds 2 508 % 342
Endowment funds 1,809 1,455
Operaling funds 510 G265
5 i 2,463
Revenues (1) 2,052 1,616
Expenses (2} {1,578} 11,682
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 5 454 % [GE)

i1} Revenuss include financal suppon from the Corporation of 3750 (2010 - 5750}
(2} Expenses paid bo the Conporation amount o 519 {2010 - $18), approved Grant disburserments to CBE
Scheools and Programs amaount 1o 5574 (2010 - 3510).

The Urban Schools Insurance Consortium

The Corporation i3 @ member of The Urban Schools Insurance Consortium (USIC), which facilitates
the placement of properly and liability insurance coverage for thiteen school jurisdictions throughout
the Province of Alberta. Amounts are paid by each of the members o the consorium to pay for
INEUTANcE premiems on policy renewals and o self-insure a porion of each member's risk exposure,
The Corporgtion’s share of the accumulated and wnencumbered consorlium funds as af August 31,
2011 was 52 442 (2010 - 52 272). Thiz amount has not been recognized in the Corporation's financial
statements, a5 sccumulated consortium funds are payable only upon membership fermination or
dissoiution of tha consortivm.

Other fundraising groups and associations

Various pareni groups, including societies and other associshons, solicit donations and undertake
fundraising aclivilies to provide operating and capital donalions fo further the objectives of the
Corporation. The financial information of these groups is not consoldated in these financial
statements as the Corporation has no control, significant influence or economic interests in any of
those entities.

34
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2011

(All amounts exprassad in thousands of dollars)

17. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

Effective September 1, 2008, the Corporation implemented new capital disclosure requirements per Saclion
1535 of the CICA Handbook.

In the shor lerm, the Corporafion’s objeciives for managing capital are to safeguard the Corporation's
financial ability to continue to deldiver education; and in the long-term, the Corporation aims to plan and build
financzal and sufficient physical capacity to mest future needs for the Corporation’s education programs and
SEIVICES.

The Corporation defines its capital as the amounts included in net assets, The Corporation’s cbjective when
managing its capital = to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concem so that it can continue to
provide an array of educational services to its complex and diverse siudent population

In crder to facilitate the management of its capital requirements, the Corporation prepares ennual capifal and
operating budgets that are updated as necessary, depending on vasicus factors, including the market
valuation of the investrmenis and general industry conditions, The annual budgets are approved by the Board
of Trustees.

The majorty of the Corporation's operating funds are received from Alberta Education which are generally
paid every month. As a result, significantly less working capital is required. The Corporation monstors its
working capital and cash flows against its forecasts,

A portion of the capital funding is restricted in that the Corporafion is required to receive approval from the
Minister of Education for draws against any amount in which the Provincial Depariment of Education has an
interest.  In addifion, the Corporation has restricted a portion of s shor-term cash for specific capital
projects and specific lease payment obligations. The Corporation has internal confrol processes primariby
through its Administrative Regulations, to ensure that the restrictions are met prior to the utilization of thesa
resources, The Corporation has been in compliance with these restrictions throughout the vear

The Corporaton has leveraged its excess short-term cash balances in support of energy retrofit projects in
schools and in suppord of the Dr. Carl Safran Modemnization project through capital leasing arrangements in
order o minimize incremental borrowing cosis. In addifion, in 200810 the Corporation, in collaboration with
its extemal imaestment advisor, invested $30 million of shor-term cash in high guality bonds of varying
duration to enhance #s invesiment income stream. However, during 2010M11, the Corporation disposed of
$14.5 million of those securifies in support of cash flow requirements for the vear,

The Corporation sefs the amount of infemally resiricted funds in proporion to risk, manages the net assat

siructure and makes adjustments to i in kght of changes in economic condiions and the risk charactenstics
of the underlying assets

18. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain 2010 amounts have been reclassified where necessary o conform to the current vear's prasentation.



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATIOMN
DETAILED SCHEDIILE OF REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2011

Schedula |
Budget
[unaudited) Actual
01 2011 2010
(i thousards) {in thausands)
Alberta Education grants
Base provincial instruction grants
Kindergartan § a2k % mi82 % 21,704
IngIruction - Elementary 302710 302,534 256,654
Instructon - Junsar High 135, 163 134 862 133,906
Insiruction = Senior High 163,072 182,465 17T 487
Alberta Education clawback £ = {1,123}
Total Basae provincial instruction grints 5 B4826T § BAED43 % 58E B39
Ditferential cost funding
Operabions and mainienance - Regular TS808 T8 508 8,278
Special education programs (Ge 1 - 12) 51,501 51,531 51,531
English as a second languags 28,921 28 265 26,715
Transpoation - Regular 28,135 28,183 28,315
Socicaconomic stabus 2877 8,784 8,783
Kindergarlen - Special Education (PLIF and MEM) 8,191 8,220 6,371
Relative cost of purchasing geods and senices adj (RCPA]} 8405 7.5 7778
Firsi Malions, etz and Inull education 3,660 3. m60 3425
Operations and mainienance - RCPA 3288 3,08 3270
Qther differential cast funding 3231 2153 2,013
Emall Schaols by Mecessity 2192 1,930 2,050
Transporiafion - RCEA 72r 729 7
Total Differentlal cost funding grants 5 228628 0§ 226457 % 224 855
Prowincial priority targetad grants 20,141 8 20,788 % BE.615
Other provincial education grants
infrastruciune Malntenance Renewsl (IMR) 18,248 23,054 16,506
Cier programs 18,10 13,753 21,564
Total Other provincial education grants 5 258 0§ IER12 § a7 or
Capital support
Supporied schoal bulding amonization 23,663 23,731 18,540
Dabenture interast for school projects 1,875 1.878 2,358
Total Capital suppaort § 25,5338 5 25,628 3 200 B3
Total Alberia Education grants ] H57 832§ BET.TIE 3 A28
Oithar prowincial revenus 5 2431 & 1,852 & 1.218
Federal grants and education agreements § 2973 % 3qoz 3 2838
School generated funds H] 5Irs & 33,590 37651
Dt revenus
Indwiduals and organizalions 20,968 23,626 2& 540
Rentals 7.828 T.710 B.035
Instructanal supply and maberal fees 7158 7493 1.4
Transporation feas 8,319 6,062 5, 582
Irvesimenl income 2,800 3,996 2248
School suthorities and local governmants 2,368 2,448 2,358
Linrealzed gain on investment - 1,283 1,750
Zain on dispossl of asEels - 44 174
Total Other revenus 3 AT 261 8§ 52,666 5 48,870
Tolal revenue ] 1a5ET2 & 1,049,538  § 1,030,075

38
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 231, 2011

Schedule Il
Budgel
{unaudited) Actual
2011 2041 2010
{in thowsands) {in thousands)
Salaries and benefits
Certificated regular ] SR, 603 $ GiB4,844 ¥ 559, 7BS
Certilicabed temparary 20,749 23,344 22 054
Won-certficated regular 211,081 200,368 187,217
Mon-cerdicated temparary 8,029 12,673 12 G6R
Total salaries and benefits $ 808,362 3 801,227 % 781,724
Services purchased
Transporation 34373 35,529 3520
Profassional and technical 23529 28,752 26,057
Maintenance and repas 23,6448 28,361 19,183
Uidifies 24 537 22636 23309
Equepment and facility rentals 3,388 8,080 3,336
Insurance premiums and losgeg 2,858 2919 2571
Dues and fees 1,968 1,564 1,821
Travel and subsistence 1,548 1,433 1,461
Transfer payments to other jurisdiclions 1,201 1,378 1,337
CHher 2,084 ™ B17
Total Services purchased % 119,153 ¥ 120410 % 115,882
Supplies and materials
Supplies 26,241 2T, 769 28,811
Minor egquiprmeni 16,852 14,828 16,615
Textiooks and madia materials 3,381 3 k26 3,407
Total Supplies and malerials 5 48,284 ¥ 45,624 5 48,933
Schaool funded activities 5 35,375 ¥ 33,530 5 a7.651
Intarast
Interest on kong-term liabilities 1875 1,875 2,368
Eank and other interest 4218 1,383 574
Total Interest ] 8,083 5 3,268 3 2,942
Amuortization of capital assets 42 BEE 41,888 34,296
Total expanse 3 1,082 265 _! 1,064,998 3 1,021,438
37
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REVENUE BY SOURCE

LAST TEN YEARS

(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal Provincial Qther School generated Tatal
Yaar revenue % revenue . funds % revenus
2002 600487 B2.3% 43,007 8.5% 37,862 1.2% 5860,386
2003 654,685 o2a% $43 844 B.2% ¥5,052 1.0% 3705 481
2004 TEEE 121 92.7% 54E, 240 G.4% 3723 0.9% 3721084
2005 713018 83.0% 44,505 5.8% $9.104 1.2% F767.025
2008 754293 93.0% $49.676 6.1% $6,033 0.9% $610,902
2007 795,056 91.9% $62, 685 7.2% 37444 0.9% FEET 125
2008 051,772 81.8% 568,428 7.3% 37528 0.8% 3037728
2009 $890.363 90.9% $53,198 5.4% 536,306 3.7% FO79.8E7
2040 5930 607 81.2% 52817 51% 537651 37% 51,030,075
2011 $950.578] 91.4% $56,370 5.4% §33,500f 3.2% $1,049,538
Meodes:

{1) The provincial revenue cobumn reflects all provincial revenues including property fax revenues which are collected and

disfributed by the Province.

{2) Certain school genarated funds expenses of prior years have been reclassified to conform with the presantation applied in

2000 and subs=quent years.

{3) In 2008, the Calgary Board of Education adopled Canadian Institution of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook Section
4400 “Financial Statement presentation by not-for profit organizations™ such that revenues and expenses should be

recognized and presented at their gross amounts when an organization is acling a& a principal in transactions.
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CALGARY BEOARD OF EDUCATIOM

EXPENSE BY OBJECT

LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
School
Fizcal Salaries Serices Supplies and funded Total
Year and benafits purchased materiaks Interesi Amaortizaton activities EEpEnges
2002 3514,838) 563,043 32.500 50770 318,847 57.BG62 $547.7E9
T9.5% 9.9% 6.0% 1.5% 2.9% 1.2% 100.0%
2003 546,781 573240 E33.600 58,512 5201748 56,852 H5BD.363
78.3% 10.6% 4.9% 1.3% 2.9% 1.0% 100.0%
2004 F556,750 575674 832767 57.504 20,192 56.723 H609 607
T9.6% 10.8% 4.7% 1.0% 2.9% 1.0% 100.0%
2005 $502 365 581,723 538495 56,588 321,218 59,104 £749 453
T9.0% 10.9% 5.2% 0.9% 2.8% 1.2% 100.0%
2008 521,501 396,607 540,583 55672 22,178 §6.933 793,654
TH.3% 12.2% 5.1% 0.7% 2.8% 0.9% 1040.0%
2007 PG00 262 5109995 F4a.7 54611 $25,385 57444 5045 692
T6.8% 13.0% 5.7% 0.6% 3.0% 0.9% 100.0%
2008 $500 637 5121355 547 207 53,830 $26 848 37.528 5006 443
77.2% 13.4% 5.2% 0.4% 3.0% 0.8% 100.0%
2008 740,295 5119,891 543,898 53,254 §a2 288 536,306 5881.832
75.4% 12.2% 5.1% 0.3% 3.3% 3.7% 100.0%
2010 ITE1,T24 5115892 $48 933 52,842 24,296 837,651 51.021.438
T6.5% 11.3% 4.8% 0.3% 3.4% 3.7% 100.0%
2011 801,227 5125410 545,624 §3.2h4 F41.883| 533.580 51.054,998
75.5% 12.3% 4.3% 0.3% 4.0% 3.2% 100.0%
Mobes:

£8

(1) Carlam school generated funds expenses of prior years have been reclassified to conform with the presentation applied in 2000 and
(2] In 2004, the Calgary Board of Education adopted Canadian Institution of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook Seclion 4400

40

"Financial Slatement presentation by not-for profit crganizations” such that revenues and expenses should be recognized and presented
at their gross amounts when an organization i acling as a principal in ransactions,
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

SUMMARY OF ENROLMENTS
LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal Yoar 2002 | | 2003 | | 2004 | | 2005 | | 2006 | 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011
HKINDERGARTEM E, 196 E,241 6,361 6,140 | &223 6,287 6,574 7,080] 7,20 7 490|
|!L!uurrr.m~r
Grade 1 Bad1| | 6217 | Guoed| | &3oe| | 6347) | 6450 | e311| | 6661 8,984 7,165
Grade 2 6286 | 6212 | saez7| | 6112 | e3es] | 63| | 6372 | 6334| | 6550 5,943
Grade 3 soan| | 6008 | ses3| | se9s3| | eoos) | eeze| | ease| | szvz| | sove| | G415
Grade 4 spa1| | 5595 | se00| | s7ar| | ses4) | ses2| | eois| | 573 5,853 5,847
Grade 5 5,564 5041 famd 5715 5,671 LR 5 E2% 5843 5612 5852
Grade § 6,160 5,028 6702 5,625 5,616 LR 5,743 £.647 S 5.7H
Spacial Education (Gr 1 - 6) s782| | s700| | &es7| | 5342| | s7eel | sas2| | s5274] | 5676 5,833 5,064
Total Elementary a2414| | 41,500 | 41.172| | 40,008] | a1,470] | az340| | 41808] | 42188] [ 42683 [ 43032
JUMIOR HIGH
Grade 7 300 | 6255 | ems| | eos7| | s7s2| | ses8| | eq27| | 57w 5,733 5,474
Grade 8 Ba4z| | 6342 | 6308 | &213| | sem) | 60| | eo0ss| | 6018 5,763 5,821
Grade 8 6378| | 6422 | 64s5| | 6458 | s1e9) | 6226 | ez12] | &oos| | &1m 8,123
Special Education (Gr 7 - 9) 3888| | 4.275| | aanoz| | 4100 | 4542) | a403| | 3ese| | aszae] | ases| | 3819
Total Junior High 23,010| | 23.294| | 23.208| | 22.808) | z2434) | 22586| | 22403| | 22.377) [ 22.296) | 21,847
SENIOR HIGH
Grade 10 7ams| | roar| | ssga| | rrm| | 7rav) | veto| | 7vose| | save| | s7ea 730
Grade 11 ve70| | eosa| | 7evs| | soose| | 7esal | eoee Tan4| | 7215 7154 7361
Grade 12 wos2f | 10.220) | ess3| | 1o0e2] | 10.538| | 10486 | t0482| | s949 | 10434 | 11781
Spacial Education (Gr 10 - 12) 2.840| | 3.0a0| | 4256 agt4) | 37s3a) | sois| | 5618 5,431 5,054
Total Senior High 27.767| | 28.538| | 28.756| | 20.084] | 29,772| | so0s0| | 29.83z] | ze658| | 28.8s2) [ 31300
TOTAL ENROLMENT 99,387| | 99.573| | 99497 | s8,921) | 99,898 | 101,473( | 100,504 |101,285] | 102,012] | 103,669

Males: 1] Sinoca 1864, 2erior high students are luncsd an courss complaton Dul enrslmants ans Dased on FBead counts,
2] Special Eduzation ncludes all sudents who ane coded with a mild, moderate, ofted and ented ar sevena disaiy,
Commencing in 2002, funding for severely disabled studants @ provdad based cn & risdclion profie

Searces (1) Francial Sarvicas Daparimant and Albara Educatian, School Finance Daparimant. Final ennoimens oot is epoied on e basis
o which grars funding was calculated.
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

PER PUPIL COST STATISTICS
LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
12,000
SEI 840 510,065
10,000
39114
BE.412
37595
53000 + — — __ET.'E'?E_
sso47 57,068
56,515
36,000 - S L
54,000 S L
52,000 4 — .
&g

20 2003 2004 2005 2006 2m1

Mote: In order b provide comparable infermation, the calculafion of par pupil costs excludes expensas from both school
funded aclivities, given the discrefisnary nature of these aclivities, and costs relating to adult students. Kindergarten children
are countad as 0.5 FTE in the calculation.



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

DEMOGRAPHIC AND MISCELLANEQUS INFORMATION
AUGUST 31, 2011

(UNAUDITED)

GEOGRAPHIC AREA - City of Calgary:

248 Square Kilometres

POPULATION - April 2011 Census: 1,090,936
NUMEER OF SCHOOLS:"

Elementary 133
Elementary/Junior High/Middle 27
Junior High 23
JuniorSenior High T
Elementany/Junior High/Senior High (Home Education) 1
Senior High 17
Unique Settings and Unique Special Education Settings 1
Cutreach Programs 4
TOTAL SCHOOLS 223

*The: berm school & delined &5 an instructional setting assigned & unique school code by Alberta Educaton.

NUMBER OF BUDGETED EMPLOYEES:

Cerificated K Staff 245
Certificated 1 - 6 Staff 2,396
Cerificated 7 - 9 Staff 1,479
Certificated 10 - 12 Staff 1,801
Other Certificated Siaff (including secondments and professional improvement keaves) 213
Caretaking Staff 535
Other School Uncerificated Staff 1,810
Other Uncertificated Staff 825
TOTAL STAFF {in full-time eguivalants} 9,104

Sources: (1) Cily of Calgary 2011 Civic Census

{2} Community Engagement and Operational Planning, September 2011

{3) Approved 201011 Operating Budgset.
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
SELECTED DEFINITIONS OF FINANCIAL TERMINOLOGY
AUGUST 31, 2011

The following selected definitions have specific meanings as used in the Corporation's financial
slatements.,

School generated funds are funds raised in the community for activities that come under the control
and responsibility of school management {usually viewed as being the principal andfor those reporting
to the Principal). Within school generated funds, when schools undertake fundraising and extra-
curricular activities, the related costs are netted against the amount of recorded school generated
funds revenue.

Met operating surplus (deficiency) or Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expense have the
same definition, which is the annual determination of the extent to which the Corporation has been able
lo obtain resources o cover the cost of its services in the current fiscal year.

Capital assets, comprising tangible properties, such as land, buildings and equipment, and intangible
properies, are idenfifiable agsetz that meet all of the following criteria;

{a) are held for use in the provision of services, for administrative purposes, for production of goods or
for the maintenance, repair, development or construction of other capital assets;

ih) have been acquired, constructed or developed with the intention of being used on a continuing
basis;

(¢} are nolintended for sale in the ordinary course of operations; and

(d) are not held ag part of a collection.

Amortization of capital assets is the periodic charge to expense which recognizes that a capital asset
has a finite life and that the cost of a capital asset is allocated to the periods, or years, of service
provided by the asset.

Unearned revenue iz the amount of resticted revenue for which the related restrictions remain
unfulfilled {(e.g.. funding received for a project which is not yet completed).

Debt, including bank indebtedness, debenture debt and capital lease obligations, is a financial liability
that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another party.

Deferred capital revenue contributions are capital grants that are deferred and recognized as
revenue in the same perods as the related expense (i.e., amortization of the provincially funded capital

assel) is recognized.

Total net assets represents the Corporation's residual interest in its assets after deducting its
iabiliies. The net assets balance therefore provides information about the net resources the
Corporation has available for camying out its service delivery activities in the future.

Total net assets is compnsad of the following:

Unrestricted operating surplus represents the aggregation of successive years' annual unrestricted
excesses and deficiencies of revenue over expense.



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
SELECTED DEFINITIONS OF FINANCIAL TERMINOLOGY
AUGUST 31, 2011

Designated funds are internally restricted operating funds which have been designated by the Board
of Trustees for specific purposes. These funds generally fall within two categories:

1. School decentralized budgets carried forward represent the unspent balances of schools'
decentralized budget allocations. This practice is followed in recognition of schools’ needs to
provide from these allocations, for many non-consumable resources (such as textbooks,
photocopiers, technology and other instructional materials) which are not incurred in equal annual
amounts.

2. Specific Board of Trustee designation for projects which occur over more than one school year or
budget allotments which relate to a future school year.

Operating reserves are established by Provincial regulation or authorization of the Board of Trustees
and may represent funds available for future operating expenses.

Accumulated operating surplus represents the aggregate of the Corporation's balances of
unresiricted operating surplus, designated funds, and operating reserves.

Capital reserves are established by authorization of the Board of Trustees and are intended to be
apphed to finance future capital projects.

Investment in capital assets represents the Corporation's net investment of operating funds which
have besn used from time to time to purchase building improvements, capital equipgment and
technologies to support the general operating activities of the Corporation.

Cortificated staff represents those staff that have acquired an Alberta Teaching Cerificate.
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA
December 6, 2011
To: Board of Trustees
From: Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools
Re: Combined Annual Education Results Report 2010-2011 and

Three-Year Edueation Plan 2011-2014
Purpose: Approval

Governance Policy References: Ends | through 5
EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of
Trustees
EL-5: Annual Report to the Public

Ovriginator: Cathy Faber, Supenntendent, Learning Innovation

Resource Persons:  David Stevenson, Deputy Chief Superintendent of Schools
Frank Coppinger, Superintendent, Facilities and Environmental Services
Wayne Braun, Director — Corporate Financial Services
Elizabeth Gouthro, Director — Learning Services
Ronna Mosher, Director, Office of the Chief Superintendent
Sheila McLeod, Director — Global Leaming Services
Brant Parker, Director — Innovation and Leaming Technology
Darlene Selby, Director -~ Learning Services
Arca Directors

I. RECOMMENDATIONS

It 15 recommended:

THAT the Board of Trustees approve the Combined Annual Education Results Report
2010-2011 and Three-Year Education Plan 2011-2014.

IL ISSUE

Alberta Education requires that school board and school education plans and annual results
reports be aligned with the Ministry ol Education’s vision, mission, goals, outcomes and
performance measures for the basic education system. Alberta Education’s Accountability
Framework thus works to ensure that the K-12 education system is effectively focused on
meeting the educational needs of Alberta students.  Junsdiction and school plans also

b 30



incorporate local strategies and may include local goals, priorities, oulcomes and measures
that reflect the unique characteristics and circumstances of their communities.'  School
boards are responsible for putting their education plans into action, for reporting annually
to parents, communities and government on results and vse of resources, and for using the
data to inform plans which enhance student success.

. BACKGROUND

The Three Year Education Plan and the Annual Education Results Report are key elements
of the Alberta Education Accountability Framework for the K — 12 education system. They
support accountability and transparency throughout the system and ensure alignment of
schools and authorities with provincial direction. The combined Annual Education Results
Report 2000-2011 and Three-Year Education Plan 200]-20114 also provides a broad
strategic plan that encompasses all CBE Units of Change in support of student progress
towards the Board's Governance Policy — Ends and informs the budgeting process as
outlined in EL-10.

Current research on education planning emphasizes the importance of clarity of purpose.
An effective plan articulates a single outcome and identifies three or four strategies to
achieve it thereby providing clear direction for everyone in the organization. The Chief
Superintendent therefore gave the direction to provide a compelling three vear plan that
would guide and direct the work of the Calgary Board of Education. The Three Year
Education Plan 2011-2014 reflects this bold and innovative vision.

In positioning Ends |: Mega End as our overarching goal, we recognize our primary
accountability to the Board of Trustees of the Calgary Board of Education. Our
accountability to Alberta Education 1s recogmized in the single outcome, student success,
demonstrating our understanding that this is the common goal of province and jurisdiction
alike.

Four metastrategies — personalize learning, build our capacity, engage our public and
steward our resources — lead us (o this goal. Three strategies have been defined for cach
metastrategy. Following our school development planning processes and alignment of
service units, each school, Area, department and service unil is required to devise actions
and implement the system strategies in ways which speak to their context. The result is a
Three Year Education Plan which sharpens the focus on student learning as the central
purpose of the work while enabling schools, Areas, service units and departiments lo
implement system strategies through actions which best meet the needs of students in
particular contexts,

The combined Annual Education Results Report 2000-2001 and Three-Year Education
Plan 207 1-2014 includes all required components.

'Policy and Requirements for School Board Planning and Results Reporting April 200 fal
hitp:twww aducation.alberta. co'medin’ad TOT6% ek 200201 1 %a20schoo] Yol board%e Mplanning a2 Ge upde? e 2 0version

a2014.pdl 6 g1


http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/6470769/feb%202011%20school%20board%20planning%20guide%20version%2014.pdf

1IV. CONCLUSION

This document demonstrates the alignment between the jurisdiction’s resulls, the ensuing
strategies developed to improve student learning outcomes, and the ways in which budget
and capital and facilities planning support our strategies.

NAOMI E. JOHNSON

CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

ATTACHMENT
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Part of being unique Is that each student [earns differently. Students can realize their full potential by
learning in ways that recognize their individuality, This is why the CBE is dedicated to personalized
leaming. Each of our more than 104,000 students is supported by a system. The CBE has the
capacity to lead in education while honeuring each student's gifts. The result is a rich and dynamic
leaming experience that enables lifelong learning.

| as unique |
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Our Ultimate Goals

The Annual Education Results Report 2010-2011 combined with the Three-Year
Education Plan 2011-2014 helps the CBE build strategies that support student learing.
These strategies align to the Board of Trustees’ Ends statements, and contribute to
learning as unique as every student The Board of Trustees defines the objectives as:

Ends 1 Mega End

Each student, in keeping with his or her individual abilities and gifts, will complete high
school with a foundation to function effectively in life, work and continued learning.

Ends 2 Academic Success

Each student will possess the knowledge, skills and attitudes required for academic
success and be effectively prepared for life, work and further leaming.

Ends 3 Citizenship

Each student will be a responsible citizen by being an informed and involved member in
hiz or her local, national and global communities.

Ends 4. Persanal Development

Each student will acquire the skills, attitudes and knowledge to achieve parsonal highest
pobential.

Ends 5: Character

Each student will possess the character to do what is right, act morally with wisdom, and
balance individual concarms with the rights and needs of others.



Accountability

The Annual Education Results Repor for the 2010-2011 school year and the Education
Plan for the three years commencing Sept. 1, 2011 for the Calgary Board of Education
was prepared under the direction of the Board in accordance with its responsibilities
under the School Act and the Govermment Accountabilify Act. Thiz document was
developed in the context of the provincial government's business and fiscal plans. The
Board has used the resulls reported in the document, to the best of its abilities, to
develop the Education Plan and iz committed to implementing the strategies contained
within the Education Plan to improve student learming and results,

School councils play a key role in education and council advice iz actively sought and
seriously considered prior to making decisions on a wide range of school issues. School
councils help build the context of School Development Plans through direct input at
meetings and the opportunities for suggestions and feedback provided to all parents.
The Calgary Board of Education has established Administrative Regulations that ensure
school principals work toward:

* gnhancing communication between the school and its parent community;

= providing @ method by which the schoaol, the home and the community may work
together for the benefit of students;

= prowviding & forum for discussion of school philosophies, plans and operations that
conftributes to the creation of the School Development Plan,

The Board of Trustees approved this combined Annual Education Results Repart for the
20102011 school year and the Three-Year Education Plan for 2011-2014 on Dec, 6,
2011.

FPat Cochrane, Chair Maomi E, Johnson

The Calgary Board of Education Three-Year Education Plan may be accessed using the
following permalink:

Dl feion i abcarsbodusddocurments 10 T TAERR pdr



http://www.cbe.ab.ca/aboutus/documents/1011AERR.pdf

Program Overview

Three-Year Education Plan 2011-2014 Overview

The Three-Year Education Plan guides our work and connects each CBE employee o
our Mega End and our degired oulcome of student success. Our task iz to create an
environment in which each student has the opportunity to become an engaged leamer,
prepared for success in life, work and future leaming. We therefore focus on four
objectives. personalize learning; build our capacity; engage our public; and steward our

MesQuUrces.

Each student, in keeping with his or her individual abllities and gifts, will complete high school
with a foundation of learning to function effectively in life, work and continued leaming.
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Success for each student,
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Three-Year Education Plan 2011-2014 Strategies

To achieve our desired outcome, the CBE has described strategies to achieve our Mega
End. Among them, we are working to arficulate and advance a coherent, system-wide

vision of high-quality teaching and leaming. These strategies are a work in progress that
will continue to get better with ongoing input from employees.

Personalize Build Our Engage Our Steward Qur
Learning Capacity Public Resources
Articulate and advine 4 Establish districi-wide profsiong Enfarce urdersanding of and Faciitate colkective capacity for
caherent, system-wide vision f dewdnperest i seppertaf particigation i poblic educrion P creation, comdnation, and
kigh quality teacking and personalized learning and districy thasiigh increaed diic irmegration.
leaming. e, engagement
Implement 3 wel-articulated Promate 3 workplece culere thet Promete @ workplace oalture bult Impezwe access o data that sepperts
Tramewark for sysiem-wits EFSLIES CORT U Imprement in o The valges of woice, ransparent decision making
il uive practioes, [0S prAision, senvice delivery, acceurabiliny, setf-uifficiency,
and professional kaming dors the charity of mele and rspenskiity, and
oL, i which a8 employees find
meaning and fulfiliment
S imtructional practioes Develop integration sirategies 1o Engage comeTenify parners i Increese dlignmest of business
that ieflect Albeia Bducations MRS impact on shudent sues cpllaborative venberes 10 SUpport practices with extemal effcency
eompetency-bated conoepsi arss Calgary Beard of Erucation sTudent kaming standands,
of lileracy and numeaicy. Ends.



October 2011 Accountability Pillar Overall Summary
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October 2011 Accountability Pillar Overall Summary

First Mations, Métis & Inuit Students (FMNMI)
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Goal One Success for Every Student

Outcome Students demonstrate proficiency in literacy & numeracy

Parformanca Keaaur

2007

| Results {In parcentagen)
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Goal One Success for Every Student

Outcome  Students achieve educational outcomes
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Goal One Success for Every Student

Qutcome Students are prepared for the 21st century

Results (in percentages)
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Goal Two Transformed Education Through Collaboration

Outcome  Students have access lo programming and supports to enable their

learning
Fesulta [ pe Targal Targats
T 2007 | 2008 | 2008 [2010 [2011 ] 2011 2013 | 2014
Perceniage of leachers,

parents and shudenis salisfied
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Goal Two Transformed Education Through Collaboration

Outcome

lhe education system demonslrates openness to new & innovative
ideas, leadership and collaboration

| y “?Hnuh- (in parcantages) | Targat Evaluation Targets
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Goal Three Success for First Nations, Matis & Inuit (FNMI)

Outcome  FNMI students are engaged in learning

Resulls (in parcentages) | Target Evaluation Targets
e 2008 | 2007 [ 2008 [ 2008 [2010 | 2014 2012 | 2013 | 20a
High School Completion Rate -
peroentages af sludenls wis
compikated high school within 336|287 | 255 | 221|252 271 %31 374 8.7
three years of anbaning Grade 10
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rata of students aged 14 ta 18 134 ) 1445 1138 |10.5 (136
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;Fll'lﬂ'l'l'ﬂﬂll Maasura
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Creeral percenlage of sbudants in
Grades 3, G and 9 who achieved
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Goal Three Success for First Nations, Métis & Inuit (FNMI) cont

Outcome  FNMI students are engaged in learning

Sheswarnd our MsmIrces

Stratogios
* Fersonakize kaming
= Build our capacity
= Engage our publc

Molas |

« Aggregesd PAT mault afe based upen a seighicd average of percem meeting standards [Acceptble, Excellence). The weighiings ane the number of
shadenis anrclled in each coursd Coursid Foloded Englan Language Ats (Cradea 3, 6, 9), Scenca [Ceades B, 9], French Language Ards {Grodes. G, 8],
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Summary of Financial Results for the 2010-2011 School Year

The Calgary Board of Education's total revenues increased by 1.9 per cent to $1.050
billion in 2010-2011 from $1.030 billion in the previous year. The corporation’s total
expenditure increase for the year was 3.3 per cent, resulting in total expenses of $1.055
billion, up from $1.021 billion in 2003-2010. As a result, the corporation managed its
financial operations, after Board of Trustees approved transfers to and from reserves, to
an actual annual operating deficit of $1.3 million, which represents approximately 0.1 per
cent of total revenue.

The following analysis is based on 98 524 full-time equivalent students in K-12 with
kindergarten children counted at 0.5 FTE.

During the 2010-2011 school year, per-pupil costs (excluding adult programming,
school-generated funds and Regional Assessment Services) were 310,065, compared to
$9,890 in 2009-2010. This represents an increase of 1.8 per cent, primarily reflecting
general inflationary increases.

The categories defining the distribution of the Board's $1.055 billion expenses in
2010-2011 are
« |nstruction [grades K = 12) $822.6 million

Inciudes salaries and benefits for certificated and non-certificated staff, supplies
and minor equipment necessary (o provide instruction that meets the leamer
expectations of students in core programs, complementary programs, and support
for students who are English Language Leamers and special educalion programs
for students with disabilities. Also included are expenses that are at the discretion
of schoaols and the Board. During the 2010-2011 school year, operational
expenses per student for instruction (grades K — 12) were $8,232 compared to
$8,177 in 2008-2010. This increase of 0.7 per cent is mainly as a result of general
inflationary increases for all other CBE instructional expenses.

* Operations and Maintenance (including Infrastructure
Maintenance Renswal) $140.0 million
Includes operation and maintenance of school buildings, including utilities,
custodial staff, and maintenance and repairs, During the 2010-2011 school year,
operational expenses per student for operations and maintenance were 1,401
compared to $1,275 in 2009-2010, an increase of 9.9 per cent. This is mainly as a
rasult of an increase in fully-funded Infrastructure Maintenance Renawal
spending.

* Student Transportation £36.9 million
Includes organization and transportation of students to and from schools,
excluding charters for field frips. During the 2010-2011 school year, operational
expenses per expected transported student for transportation were 51,047 (based
on 35,267 expected eligible student passengers for transportation funding
purposes) compared to $1,048 in 2008-2010, a decrease of 0.1 per cent.
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« Board and System Administration $40.1 million
Includes Board Governance and System Administration salaries, benefits,
supplies and services expenses. During the 2010-2011 school year, operational
expenses per student for board and system administration were 3401, which
remained congistent with the prior year.

* Other Services $15.4 million
Includes Chinook Learning Services and Regional Assessment Services program
expenses, Total spending in 2009-2010 was 313 825,000, an increase of 11.6 per
cant,

Financial Position

As at Aug. 31, 2011, the CBE had an unrestricted operating surplus of $2.2 million which
reflacts a decrease of $1.3 million from $3.5 million in the 2008-2010 fiscal year. In
addition, at Aug. 31, 2011, the corporation’'s overall net assets stand at $149.9 million
versus $155.4 million for 2008-2010, which primarily represents ocperating and capital
reservas, dasignated operating funds and Board-funded investments in capital assets.
This decline is primarily tied to a planned draw down of restructured operating reserves
during 2010-2011.

Sehool-Generated Funds

School-generated funds (SGF) includes enhancement activities in support of enriched
student leaming opportunities. In 2010-2011, revenues and expenses wera $33.6 million
and are reported at gross amaounts in accordance with the new CICA Handbook
standards. School-generated funds are primarily generated through fundraising
activities, non-instructional fees and donations and grants. Comresponding expenses
primarily support educational excursions, non-instructional fees and charges, extra-
curricular activities, field trips, aquipment and other expenditures that augment student
learning.
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Financial Summary for the Year Ended Aug. 31, 2011

REVENUE SUMMARY EXPENSE SUMMARY
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2011-2012 Updated Operating Budget

On Dec. 6, 2011, the Board of Trustees will be asked to approve the CBE's 2011-2012
updated operating budget reflecting total planned spending of $1.15 billion. Approved
budgets are prepared in accordance with the:

Board of Trustees' Ends and Executive Limitation policies
Threa-Year Education Plan for the Calgary Board of Education
service levels determined by Superintendents

requirements of Alberta Education

In addition, through the original operating budget process, discussions were held with
employes group representatives and other stakeholders, The focus of the 2011-2012
operating budget is to maintain services to our students by placing an emphasis on
reducing, redeploying or reallocating resources and associated supports in regard o
programs and services, and examining all areas of the organization for synergies and
operational efficiencies particularly at service units,

The fall updated operating budget will be submitted to Alberta Education immediately
following the Board of Trustees' approval and reflects financial support for the outcomes,
strategies and actions articulated in the CBE's Three-Year Education Plan 2011-2014
and forms the basis of the 2011-2012 updated work plans for each of the CBE's service
units and fall resource deployment by principals at schoaols.

The following is a brief summary of the Calgary Board of Education's 2011-2012 Fall

updated operating budget and reflects additional funding received from the province and
enrolment counts at Sept. 30, 2011.
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2011-2012 Updated Operating Budget

REVENUE SUMMARY
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Funding & Other Revenues

Funding allocations from Alberta Education are distributed in three categories:

*  base instructional funding
* differential cost factors funding
= provincial priority targeted funding

The base and differential cost funding is simply a method of allocating funds to the CBE.
The CBE then allocates funds internally to address local school needs and service unit
support areas. Provincial priority targeted funding is provided for specific purposes, and
the related allocations must be spent on the priority programs for which the allocations
were provided. The CBE currently receives provincial priority targeted funding for a
multitede of programs including: the Alberta Initiative for School Improvement (AlS1); the
Student Health Initiative; high speed networking (Supernet); and the Children and Youth
with Complex Meeds Inifiative.

The 2011-2012 fall updaled operating budget reflects all applicable announced grant
funding rate changes and the Sept. 30, 2011 student count. Of the $1,130.5 million in
total expected revenues (not including approved transfers from Operating and Capital
reserves), grant revenues from Albarta Education are projected to be $1,041.5 million.
This budgeted grant revenue reflects an increase of $38.9 million, or 3.9 per cenl from
the modified approved 2010-2011 budget and is a result of:

*  $19.2 million representing the one-time, addtional funding which has baen
distributed directly to schoals through the resource allocation method (RAM) as
outlined in the funding announcement;

* $17.9 million representing the announced increase in the base instruction grant
rates, differential funding expected to be received tied to student complexity, and
the finalized student enroiment at Sept. 30;

*  $3.7 million incremental tied to the Alberta Teacher Retiremeant Fund (2010-2011
reporting was not required);

* $1.0 million reflecting student transportation grant funding revenues, primarily tied
to a fuel grant increase,

= 30.3 million for other capital support primarily reflecting the addition of the new
Ernest Manning High School;

= {$1.7) million in Plant, Operations and Maintenance (PO&M) funding:

= ($1.5) million reflecting revenue reduction tied to provincial priority targeted
funding.

School-generated funds (SGF) revenues are budgeted at $30.2 million or a $0.4 million
increase from the 2010-2011 budget primarily reflecting increased activity at schools.

Qutside of provincial grant funding and SGF, all other revenues (board mandated fee
collections, discreticnary pregram collections, interest income, rental and l2asing
revenues, and federal tuition fees) have been budgeted at $58.7 million reflecting a 54.5
million increasa from the 2010-2011 budget due to the increase of noon-supervision fees
as well as increases in transportation fee rates and other miscellaneous revenuas
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Approximately 77 per cent of the CBE's operating budget provides for the certificated
and non-certificated salaries and benefits of CBE employees (including tha Alberta
Teacher Retirement Fund flow-through expenses). The fall updated budgeted full time
aquivalent (FTE) staff iz 9,026 reflecting 5,829 certificated staff and 3,197 non-
carificated staff. The salary and benefit cost information presented in the 2011-2012 fall
updated operating budget is based on certain expenditure assumptions, on past
exparence and on the fall resource allocation and deployment decisions made within
CBE schools. These staffing levels reflect an increase of 243 FTEs since the budgel was
initially approved in June 2011 primarily reflacting increases in school based and
instructional support staff funded by the one-time, additional $19.2 million, net of
decreases in senvice units



Budget Initiatives

2011-2012 Budget Intiatives ana COutiook

In the 2011-2012 school year, the CBE will focus on maintaining services to students
and meeting priority needs. This will be achieved through investments in the
persenalization of student learning, and other strategic initiatives embedded in the
Three-Year Education Plan. In the preparation of the 2011-2012 budget, the CBE was
faced with the projected revenues not keeping pace with virtually all anticipated cost
increases. In a provincial fiscal environment of negligible resource increases, emphasis
has been placed on reducing, redeploying or reallocating resources and associated
suppaorts in regard to programs and services, and examining all areas of the organization
for synergies and operabional efficiencies particularly at service units. The CBE has
identified considerable changes to both staffing and service levels through senice
delivery redesign fo ensure a long-term financially sustainable, fiscal position while
honouring the Board of Trustees’ Values influencing the budget process, namely:

* Students come first
* Learning is our central purposea
« Public education sernves the common good

Subsequent to the preparation and approval of the 2011-2012 Operating Budget, the
province announced a one-time restoration of education funding in the amount of $107
million for the province as a whole. The Calgary Board of Education's portion of this one-
time funding is $19.2 millien which has been distributed directly to schools through the
resource allocation methad (RAM). However, the CBE is continuing to rely on available
one-time operating reserves to backstop the structure deficit identified in the 2011-2012
approved operating budget ($19.3 million),

Despite the receipt of this one-time funding, the CBE continues to experience
uncertainty moving forward regarding future grant funding increases which are to be
receivad from the provinca in 2012-2013. In the absence of predictable and sustainable
funding for all grant categories to fully cover increased costs, virtually all areas of the
organization will experience additional cost pressures going forward, However, the CBE
is committed to reallocating resources and enhancing other revenue streams where
possible to ensure the delivery of personalized leaming to students and will address any
financial challenges in the 2012-2013 operating and capital budgets as required. The
CBE is committed to monitoring funding and the expenditures of the organization and
will continue to be a unified voice in advocating for strong financial supports for students.
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Summary of Facility & Capital Plans

2011-2014 Approved Capital Budget and Estimates

Calgary Board of Education and Reserve-funded Assets
Capital Budget Information

The Board of Trustees approved the 2011-2012 Board-funded Capital Budget of $19.75
million based on recommendations by the Capital Budget Council. The capital budget
was developed through information received from schools and departments within the
varous service units, The initial amount of budget requests was 326.5 million; howeaver,
a numbser of items were deferred, deleted or spread over several fiscal years, Final
recommendations were made by applying filters to each request, including the project
type, category and priority. The committee focused on completion of projects underway,
support for new technology projects, and energy efficiency projects.

Significant projects being funded from 2011-2014 include:

%45 million, over the next two years, to commission new schools:
four Grades 5-9 P3 schools announced during 2007-2008 (53 million), in the
communities of Coveniry Hills, Panorama, Taradake, Tuscany, and
a P32 MNorthwest High School announced during 2007-2008 ($1.5 million), in the
community of Arbour Lake.
= %3 8 million, over the next three years, for school purchased capital assets,
« %3.8 million, over the next three years, for the |TS Infrastructure Renewal and
Growth project,
= %27 million, over the next threa years to continue to support the initiatives for
program moves and expansions.
= $2.1 million, over the next threa years, for the Learning Resources Strategy
project.
*  $1.7 million, over the next three years, to complete the Electronic Door Access
project.
= 1.7 million o complete the Enterprize Portal-deployment Expansion project,
= $1.5 million, over the next two years to undertake the required upgrade of the
Oracle Financials System to version 12.1.

In addition, the CBE carried forward $11.5 million from 2010-2011 for multi-year capital

projects underway but not yet completed, To complete these projects, work will continue
im 2011-2012.
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2011-2012 Capital Budget Summary

Calgary Board of Education and Reserve-funded Assels

Expenditures by Project Type
Capital Lease Payments (Contracts)
Performance Contracts $ 2,400,000
Dr. Carl Safran Modemization/Addition 3,000,000

Mon-Facility Related Projects

Strategic 3,815,000

Enhancement 3,781,000

Lifecycle 3,654,000
Facility Related Projects

Strategic 3,000,000

Enhancement 100,000
Total Capital Expenditures 15,750

Funding Sources

Amortization Reserve 18,500,000
School Purchased Assets 1,250,000
Total Capital Financing 19,750
CEE Web links:
2012-2015 School Capdal Plan:
bl ey Chee b Cataboallis documantis 20112 201 SEchoolGandal P lan. odl

2011-2020 Ten-Year System Student Accommaodation and Faciities Strategy:

hit; e Chaake Cadabaondusddoeumesrs Ten Yaart stililes Straleoy ool
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summary of Facility & Capital Plans 2012-2015

Over the past decade, Calgary has seen tremendous growth and economic prosperity.
One simple indicator of the magnitude of the growth is that the population of Calgary
increased by 115,437 people since 2005 at an average of 23,087 new per Calgarians
year. Currently, there are approximately 25 aclively developing communities in varying
stages of development in Calgary. Mew school construction is necessary in outlying
communities of the city to provide students with equitable access to instructional
programs and to comply with the Board of Trustees’ Governance Policies. New school
construction pricrities are approved by the Board of Trustees and these priorities arg
submitted to the provincial government in accordance with the annual School Capital
Plan process.

The CBE's School Capital Flan 2012-2015 was approved on Aprl 5, 2011, by the Board
of Trustees and can be found on the CBE Website at;

o che ab ca tusl/dooumenis. asp
The capital pricrities for the three-year period consist of;

* 16 new school construction projects totalling $309.3 million
= 20 major modernization projects totalling $265.5 million

Mew school construction projects and school modernization projects praviously approved
by the province through CBE school capital plans as well as recently completed projects
are listed below

Schools Openings 2010-2011 School Year

The following elementary schools were approved by the Provincial government on June
14, 2007, to accommaodate anrolment growth in Calgary’s new and developing
communities. These projecizs were part of the Alberta Schools Alternative Procurement
{A3AF) Phasze | project and were being built using a Private, Public, Fariner (F3) model
The six new schools below opened for the 2010-2011 school year.

= Bridlewood Schoaol (K-5)

= Cranston School (K-4)

= Evergreen Schoal (K-4)

* Royal Oak School (K-4)

= Zaddle Ridge School (K-4)
= Whast Springs School (K-3)
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Sehools Under Construction

The City of Calgary, the province, and the CBE entered into a Memorandum of
Agreement for the construction of the West Calgary High School with a capacity of 1,800
student spaces. This replaces the Ernest Manning High School that was closed as a
result of the West LRT project. The new Ernest Manning High School opened for the
2011-2012 school year.

The following senior high and middle schools were approved by the provincial
government on Jan. 30, 2008, to accommaodate enrolment growth in Calgary’s new and
developing communities and are currently under construction. The 800-student middle
schools are part of the ASAP Phase Il project and will be built using a P3 model. These
schools are scheduled to open for the 2012-2013 school year. The province has
selected B2L Partnership as the ASAP Phase || P3 partner to design, build, finance and
maintain the new schools,

* Coventry Hills School (Grades 5-8)

* Panorama Hills School (Grades 5-9)

* Taradale/Coral Springs School (Grades 5-9)
* Tuscany School (Grades 5-9)

The naw Morthwest Calgary High School is under construction, It has been procured
through a design-build process and not through a P3 process. The school is scheduled
to open for the 2013-2014 school year for up to 1,500 students.

Modemizations

A partial modernization o Western Canada High School was approved for $35 milion.
Started in Movember 2008, the projected completion is scheduled for fall 2011,

A modernization to Lord Shaughnessy High School was approved for $9 million. The
project began in April 2010 and the projected completion is scheduled for fall 2012.
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Measure Evaluation Reference

Achievement Evaluation

Achievement evaluation is based upon a comparison of current-year data to a set of
standards which remain consistent over time, The standards are calculated by taking the
three-year average of baseline data for each measure across all school jurisdictions and
calculating tha Sth, 25th, T5th and 95th percentiles. Once calculated, these standards
remain in place year over year to allow for consistent planning and evaluation.

The table below shows the range of values defining the five achievement evaluation
levels for each measure,
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Improvement Table

For each jurisdiction, improvement evaluation consists of comparing the current-year
result for each measure with the previous three-year average. A chi-zquare statistical
test is used to determine the significance of the improvement. This test takes into
account the size of the jurisdiction In the calculation to make improvement evaluation fair
across jurisdictions of different sizes.

The table below shows the definition of the five improvement evaluation levels based
upon the chi-square result.

Chi-Squane Fanips
354+ foument < peavious 3-year Bvanage)

1.00 = 3 83 [curent = previous 3-}ur_a'ﬂﬂL
384 + foument > previous 3-year avarage)

Owerall Evaluation Table

The overall evaluation combines the achievement evaluation and the improvement
evaluation. The table below illustrates how the achieverment and improvement
evaluations are combinad to get the overall evaluation.

| Achieverment
[1enprovemart Wary High High Intermediate Leve Vary Low
[Imprcwed Sigrificantly Excalin Gocd e Sa0d

[enprcred
Mainained
Dacingd

| Becined Sgnficantly

Category Evaluation

The category evaluation is an average of the overall evaluation of the measuras that
make up the category. For the purpose of the calculation, consider an overall evaluation
of Excellent to be 2, Good to be 1, Acceptable to be 0, Issue to be -1, and Concem to be
-2. The simple average (mean) of these values rounded to the nearest integer produces
the Category Evaluation value. This is converted back to a colour using the same scale
above (e.g. 2=Excellent, 1=Good, 0=Intermediate, -1=Issue, -2=Concem)
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Enrolment Program Overview

In the 2011-2012 school year, the Calgary Board of Education will provide programs and
senvices in 221 schools, addressing the complexity and diversity of a population of
104,182 students.

Type and Number of Schools*
2011-2012 School Year

Elementary 132
Middbe or Elementary Junbor 28
Junicr 22
Junier Senior 7
Senior High 16
Elernantary Junior Sanior™ 1
Linique Settings including Discowaring Choicas 15

Cutreach at four lcatons

Taotal N

Student Enrolmeant
a% of September 30, 2011

Early Laarning
Pre-Kindergarten 21
Kindergarten 7. 718
Grades 1103 2343
Grades 406 20,583
Grades 7 o 3 21,505
Grades 10to 12 25 547
Unique Sattings
Qutreach Programs 1,113
Chinook Leaming Senices” 2,935
CBe-learn B15
Other BE4
Total Enrolmaent 104,182

CBE Budgeted Employes Count*®

2011-2012
Teaching™* 5529
Man-Teaching 3,187
Total 8,026
* Reporbed as Full-Time Equivatents as of Moy, 8 2011

* Eachudes substiute bachers



Program Overview

The CBE offers a depth and breadth of programs and supports to meet the unique
learning interests and needs of our increasingly diverse student populations.

Unigue settings and outreach programs
providing specialized sarvices and supports

* CBe-Learn

= Children's Village School

= Chinook Learning Services

= Christine Maikla Schoal

* Digcovering Choices Qutreach; Downtown,
Mariborough, Wastbrook, Bownass

# Dr. Gordon Townsend School at Albena
Children’s Hospital

* Dr. Dakley School

= Emily Follensbee Schoal

s Encore CBE

= Wesi View School

= William Roper Hull School

= Wood's Homes Schools = George Waood
Learning Centre and Willlam Taylor Learning
Centre

Sports enhanced learning programs
= Mational Sports Academy
= Mational Sports Development program
= Malional Sport School

Specialized school-based programiming
# Autizm
= Bahaviour
= Blind and visually impaired
= Deaf and hard of hearing
* Developmental disabilities
= Early developrmant pra-schoal
« English-language learning
* Gifted and talantad
* Learning digabiliy
= fantal health
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CBE-supported community-basad
pragramming
= Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Commission (AADAC)
* Adolescent Day Treatment Program (ADTR)
= Haly Cross Centre
» Alberta Adolescent Recovery Centre
(AARC)
* Emergency Women's Shelter Liaison
« R.A.DA.R. {Re-engaging Acadamically
Disconnecied Adolescenis Respecifully)
» HERA Program
* Young Adull Program (AP}

Alternative Programs

Cantant program locus
= Arts-Cenfrad Leaming
« Juno Beach Academy of Canadian Studies
* Monfessari
* Science School

lTaaching philasophy programs
* Alice Jamieson Girls” Academy
» All-Boys Allermative Program
* Traditional Learning Centres

'._=_’|.":!:| ._1.13-:;& and culure f‘lrl:_'.l.j-"ﬁrr'ls
» Franch immarsion and Lata Immersion
» German Bilingual
* Bandarin Bilingual
* Medicine Wheel Kindergaren
« Piitoayis Family School = Aboriginal Culture
Program
* Spanish Bilingual

Brarmiber 2011
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

DECEMBER &, 2011

CORRESPONDENCE

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board of Trustees receives the following correspondence for
information and for the record, in the form as submitted:

« Correspondence dated November 7, 2011 from the Honourable
Thomas Lukaszuk, Minister of Education, to Board Chair Pat
Cochrane regarding Columbia College's application to operate a
charter school in Calgary.

Respectfully Submitted,

J.E. Barkway,
Office of the Corporate Secretary



AR TIR28
Movember 7, 2011

Ms. Pat Cochrane

Chair yd
Calgary Board of Education
1221 - 8 Street SW 4
Calgary AB T2R 0L4 | ﬂT/ .
Dear Ms. Cochrane: ?V 4

/

Following vour board's rejection of Columbia College’s proposal to establish an alternative
English as a Second Language program. Columbia College applied to me to establish a charter
school. Subseguent to my review of this application, | have informed Columbia College that |
will not be approving its application to operate a charter school in Calgary.

Thank vou for considering the Columbia Charter School proposal for an alternative program
within the Calgary Board of Education.

Sincerely,

e

Thomas A. Lukaszuk
Mimister of Education
MLA, Edmonton — Castle Downs
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

December 6, 2011

To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES

From: Trustee Pat Cochrane

Re: Liaison Report — Calgary Association of Parents & School Councils
(CAPSC)

Purposa: Information

Governance Policy Reference: 5P-13: Board of Trustees’ Linkages

I RECOMMENDATION

THAT the attachments with respect to the Calgary Association of Parents
and School Councils (CAPSC) be received for information and be
considered as the liaison report for that organization.

Il. ISSUE
The attached is a report provided by the Calgary Association of Parents and School

Councils. As the Board of Trustees' representative for CAPSC, | am providing this report
for your information.

Respectfully submitted,

Trustee Pat Cochrane
Liaison Representative

Attachments (3)



Calgary Association of Parents and Schoal Councils
Minutes of Meeting held Wednesday, October 19, 2011
&.E. Cross school Library
T pm
1) Meeting called to order at 703 pm by Co-President Eryn Kelly

21 Rachael Hinz moved that the Minutes from the September 22, 2011 CAPSC meeting be accepted.
Motion was seconded by Leslie Newton. Motien carried.

3) Guest Speakers:
CAPSC Trustee Liaison Pat Cochrane

Trustee Cochrane provided an update regarding the CBE Board of Trustees Annual Organizational
meeting held October 18th. Chair and Vice Chair were named. Trustee Pat Cochrane was named Chair,
and became official Trustee Liaison to Calgary Association of Parents and School Councils, Lynn Ferguson
was named Vice Chair,

Bill Belsey

Bill Belsey, Presidant of Bullying.arg, provided a presentation on the inception of the website and its
subsequent expansion. He offered parents several options for resources on the topic and promoted the
upcoming Bullying Awareness Week [November 13th to 19th 2011).

4} Meeting adjourned at 5:43 pm.



Calgary Association of Parents and School Councils
AGENDA
November 16, 2011
7to9 PM
Library at AE Cross School

. Approval of agenda and October’s meeting minutes

2. Co-Presidents’ Report

. Presentations:
a. Canadian Parents for French
b. Junior Achievement of Southern Alberta
Guest Speaker: Dr. Sharon Friesen - class-size research and other
factors that influence student learning
. Trustee Liaison Report - Trustee Pat Cochrane with Trustee Joy
Bowen-Eyre
. Adjournment



LUntitled Document Page 1 of |

HOME NEWY i NEWISLETTERS HEETINLGS FEROURCES ANCGUT U CONTALT

CAPSC NOVEMBER MEETING MOVEMBER 16TH:1

Please join us Wednesday November 16th at 7:00 pm, AE Croass School (library). Our
guest sepaker for the eveing will be Sharon Friesen, who will be presenting on class-
size research and other factors that influence student learning. We will also hear an
update from the Board of Trustees.

Cur meetings are always informative and offer great resources for parents and school
councils. We welcome both new and returning attendees and would love to see YOU
there.

You don't want to miss it

LINSLBSCRIB
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

DECEMBER 6, 2011

To: Board of Trustees
From: Trustee Pamela King. Chair, Board Evaluation Committee
Re: Report from the Board Evaluation Commitiee

Purpose: Approval
Governance Policy Reference: GP-11. Board of Trustees' Committeas
RECOMMEMDATION:

THAT the Board of Trusiees adopts the revised GP-11E:; Board of Trustees’
Commitizes — Terms of Reference, Board Evaluation Committee, as submitlaed

BACKGROUND:
The members of the Beard Evaluation Committee met on November 16, 2011 1o review
the Terms of Reference for the committes and the processes for monitoring the Board's

govarnance process policies.

The proposed revisions o the Terms of Reference for the Board Evaluation Committes
are provided as Attachment | to the report.

Respectfully submitted,

Trustee Pamela King,
Chair of the Board Evaluation Commitise

Attachment Amended Terms of Reference, Board Evaluation Commities



[l[n CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board of Trustees' Policy — Governance Process

GP-11E: Board of Trustees' Committees — Terms of Reference
BOARD EVALUATION COMMITTEE
PURPOSE AND RESPONSIBEILITIES
The Board Evaluation Committee is responsible for:

1. ensuring that the Board of Trustees conducts the retrospective review stipulated by
Governance Process Policy GP-4: Board of Trustees' Annual Planning Cycle; and

2. planning for the annual retrospective review to be conducted each September; and
3. arranging for monitoring of the Govemnance Process policies (GP 1-13) throughout a
school year relative to goals that the Board of Trustees has set for such year and for its

term of office; and

4, racommending to the Board of Trusteas the processes to be used for such monitoring; and

5. recommending to the Board of Trustees the processes to be used for the Chief
superintendent's summative evaluation.

MEMBERSHIP

The Committee shall consist of not less than two trustees appointed annually by the Board of
Trustees at its organizational meeting.

All Committee members shall commit to ethical conduct, praper use of authorty, decorum, and
professional conduct.

AUTHORITY
The Committee shall be appointed by and report to the Board of Trustees.

The Committea is advisory in nature and shall bring forward recommendations to the Board of
Trustees

g ]
e
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board of Trustees' Policy - Governance Process
GP-11E: Board of Trustees' Committees — Terms of Reference

BOARD EVALUATION COMMITTEE — Page 2
MEETINGS

The Committee Chair shall establish the agenda for meetings and ensure that prepared agenda
materials are circulated to the members within a reasonably sufficient time to enable members
to study the materials prior to the meeting.

All meetings will be scheduled to permit timely consideration of topics or responsibilities.
Meetings may be held as deemed necessary by the Chairperson of the Committee or as
requested by any member of the Committee.

A guorum at mestings of the Committee shall be the appointed trustees. The Committee may
hold its meetings, and members of the Committee may attend meetings by electronic means,
provided all meeting attendees can hear each other

All meetings of the Committee shall be held in private

The minutes of the Committee meetings shall accurately record the recommendations of the
Committea and shall be distributed to the Board of Trustees.

REPORTING

The Committese shall report, through the Chairperson of the Committes, to the Board of
Trustees following each meeting on the major discussions and recommendations made by the
Committee. The reports will include the minutes of meeting of the Committee, which will
include, at minimum: the date and place of meeting, attendees, record of recommendations and
which member or other individual is assigned any actions arising, and date. time and place of
the next meeting.

The Commitlee shall review the Committee's Terms of Reference annually and propose
recommendad changes, if any, to the Board of Trustees

BUDGET

There is no identified budget for this Committee. However, should there be an occasion
whereby financial resources are required, the Committee shall bring forward a recommendation
to the Board of Trustees. Committee members are not entitled to any fees or compensation.

Adopled: L2011



To:

From:

Re:

Purpose: _ Information

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

December 6, 2011
Board of Trustees
Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools

Chief Superintendent's Update

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees receives this report for infarmation.

PURPOSE OF THE UPDATE REPORT

As the Board of Trustees’ Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Superintendent is
accouniable for mesting the expectations set by the Board of Trustees. These
expectations are stated in Ends and Executive Limitations (EL) policies.

Executive Limitation 3: Information, Counzel and Support o the Board of Trusiees
requires the provision of timely information, prudent counsel and support to the Board of
Trustees. Along with other reports submitted to the Board of Trustees, this update
meets the requirement of EL-3 for the provision of information in a timely, accurate and
understandable manner.

TIMELY INFORMATION

Office of the Chief Superintendent

Advancing Student Leaming-—-Bilingual, Immersion and Second Language Programs
EL-3.  Information, Counsel and Suppor to the Board of Trustees
EL-6  Instructional Program

Chief Superintendent Johnson was recently in France and Spain to sign important
agreaments in support of the Calgary Board of Education’s language and global learning
programs, The agrearments are part of the CBE's strategy to ensure its students are
globally connected and have opportunities to engage with the wider world

In France, Chief Superntendent Johnson and her counterpart at the Académie
Besancon, Rector Eric Martin, signed a memorandum of understanding that will open
the door for mutual partnerships and learning effective immediately. High school
students in French Immersion programs can extend their knowledge of the French



language and deapen their understanding of French culture through opportunities such
di

Short-term homestay and school integration programs.
Language immaersion programs for CBE teachers.
= \irtual partnerships among classrooms for authentic learning in Franch.

The Calgary Board of Education is an official examination centre of the Dipléme d'Etude
en Langue Francaise {DELF).

In Spain, Chief Supenntendent Johnson met with the Spanish Ministry of Education to
build relations around our current Intemational Spanish Academy Memorandum of
Understanding. Discussion focused on strategies for students and teachers to deepen
and strengthen their understanding of Spanish language and culture including:

Future programming for CBE students such as immersion pregrams in Spain.
= Opportunities for CBE teachers through summer or long-term institutes.

Wisit the CBE website at www.cbe ab.ca for more detail.

2011 ¥MCA Peace Medal Recipients
EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees

On Wednesday, November 23 the 2011 Peace Medal recipients wera honourad at the
YMCA awards ceremony. Individuals or groups in eight categories were recognized for
their efforts to spread peace in our world. The Calgary Board of Education is proud to
highlight the winners in bwo categones.

The Diversity and Student for Change Council at Bob Edwards School received the
Community Youth award for their work to support their communities, to increase respect
far diversity and to raise awareness of justice causes. This council is run by students for
students. Council members come from diverse backgrounds and are role-models for
their peers and their communities. The Diversity and Student for Change Council
organized and participated in a variety of events such as anti-bullying days, lunchtime
speakers and a school-wide full-day conference where community facilitators talked with
students about diversity and peace, and fundraising for the victims of natural disasters in
Haiti and Japan. The council also spensors a child living in Honduras through Plan
Canada.

Jocelyn Davis, a student at Western Canada High School, received the Intermational
Youth award for her work as co-founder of The 8" Rung. The primary focus of this
yvouth-driven organization 13 youth empowerment bo create sustainable development.
The consistent message is that youth can be empowered to make contributions to social
issues on an international scale. The 8" Rung operates using a unigque approach
developad by Ms, Davis. The organization develops partnerships with corporations and
adult philanthropists to create stretch targets for youth.

Examples of agencies working with The 8" Rung and the results of these collaborations
include:

=  Solar lighting to reduce gaorilla poaching in Africa with Light Up the World.

= Solar lighting on remote hilltops for first aid and birthing stations in the mountain
forests of Papua Mew Guinea with the Captain Nicola Goddard Foundation.

;)
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»  \Water systems for 45 000 people in Vietnam, Laos, Cambaodia and Thailand with the
Centre for Affordable Water and Sanitation Technology.

students Engaged in David Suzuki Virtual Classroom
EL-3;  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-6: Instructional Program

On Movember 2, 50 grade 11 students from Beaverbrook and Centennial high schools
participated with David Suzuki in a virtual classroom in the link. Students watched the
Mational Film Board's, Dawvid Suzuki: Forces of Nature, at their home school prior to the
event and brainstormed questions that were presented to the National Film Board and
Dr. Suzuki. Although questions from our students were not specifically chosen,
guestions answered were of a similar nature and our students felt their interests were
addressed. The education centre proved to be a student-friendly environment with the
added opportunity for students to tour the Future of Leaming Lab, the historical
classroom and the Innovation and Learning Commons

Facilities and Environmental Services

ire Drill jate
EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-16: Learning Environment/Treatment of Students

Administrative Regulation 3021 - Fire Drills and Alarms was developed for schools in
accordance with the Alberta Fire Code and stipulates the number of fire drills required in
a school year and the conditions under which fire drills must be held. The first
expectation is that schools monitored by the CBE hold a fire drill within one month of the
school opening, or before September 30, whichever date comes earlier.

As a result of the dedication to safety of our school principals, area directors, and
tacilities operations and school safety services employees, all school sites are compliant
with the fire drill expectations for the beginning of this school year.

Envircnmental Stewardship

EL-3: Information, Coungel and Support to the Board of Trusteas
EL-G: Instructional Program

EL-13: Facilities

Student-led environment clubs at schools across the CBE are examples of exira-
curricular and co-curricular initiatives that engage students in planning and acting on
reducing our ecological footprint. Through the Strategic Framework to Advance
Environmental Stewardship, the CBE is committed to local and global environmental
stewardship. Student learning and their resulting actions are key strategies in attaining
this am.

CBE junior high and middle school students participate in learning experiences as part of
the Environmeantal and Outdoor Education curriculum. This pragram includes three
pathways: environmental core, personal and group development and outdoor core.
These three pathways ask students to examine the impacts of human choices on the
environment and to take action to change behaviour.



Students at Bishop Pinkham School have explored and investigated natural
environments in several locations including North Glenmaore Park, Banff Natienal Park
and Kananaskis Country, Students identify issues of interest, engage with experts in the
field and create action plans to reduce their personal eco footprint. Students have
extended their interest in environmental learning by exploring possibilities for solar
thermal or solar photovoltaic installations at their school. Students are currently talking
with representatives from Dr. EP Scarlett’s about their solar energy infrastructure, In
addition, Bishop Pinkham's Teaming UP for Healthy Learners/EcoSites team is exploring
possibilities for installing a water bottle filling station to replace a water fountain near the
gYMAaSIunm.

Sam Livingston School students are actively engaged a collaboration with Climate
Change Central (CCC) in a unigue learning opportunity that connects to the school's
inquiry framework. CCC is providing devices that allow for real time utility metering both
at school and at participating students’' homes. The connection between home and
school allows for student-generated questions about lifestyle and energy choices.
Student gifts and abilities are engaged through the active construction of knowledge
linking to leaming outcomes of the Programs of Study, Energy & Environmental
Services (EES) is working with teachers on optimizing learning opportunities through
using Elmore's Instructional Core model to provide student agency in the learning
process. EES is also working with CCC to ensure alignment with educational ends,
learning outcomes and the personalization of learning,

Learning Innovation

CBe-learn Open and Continuous Entry
EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-6: Instructional Program

This past fall CBe-learn high school began a new registration model called Open and
Continuous Registration and Access. The model was successfully piloted last year with
CTS. It has changed student access to education and influenced staffing decisions,
teacher collaboration and team-teaching at CBe-learn.

Although registration at CBe-learn has always permitted flexibility, this new model
ensures that students have adequate preparation and support as they become
successful online leamers. Students are able to register in their online courses any
week of the school year. This week-by-week intake offers students choice and flexibility,
Students, with support from their families, counsellors and administrators, make an
educated decision ahout registration based on when they want to finish and how much
time they have available to work on a course. Within a week of first registering, students
have full access to their course and can begin working with their cohort.

Term 1 has been highly succassful with over 2500 course registrations from August 20
to October 6, 2011, These students are scheduled to finish their courses in December
and write their final exams in January, Senior high courses are taught by teams of
teachers. Students have support from multiple avenues and multiple perspectives. This
team-teaching model is one significant way CBe-learn is building capacity within their
school. For more information about CBe-learn, check out www.cheleam. ca

ot



Empowering Minds
EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-16: Learning Environment and Treatment of Students

Building on the successful high school program, the Empowering Minds Teen
Leadership program has expanded to junior and middle schools. Seven CBE schools
are now involved with six more schools waiting to join. The pragram has met with
enthusiastic support from school administrators and students. Through follow-up
sessions with students, it is evident there is a measurable change in how students feel
they can engage in their learning and what they can give back to their school
community.

Risk Assessment Framework
EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees

EL-G: Instructional Frogram

Alberta Education has recognized that risk assessment in the context of educational
technology has not been attended to with the same rigour as other areas. The CBE,
with support from Alberta Education and in collaboration with a number of other
jurisdictions, has taken the leadership role in creating a risk assessment framewark.
This framework will serve as a foundation for the development of a provincial
educational technology risk assessment strategy, System and school-based leaders
across the province will have a foundation for making balanced, well-informed decisions
when weighing off the educational benefit of technology against the risk.

aPD Update
EL-3;  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees

EL-6  Instructional Program

We are engaging in strategic planning and development of formal and informal
professional development programs that are responsive to system needs and the
learning agenda of the Three-Year Education Plan. The current integrated ePD strategy
provides multiple, flexible entry points for CBE employees, with opportunities to connect
and learn online and face-to-face. Courses are built and revised based on on-going
research. emerging theories in the field of educational technology. and feedback from
both @PD participants and non-participants.

Since September, ePD courses have been delivered to over 60 participants and twao fully
revised courses are in the pilot phase. Our goal is to support CBE professionals to build
and grow their own Professional Learning Networks (PLN) to facilitate collaborative
learning and draw on collective knowledge.

Teaming UF for Healthy Learners Update
EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-6:  Instructional Program

There are 18 new schools joining the 110 CBE schools already implementing the
Comprehensive School Health pillars: nutrition, physical activity and positive social
environments. This is a significant increase to the Teaming UP family of schools.



System-based Teaming UP employeas caontinue fo provide proactive support to schools
as they connect and respond to questions about Administrative Regulation 3047 —
Mutrition, which comes into effect on January 1. 2012. School and system employees
are working together to ensure a solid understanding of the implications of the new
regulation and effective implemeantation.

Ensuri f i
EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees

A variety of different strategies are used to maintain a safe and secure computing
environment for CBE students and employees. Multiple layers of security are
strategically placed throughout the environment to defend systems against intruders, for
example, hackers. Hardware and software used to support this work is continually
upgrade to keep pace with the volume of data and the latest documented threats to
systems and data.

Strategies include:

= Firewalls to enforce segregation and to protect computing resources against internal
and external intrusion.

= Spam filtering and anti-virus scanning to guard against threats that might be
delivered via email messages.,

= Anti-virus software as a defence against malware and virus threats to workstations
and servers.

* Utilization of web content filtering to ensure safe, age appropriate web surfing
exXperiences.

Since 2005, good success has been achieved with avoiding widespread virus outbreaks.
Continued vigilance and proactive strategies remain the primary guiding principles for
aur wark in this area.

Learning Services

English Language Learning Updates
EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees

EL-B: Instructional Program

I late 2009, in response to increasing requests for assistance from the field for
programming for refugee students with limited formal schooling, Alberta Education
approached CBE to assist in the creation of a standalone website. The website is called
Teaching Refugees with Limited Formal Schooling and serves as a central repository of
information and resources for Kindergarten to grade 12 educators,

Since it was launched at the end of August, 2011 the website has had 70,000 hits and
has received wide interest and acclaim provincially, nationally and internationally.
Alberta Education has promoted its use through their website and their field office
communiquas. The CBE-developed Benchmarks posted on the site are being adopted
as the provincial standard for assessment and instructional planning for students of this
profile. The website is located at www teachingrefugees.com

e
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The Calgary Board of Education has experienced a 31% increase from September of
2010 to September of 2011 in the enrolment of refugees into CBE programs. Although
Citizenship and Immigration Canada (CIC) calculates an 8% annual increase, we have
identified a trend. The numbers of refugees settling in large urban centres, and Calgary
in particular, is much higher due to the settlement services available.

The number of refugees amang our immigrant population remains steady and
significant. According to information fram CIC, under the Balanced Refugee Reform Act,
Canada will be increasing landings of both government-sponscred and privately
sponsorad refugees, receiving 14,000 in 2011, 15,800 in 2012 and 16, 400 in 2013. The
top source countries are Irag, Bhutan, Somalia, Afghanistan, Ethiopia, Democratic
Republic of the Congo, Eritrea, Burma, Colombia and Iran. Many of the targeted groups
have been displaced for extended periods of time, often over a decade.

In addition to increasing numbers, there is increasing complexity among the refugees
with, according to the CIC, "a pravalence of psycho-social needs” and a history of
trauma that impacts the settlement resources required to support them.

Discovenng Choices
Ends 4: Personal Development
EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trusteas

Discovering Choices is a CBE community-based high schoal program for young people
who, due to particular personal and/or family situations, experience obstacles in their
educational pursuits and find that regular school programs and services do not meet
their needs. Discovering Choices offers courses based on Alberta Education high school
curriculum and work exparience opportunities. Discovering Choices provides students
with additional services such as personal and career counsealling, conflict resolution,
anger management, time management and study skills, parenting skills and learning
sirategies.

All students enrolling at Discovering Choices sites complete the Resiliency Canada
Online Survey with two purposes in mind;

* As a method for staff to engage with students by leaming their stories and beginning
to establish a relationzhip.
= As a way for students to begin to better understand themselves.

After completion of the survey students begin to develop goals based on their strengths
identified through the survey. This is an exemplar of Ends 4: Personal Development,
which states "Each student will acquire the skills, attitudes and knowladge to achiave
personal highest potential.” In the 2011 CBE student survey, Discovering Choilces
graduates answered the question, “Does your school support your personal
development?’ Following are a few examples of their responses.

“They were very helpful in showing me how my personal talents could be applied to
obtain a career.”

“Yes, | was encouraged to work on my weaknesses and grow even further in my areas
of strength.”

<
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V.

“¥Yes, the school motivates its students to represent themselves through assignments
and explore new ideas and ways of doing them.”

“Yes, | took resiliency and psychology.”

“¥Yes, both my teachers and other staff are always eancouraging me and my talents and
my goals for the future”

“WVery much so, they had a whole module on resiliency and all that.”

“Help with resiliency by setting up supports and halps with confidence by baing
encouraging and using complimants,”

“My school strongly supports my personal development. | truly feel that the teachers
here take the time to understand each student on a personal level to help them
succeed.”

“My school supports me in many ways and | appreciate that greatly. As |'ve bean here
for three years the people at my school have shown they care about my school as well
as my well-being. They want me to succeed and so they support me in my interests, my
ability to learn, and my resiliency.”

ENDS STATEMENT FOCUS

The focus of this report is on Ends 4. Personal Development. The Board of Trustees
has stated, "Each student will acquire the skills, attitudes and knowledge to achieve
personal highest potential.” Calgary Board of Education schools have provided
illustrative examples of how personalized student leaming that supports the Board of
Trustees’ Ends is lived in classrooms across the district.

Areal

A priority at W.O. Mitchell School is developing students’ higher order thinking skills.
This involves engaging in activities such as planning how to approach a given learning
task, monitoring comprehension and evaluating progress toward the completion of a
task. Cognitive strategies are used to help achieve a particular academic goal while
metacognitive strategies are used to ensure that the goal is being achieved and students
understand what they need to do along the way to be successful. Each month, students
are responsible for sefting a goal for themselves and listing strategies that will help them
achieve that goal. At the end of each month, students assess to what degree they have
achieved the goal and whether they need to add new strategies.

A grade 4 student identified her need to orally participate more in French. The student
was able to articulate she chose this goal bacause, "When | don’t understand what
something means, | don’t put up my hand and participate.” She has identified in her
strategy that she needs to be able to take greater risks and sometimes “just guess” if
she iz not sure. The teacher will encourage participation by the student and continue to
nurture an environment where the student feels confident to take risks. By setting goals
and reflecting on them on a regular basis both students and teachers gain insight into
their work together to ensure optimal leaming occurs.

4



Areall

Students start their high school expenience at William Aberhart School by completing
three informal inventories within their e-portfolio: Multiple Intelligence, Leaming Styles
and True Colours. The information gathered from the inventeries is used to develop a
Personal Leaming Profile. The purpose of this work is to help students increase self-
awarenass and to help equip each student to better manage themselves in school and in
life.

Students are asked to consider the following questions in the context of becoming a
better student

How am | smart?

How do | learn?

What are my personality strengths and weaknessas?
How do | want to be characterized as a student/person?

Our belief at William Aberhart is that if students become aware of their specific learning
strengths, needs and interests and advocate for themselves as leamers and, if teachers
personalize their practice relative to students’ specific learning strengths, needs and
interests, then students’ academic achievement will increase. When students are
informed about themselves as leamers this influences the instructional design. During
high school at William Aberhart, students are continually developing their ideas, job and
career plans and are engaging in opportunities that support their educational and
personal lifelong leaming goals.

Area lll

Students at Or. Egbert School are given a wide variety of opportunities to demonstrate
personal development through leaming. When visiting classrooms at the school, one
can observe sfudents engaged in meaningful, constructive work hecause, as designers
of learning, teachers utilize the principles of Universal Design for Learning and other
differentiation strategies to ensure that students have the opportunity to experience
success. Teachers work with students to help them set appropriate goals for their
leamning. For example, in a mathematics class we see students working in groups of
three or four using computers, students using the SmanBoard, some students working
independently with print materials and the teacher circulating amongst the students as a
tacilitator of the learning process.

Our focus on school-wide literacy encourages students to set goals around reading and
comprehension sirategies and engage in a variety of self-assessment and peer
assessment strategies to monitor their progress. Teachers also provide formative
feedback to students.

Owur school professional leaming communities focus on student leaming (the task) and
student development (the process). Modifications and improvements are made on the
basis of objective feadback and from this, tasks are created that are intentionally
meaningful. Student learning profiles give teachers quick access to student strengths,
abilities and interests. For example, our grade 9 professional leaming community meets
regularly to collaboratively evaluate specific tasks within their subject area, and also
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examine ways to integrate the various concepts and metacognitive strategies into their
own classes.

Area IV

Earl Grey School focuses on personal devalopment through learning. We use The 7
Habits for Happy Children (Steven and Sean Covey) as a framework for addressing
personal development, character and citizenship in our school. Some of the general
indicators of Ends 4: Personal Development are:

» Plans a strategic approach to meeting goals, solving problems and performing tasks.
« [Demonstrates interest in and cunosity about ideag, objects, events and resources.
» Develops and uses meta-cognitive strategies.

Grade 4/5 students from two classrooms took a leadership role in arranging an assambly
arcund the 2™ Habit, Begin with End in Mind — Have a Plan! The classes also tied in
their recent Open Minds Ralph Klein Park experience with the 7 Habits and their year big
question, *How Can | Make a difference?” Here are some of the students’ comments.

“We talked about our big guestion how can | make a difference in our school, our house,
our city and our world, Some classmates did songs or jingles. We also did power
points, plays or skits. Everything in the assembly bordered around our big question for
the year and the 7 Habits. Our field trip to Ralph Klein Park helped us understand our
big question.”

“We sent a positive message.”

“The 7 Habits are really useful to us, especially Habit 2, Start with the end in mind -
which means plan.”

“We made the assembly, not to have all the attention, but to tell everybody how to make
a difference in our school.”

“Wie can make a difference by: being a good leader, following the rules, saving water
and electricity. We learnad how important wetlands are to the environment for filtering
water and creating a habitat for differant animals and plants.”

“We had a great time because we worked together.”

“Our teacher's son Kiefer wrote a 7 Habits song for Earl Grey, We all think that the
Division | learmed a lot of things that day from our assembly.”

AreaV

This demonsiration of students working to achieve End Statement 4 — Personal
Development has been provided by a teacher at Dr. E.P. Scarlett High School_ It

describes the results of the work of students from Dr. E.P. Scarlett High School and their
student leadership work in support of students at Canyon Meadows Schoaol.

10

14



Every week | take a group of Leadership students, 40 of them to be
exact, and we mentor students from Canyon Meadows Elementary,
Leadership students are invalved in an array of activities._. everything
from literature circles to math stations, science, social studies and
even PE. They have grown to love the relationship and bonding they
have created with the younger students. The leadership students
have mentionad that this is the most meaningful activity that they have
been a part this year. Working with the elementary students has
apened their minds to creabwity and has had them think twice about
how they answer quastions, especially from the younger students. At
first both the elamentary students and the leadership students were
nervous but now thay have become confident. .. and extremely happy
to go every week,

The amaount that each student has matured is significant especially in
the areas of responsibility, accountability and independence. The
elementary teacher asked if my students could come up with activities
that they would find meaningful so they could teach. The next day in
class they were preparing mini lessons for math manipulatives and
trying to find books that were their favourite whan they wera young. |
could see that their reflaction back on what they used to do and how
they could do it “petter” was a good indicator of their personal
development.

At the beginning of this | expected simply that my class would go
there and read with tha students. .. it has become so much mora
Students from Leadership are involved in the environment club here
at school, and they are looking at starting an environment club at the
elementary. In terms of personal development the students are
always trying to improve what they do with every visit. Leadarship
sludents who were shy at first have now become role models for the
younger students and are committed to making goals that are
attainable for themselves and them. The love for learning has
become very evident and students are constantly striving to make
each visit batter than the last. | remember a specific example whare
one of the elementary students was having difficulty doing math. The
Scarlett Leadership student that was helping him told him that its ok if
he does it wrong that's how you learn! | thought that was quite
profound for a 16 year old. | find that sometimes my students are not
as enthusiastic about some aciivities as others = but whan it's fime to
go to Canyon Meadows attendance is perfect.

Maomi E. Johnson W

Chief Superintendent of Schools
CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATIOMN

11



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA
December 6, 2011

T BOARD OF TRUSTEES

From: Naomi E. Johnson, Chiel Supenniendent ol Schools

Re: Report on the Financial Status of the Operating Budget as at
August 31, 2011 and Unaudited Financial Results for the Year Ending
August 31, 2011

Purpose: Monitoring Information and for the Record

Governance Policy Reference: EL-10:  Budgeting Process

EL-11: Financial Condition

Ovriginator: Deborah L. Meyers, Supenntendent. Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Treasurer

Resources:  Wavne T. Braun, Dhrector, Corporate Finance

Donna Rogers, Manager, Corporate Planning and Reporting
RECOMMENDATIONS
It 15 recommended:

1. THAT information regarding all budget revisions made during the period June 1,
2011 to August 31, 2011 inclusive, be received for moenitoring information and for
the record.

2. THAT the 2010/11 Budget Variance Report as at August 31, 2011 {identified in the
Attachment [} be received for monitoring information and for the record.

ISSUE

In accordance with the Board of Trustees' Executive Limitation 11: Financial Condition,
the Chief Superintendent shall not cause or allow the development of fiscal jeopardy or a
material deviation from budget policy, and shall not fail to inform the Board of Trustees
in a timely manner of significant deviations or projected deviations in ¢ither the income
or expenditures in the approved budget. The Chief Superintendent is also required to
provide a report to the Board prior to November 30 regarding the actual use of operating
and capital reserves in comparison to Board approval commitments, and this was
provided on October 18, 2011 to the Board of Trustees through the fourth quarter Capital



.

Budget and Reserves Status Reports as at August 31, 2011. In addition, al the same
Board meeting, the Board of Trustees received and approved The Financial Status of
Operating Reserves and Designated Funds as at August 31, 2011,

BACKGROUND

Each spring the Calgary Board of Education prepares its operating budpet for the
following fiscal year. Quarterly and annual reports are presented to the Board of Trustees
to provide updates on the status of the results of operations. These results are compared
to the approved and current operating budget to meet the monitoring requirements of EL-
11: Financial Condition.

This report includes:
«  The 201011 Budget Variance Report { Attachment I).

ANALYSIS
Statement of 2000011 Annual Budgeted Revenue and Expense

A number of small budget transfers were made during the fourth quarter of 2010/11 to
reflect revenue and expenditure adjustments. Transfers generally reflect the updated plans
of schools and service units,

Dwuring the fourth quarter, the following net budget revisions and transfers occurred.

(5 millinns)

Net revenue transfer increases to offset changes in expenditures 0.3
desecribed below.

Net  expenditure  transfer increases related mainly 1o finalized
enrolments, and adjustments to school’s decentralized budgets. (0.3)

Net budgetary impact =




2010/11 Budget Variance Report

The 2010/11 Budget Variance Report highlights variances between the current budget
and actual revenue and expense. The pnnciple components of the vanances and the
resulting small operating surplus are as follows:

Favorable/
iUnfavorahle)

Revenues {in § millions)
« Basic Provinecial Instruction and Differential Grants mainly due

to finalized enrolments and reduction in enrollment decline

funding. (3.4)
« (Other Net Provincial Educational, Priority Targeted and IMR

Grants to reflect confirmed funding. 3.3
+ School Generated Funds due to lower than planned activities at

the school level. i(1.8)
«  Other revenues mainly due to realized and unrealized gains on

investments, fluctuations from expectation of other provincial

and federal revenue and increased program, lease and other

revenue eamed. 36

3.7

Expenses
«» Salaries and benefits: mainly due to non-certificated Service
Unit gapping (vacant positions), partially offset by use of
temporary staff in Service Units.  Also includes $2.0 million
Professional Improvement Fellowship budget carryforward to
2011/12, 8.1
» Supplies and services: mainly due to increased IMR spending,
and facility operating costs as well as higher than budgeted lease

costs due to accounting treatment applied. (6.6)
« School funded activities: due to lower than planned activities at
the schoeol level. |.8

»  Amortization and Interest due to additional amortization of
capital assets acquired in 2009/10 and increased interest paid on

energy retrofil projects. 39
T2
Net favorable variance before transfers 10,9




2000/11 Budget Variance Report (cont’d)
Favorable/

(Unfavorable)
{in % millions)

Transfers from Operating Reserves/to Designated Funds
« Reflects reduction in net transfers from operaling reserves as
approved in the Report of Financial Status of Operating Reserves
report presented at the October 18, 20011 Public Meeting of the
Board of Trustees. 24
l

» Reflects increase in net transfers to designated funds 2.
I -

Capital Assets Paid by Operating Funds
« Decrease in capital assets acquired: comprised mainly of delays in

completion of Board funded capital projects. (11.0)
« Decrease in board-funded amortization: Due to change in

application of accounting treatment for leases than budgeted. 1.4
+ Increase in transfer to capital carmyforward: due to delays in current

year Board funded capital projects in progress. 1.5

9

Transfer from Capital Reserves
« Results from actual expenditures being less than anticipated and a

reduction in transfers from capital reserves. 33
Net variances from transfers 9.1
Net favorable operating varianee — (0.1 1% ofMotal operating budget) 1.2

FINANCIAL IMPACT
Statement of 2000011 Annual Budgeted Revenue and Expense

The Calgary Board of Education's budgeted net financial results do not change based on
the budget revisions or transters made in the fourth quarter of 2010/11.

Impact on Future Years

For the year ended August 31, 2011, the Calgary Board of Education 18 reporling a
favorable variance of $10.9 million before contributions toftransfers from capital
activities and reserves as explained in the 2010/11 Budget Variance Report, This
represents 1% of the budgeted operating expenses.  After consideration of the net $8.9
million from reductions in restricted funds used and $0.8 million from unrestricted
reserves already committed for use in 2011/12, the Calgary Board of Education has an
additional $1.2 million available to commit to future year operations from unrestricted
net assets.

) 14



VI.  IMPLEMENTATION CONSEQUENCES

Superintendents’ Team will be assessing the 2011/12 Operating Budget te determine if
any changes in courses ol action, as determined in the preparation and approval of the
2011/12 Operating Budget, arc required as a result of the conclusion of the Calgary
Board of Education’s 2010/11 fiscal year.

VII. CONCLUSION

This report represents the fourth quarterly monitoring report to the Board of Trustees in
connection with the 201011 Operating Budget for the Calgary Board of Education, as
required by Executive Limitation 11: Financial Condition.

Maomi E. Johnson
Chief Superiniendent of Schools
CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Attachment I; 2010/11 Budget Variance Report as at August 31, 2011



Attachment I: 2010/11 Budget Variance Report as at August 31, 2011

MW pLILIE N
Current Ammial HHDAT Acnaal Annual Variance
Budget, Effccrive Annual Revemwe Favorable!
Dhseripiien Adgmst 51, 2001 anil Expense {Unfaverable}
{S0HH0 15000y
REVENLE
Alberia Educatsm granis:
s provincial msirsction b 9.7 § LEE 1T (L22}
[Hiferential cost funding 118,628 218 A5T (2172
Provincial priority tarpeted gronis RRED M, THE fih
Crher provineial education grnds 34,358 IhE2 1554
Provineinl Copilal suppon 15 538 28625 ER
{ither provincial nevenue 2,431 1 &52 (574
Federal grunts and sducation agreenents 2,973 3T T2
Sehool generaved Tunds 15375 13500 (1,784}
Oiiher reveimie 47,261 52.60% 2407
Totul revenue k3 145872 § 1049558 8 e 0
EXFENSE
Ralaries amd benefiis 5 ANEEA2 & A0Z2T % B 1335
Rupplies and services 16R. 437 175034 [, 4T
Imleresi LR 238 2836
Schal Tumded aclivitics 35575 33.5%0 1,784
Amuriizatian 42 5k 41 8549 1055
Ttal expense 3 1062 255 & 1054998 § T1.258
[hediciendy of operiling revenue over expense Tor the vear {16583} (3460} 1923
I'ransfer from Jin} operating reserves'designaded Tunds
Transfer from operaling reserves 10,375 Ak [2.5064)
Transfer fromi o) designated funds §.SHE H (21060
11,875 TAN [4.4064)
Adbilideduct) capdial ftems paid by operafing funls
Capitnl pssets agguined (24,770 {13, 396) 11574
Board-funded amartiznbion 19,325 17,958 (1,387
Capdlad defhl repaymenis [P FR ] (2061 11
Tramglier ram school purchased assels 1.591 1132 [Ai511
Teansler from capital carryforward A314 5314
Ivansler io capital camryforward - (11,343) 111,545)
{1,220 (3218 (0.054)
Tramsler romd{te) cagrlal reserves
Buibkding and equipnsent resorves 3.22% e =] {3,277
Met aperating deficit {2,500 {1316 I.1%4
Drravy fronm unrestricted net assels 250 1,116 1,184y
Mt aperating (defich Msurplus 5 - & - 5 -




To:

From:

Re:

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA
December 6, 2011
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Maomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools

November 30, 2011 Budget Report Update to the 2011/2012 Operating Budget

Purpose: Approval

Governance Policy Reference: EL-10:Budgeting Process

EL-11:Financial Condition

Originator:  Deborah L, Mevers, Superintendent, Chiel Financial Officer, Corporate Treasurer

Resources:  Wayne T, Braun, Director, Corporate Finance

Donna Rogers, Manager, Corporate Planning and Reporting

RECOMMENDATIONS
It 15 recommencdad:

1. THAT the Board of Trustees approve the Fall 2011 Update to the 2011/2012
Operating Budget {Attachment 1) as at November 30, 2011, reflecting total
planned spending of $1.150 billion, and authonze for submission to Alberta
Education.

I3

THAT the Board of Trustees approve the amended planned operating reserve
draws as follows for 2001/20012 for a total planned draw of $19.2 million
(5145000 less than what was approved in the 201 1/2012 Operating Budget. Sce
Attachment | for details):

Increase ! (Decrease)

{S000°s)
School Designated Funds 5 2,152
Service Unit Designated Funds {(828)
Capital amortization transfer to operating (2,469)
Unrestricted Net Assets . 1,000
Total Decrease p {145)



1L

V.

ISSUE

Alberta Education requires an approved Fall 2011 Budget Update to the 201172012
Approved Operating Budget. The purpose of this document is to provide an update to the
Operating Budget as originally adopted by the Board of Trustees on June 28, 2011. The
Fall Budget Update also includes specific reporting on the use of the Minister’s
additional, one-time funding allocation announced in October, 20011, Administration has
taken this opportunity to also include revisions related to enrolment, ete. that would
normally come before the Board for approval with the First Quarter Report in December,
2011.

BACKGROUND

The approved 2011/2012 Operating Budget was prepared using a consultative process,
based on the CBE Three-Year Education Plan, Area Renewal Plans and Service Unil
Plans. Alignment with Board Ends Policies and Executive Limitations has also been
facilitated. The Board approved the Operating Budget on June 28, 2011 and
documentation was submitted to Alberta Education.

As a result of the additional one-time funding announced in July and in October, 2011,
and 1o reflect September 30 enrolment counts, the Minister requires a Fall 2011 Budget
Update submitted by November 30, 20011,  Once this Budget Report 15 approved by the
Board of Trustees, it will be immediately submitted to Alberta Education. Alberta
Education requires this approved document for use in their financial forecasting and
preparing for any Provincial budget submissions for its subsequent fiscal vear. As this
report includes all budget revisions normally presented for approval in December, no
further First Quarter revisions are anticipated.

ANALYSIS

This Fall 2011 Update Report reflects all known financial information up to November
17, 2011 including the additional, one-time granmt funding and the Fall Resource
Allocation Method (RAM) decisions by principals utilizing the September 3tth student
enrolment count and associated changes in full time equivalents (FTEs) stafting levels.
The Operating Budget for 2011/2012 remains in a balanced position, and incledes
amended planned and required draws to balance as represented in Attachment 1.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The recommended amended Operating Reserve draws are consistent with Alberta
Education expectations.  These draws will be funding sustainable {long-term) expenses,
although the draws are available only as one-time supports. The 2012/2013 Operating
Budget eycle, which commences in January, 2012 will incorporate all cost pressures on a
zo forward basis.

§ 243



[t should be noted that the total Balances in Operating Reserves and Designated Funds
and Unrestricted Net Assets (UUNA) at August 31, 2011 as identified in Attachment I, are
available to the Board of Trustees to support CBE expenses in the total amount of
£25,282,000, however $6.4 million is for restrictive purposes. Attachment I summanzes
the reserve balances at August 31, 2011; the original budgeted transfers to/from reserves
approved in June 2011; the revised planned transfers recommended consistent with this
report, and the resulting balances expected for August 31, 2012,

Attachment Il summarizes the proposed revisions to the original budgeted revenues and
expenses. This includes a $30.2 million increase in revenue from the operating budget
approved by the Board on June 28, 2011, This increase is comprised of the following:
e %192 million from the additional, one-time funding from the Province announced
in October, 2011;
o 525 million one-time funding for Action on Inclusion;
£0.95 million funding from the transportation Fuel Price Contingency Program;
e Base funding increases due to enrolment growth based on September 30, 2011
counts;
o Use of previously deferred revenues

Budgeted expense revisions include updated salary and beneflit expenses dnven by
deployment decisions made within CBE schools, revised accounting treatment for the
Education Centre lease, updated amortization expenses and other expenses tied to
projects funded by deterred revenues. With the additional transportation funding, the
budgeted transportation deficit of 0.5 million approved in June, 20011 has been
mitigated. The balance of the transporiation funding increase has been applied 1o
additional bus routes.

V. CONCLUSION

The Fall 2011 Update to the 2011/2012 Operating Budget will be submitied to Alberta
Education on December 7, 2011, as required by Alberta Education, following approval
by the Board of Trustees. In the interim, a preliminary draft was forwarded on November
30,2011,

Maomi E. Johnson
Chiet Superintendent of Schools
CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Attachment I: ~ 2011/12 Reserve Draws
Attachment II:  Fall 2011 Update to the 2011/2012 Budget
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Attachment 11:  Budget Report for the Year Ending August 31, 2012

3030 Calgary School District No. 19

Eohaol Jurisdiction Code and Nama

FALL 2011 UPDATE TO THE 2011/2012 BUDGET

Fall 2011 Updata Spring 2011
e the Budget Budgel Report VarianGe
20117201 2 212012
OFERATIONS (SUMMARY)
Revenues
Gowarnment of Albarta 1018 224 0583 SHA0,003,443 F29, 140,610
Faes £2B 480,633 F26,480,633 S0
Other sales and services revenue §d2 B4E, 087 £33 IO, TI2 A )
Amoriization of capial allecations rewenug Fald 245,127 _ %23 BHEZ Q0
Al QInET revanues L2B.457 044 - 26,253,713 5204, 231
Total Revenuas 31,130,455,544 51,100,251 622 330,204,222
Expenses
Cerficaled salaries, wages and benelils axpense FE41,234,270 §645,475,864 $15.808, 265
Man-cerdilicaled salares, wages and banefis axpensa FEI3EAT 351 BE18,204 RO 54,420 A
Sarvices, contracts and supples sapense SE16.087 261 SH05,310,308 $13.784.985
Amarlizahon eapense £42 455,019 ~ 546,127,269 i52 672,250
Interest on capilal debl expense 31,464,146 R Aﬂﬁ% B
All GHher Expanses 51,583,105 51,583,105 | B
Total Expenses $1.148,611,002 §1.118,285 662 $01,345,520
Excess (Defickency) of Revenues over Expenses (518,156,234) [$16.,013,840) [E1.141.29-ﬂ-:u
Accumulated Operating Surplus [Projected)
Accumubaled Operaling Surphis - Aug.31. 2011 525,581,534 '-.-EEI'@H, EBE 35,061.742
Apcumulated Ciperaling Surplus - Aug.31. 212 26 655534 | | __ 3,500,000 52 758,554
Cerificated Stalf FTE's
Schoal baged [ £,667.2 _ BAERG| 167.3
Man-schaol basad 1271 = 22T i _d
Tolal Ceviificarad Slaff FTE S 53.784.3 565126 7.7
Cartificated Stafiing Change dug to:
Enralment 272 183
Cither fectars 124 5 :
!I'|:||'.,:.|rl::.'|'1.;|.rrg\5h 1747 [2E3.1)
[Eligible Funded Students
Early chidhaod senices [ECE headcaunt) ] é‘,ﬂﬂ_i 2t
Grades 1 ba 9 (headeaunt) 65860 - BE4858 171
Grade 10 ba 12 (FTE) 28871 (28181 Ta0
Tida' Elgnlie Frundad Shudants 102 3497 101,33y 1,060
Commeants/Explanations of Varance:
Details of additional resources and staffing implemented with your portion of the 5107 milion funding commiment:
The CEE's podion of the addikoral resources from Albesda Educaticn was 519.2 milicn. The sniine amaount was allocated o ourschaols and was
pomplebaly apent ar ataffing e Followa
- Cerificated FTEs : 15849 FTEs $15.5 melion
- Man-cenificaed FTEs: 5£E8 FTEs 527 milion
Acditienal infemmalicn on the Yaous suppoms that the cna-ime fuding paovides & an e Addibonal Furding Detsls page

Attestation of Secrefary-Treasurer/ Treasurer:

Tivg iforrmalian was Dvrrnaly receheed by e Boacd of Tresless al e maching beld on Decembar & 2071
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3030 Calgary School District No. 19
Behoal Jerdsdiclian Cade and Name

FALL 2011 UPDATE TO THE 2011/2012 BUDGET

Details of additional resources and staffing implemented with your portion of the 2107 million funding
commitmeant:

Tatal ef $10.2 millon Tar CRE

Pemoraized Learning re: AR bdirecied funding (342 milion, 4487 FTE&)

1} Advancemend of schopl-based projects reisted 1o
{Schools may be reflectesd inmire han are calagany}

mdicales tha number of schools 1hat suppored buiding capacily by # of Schoolks
atnactianal ladersbip timae for formal andfor informal leaders 202
Substilute lima fod leacher colaboraticniraiwoiing/prof essonal leaming 28

24 Thesare of Sction, Inslruchicnal Geals, Schiavement Goals. Thee-T ear Educalion Plan (3150 milien, 179,96 FTESL
[Schoals mary be reflecied inmore than one calegon)

Indicated the number of schoals thal supported # of Schools
Class Siaa oa
Supparl o Englah Language Laames 38
Support for studerts wilh spacial educatsn reads T
Inchigive Fraclioas - enhancing unieemsal suppons Torall leamers 10z
Second languags Baming 4
Enralment growdh and dechne 24
Erowledge & Employabildy suppon B
Career & Techrology StudsesiCareer & Techmalogy Foundabions suppor 2
1] it 24

Cacambar &, 2011




CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA
December 6, 2011

To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES
From: Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools
Re: Locally Developed Courses

Purpose: Approval

Governance Policy References: E-2:  Academic Success
EL-6; Instructional Programs

Originator: Deborah Lewis, Superintendent, Learning Services
Resource Persons: Ronna Mosher, Director, Office of the Chiel Superintendent
Elizabeth Gouthro, Director, Instructional Design & Assessment in Learning
. RECOMMENDATIONS
It 15 recommended:
1. THAT the following renewed Calgary Board of Education senior high locally developed
courses and resources as listed in the course outline submitted to Alberta Education  be

authorized for use in Calgary Board of Education schools for the period listed within each
course outline:

Astronomy

Level: 15 Credits: 3

Mentorship

L

Lewvel: 25 Credits:
Level: 35 Credifs; 5



Il

Sculpting Advanced Technigues

Level: 15,25, 35 Credits: 5

. THAT the following expiring or expired Calgary Board of Education senior high locally

developed courses be withdrawn from the list of authorized courses available for use in
Calgary Board of Education schools:

Mentorship

Level: 15 Credits: 3

. THAT the following renewed Calgary Board of Education junior high locally developed
course and resources required to teach them be authorized for use in Calgary Board of

Education schools for the period listed within the course outline:

Power Up Your Leaming

Grades: 7,8, 9

4. THAT the following expiring or expired Calgary Board of Education junior high locally

developed courses be withdrawn from the list of authorized courses available for use in
Calgary Board of Education schools:

Creative Communication

Grades: 7. 8.9

Cirales: 7,8, 9

ISSUE

Alberta Education Policy 1.2.1 — Locally Developed/dcquired and Authorized Junior and
Senior High Complementary Courses (4) requires that, “Approval of a locally
developed/acquired and authorized course (junior and/or senior high) shall be by Board
maotion and shall be for a maximum duration of three years.”



11l BACKGROUND
Policy References
Calgary Board of Education Executive Limitation 6: Instructional Programs states,

“Accordingly, the Chief Superintendent shall not fail to;
3. ensure that the instructional program includes opportunities for
students to develop talents and interests in more specialized areas;
4, ensure that the instructional program addresses the different learning
styles and needs of students of various backgrounds and abilities;
5. encourage innovative programs, carefully monitoring and evaluating
the effectiveness of all such programs...”

Alberta Education Policy 1.2.1 — Locally Developed dcquired and Awthorized Junior and
Senier High Complementary Courses states,

“Alberta Learning supports the local development and authorization of junior high school
and senior high school complementary courses, which do not duplicate provincially
authorized courses, to further develop and cultivate the unique interests and abilities of
students, to foster educational improvement and excellence through innovation at the
local level to meet the unique needs of a local community,”

Alberta Education Policy 1.2.1 further states,

*...in the interest of increasing local flexibility to meet the needs of students, local school
authorities will authorize senior high locally developed/acquired and authorized courses
and provide Alberta Learning with information regarding these authorizations,”

Alberta Education requires a copy of the Board of Trustee motion showing specific
information about the Board authorization of senior high locally developed courses. In
order to meet provincial requirements, the motion must be received by Alberta Education
on or belore December 31 of a given vear for course implementation in the first semester
of the next school year.

Process

Locally developed courses (LDC) are approved and authorized for a maximum period of
three vears. When a course is expiring, it must be reviewed in the context of local
student need and a decision made by the onginating district about whether to go forward
with the renewal process.

All locally developed and acquired courses are scrutinized by the Director, Office of the
Chiet Superintendent, and the Superintendent, Leaming Services, The intention of the
CBE process is to facilitate seamless access for students by renewing expiring courses
and authonizing new courses for February 1, 2012,
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Notice of authorization of the recommendations in this report will be provided to Alberta
Education’s Curriculum Branch and appropriate Calgary Board of Education staff.
Copies of the new or revised course outlines will be made available to all middle, junior
and senior high schools through a web site in the Portal - Teacher’s Resource Centre,

l'o provide a current provincial context for Locally Developed Courses, the following
information has been taken from the Alberta Education website:

Strategic Review of Locally Developed Courses

Owver the past yvear, Education has been engaging Albertans in an ongoing
dialogue about many aspects of education through forums and activities, such as
Inspiring Education, Speak-Oul and Setting the Direction. The ideas and
suggestions gathered from Albertans are providing key insights as we look at
research and effective practices. This has set the stage to further examine the
leaming needs of students in the 21st century in relation to delivering curriculum
at both the provincial and local levels.

As part of the information gathering. Education is inmtiating a strategic review of
LDCs (including religious studies LDCs), and will examine how the minisiry
should continue o provide support. The review will help assess whether LIDCs, in
their current form and administration, are effective and efficient in meeting
student needs, provide school authorities with options for innovation and
responsiveness, and align with the ministry’s strategic direction for the future.

During the review, school authorities may continue to offer their curently
authorized LDCs, students will continue to receive credits for course completions
and Education will continue to fund LDCs that meet the current requirements. To
facilitate the review, Education will not accept submissions for newly developed
or newly acquired LDCs until the 2012/2013 school year.

School authorities will be able to renew or extend their currently authorized
LDCs, providing these courses do not overlap with current or new provincial
programs and that acquired courses are renewed by the developing board.

(Retrieved on October 23, 2011 from:
http://education.alberta.ca/department/ipe/lder. aspx)



http://education.ablerta.ca/department/ipr/ldcr.aspx

V.

ANALYSIS
Senior High — Course Withdrawals

Mentorship 15, 25, 35

Alberta Education has recommend a close review of the Mentorship series since there are
a number of new Leadership and Mentorship courses in Career and Technology Study
which may duplicate the leaming outcomes. The CBE has determined that significant
overlap has been identified between the Mentorship locally developed courses and the
emerging Career & Technology Studies (CT38). This overlap resulted in the decision by
Calgary Board of Education to seek permission from Alberta Education to grandfather
Mentorship as follows:

Schedule of Mentorship LDC Grandfathering

.lﬂ'l 1-2012 | Mentorship 15 — available
Mentorship 25 — available
Mentorship 35 - available

2012-2013 | Mentorship 15 — not available
Mentorship 25 — available to students with credit in Mentorship 15
Mentorship 35 — available to students with credit in Mentorship 25

2013-2014 | Mentorship 15 — not available
| Mentorship 25 - not available

Mentorship 35 — available to students with credit in Mentorship 25
2014-2015 | Mentorship 15 — not available
Mentorship 25 — not available

Mentorship 35 — not available

During this grandfathering process, Mentorship is gradually replaced with the CTS
Human and Social Services pathway, The authorization period for Mentorship 23, 35
align with the grandfathering schedule and the final expiry of this LDC is on January 31,
2014,

CBE high schools offering Mentorship to students are working closely with Instructional
Design and Assessment in Learning specialists in Physical Education and Health, Middle
Years, and Language Arts to generate strategies and actions that will ensure a scamless
educational experience for students impacted by this change.



Junior High — Course Withdrawals

Speaking Out

Creative Communication

Calgary Board of Education has reviewed these Junior High courses and found there to
be considerable overlap with the new Career and Technology Foundation (CTF) Program
of Studies.

Leaming Services specialists will continue to work with middle/junior high principals
and teachers to build understanding of the new CTF Program of Studies and how the
outcomes previously addressed through these LDCs are better served by the CTF
Program of Studies,

V. CONCLUSION

Board of Trustee approval of the listed locally developed and acquired courses will
ensure that the Calgary Board of Education is compliant with Alberta Education Policy
1.2.1.  Approval of the new and remewed courses will enable the Calgary Board of
Education to be innovative and responsive in personalizing learning to address the
idividual needs of our students.

Maomi E. Johnson
Chiet Superintendent of Schools
CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
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